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April 7, 2022

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of NOW Inc., which
will be held on Wednesday, May 25, 2022 at 10:00 a.m., local time, at the Company’s corporate
headquarters located at 7402 N. Eldridge Parkway, Houston, Texas 77041.

The accompanying notice of meeting and proxy statement contain information regarding the
matters to be voted on at the meeting in the formal Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement,
which are included on the following pages of this booklet.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, it is
important that your shares be represented and voted at the meeting, so please submit your proxy
as soon as possible. You may vote by mailing a completed proxy card, by telephone, or over the
Internet. If you so desire, you may withdraw your proxy and vote in person at the meeting.

Also included in this booklet as Appendix A is NOW Inc.’s 2021 Annual Report on Form 10K,
which we are distributing to the Company’s stockholders in lieu of a separate annual report.

Thank you for your continued support of and interest in NOW Inc.
Sincerely,

David Cherechinsky
President and Chief Executive Officer
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING
OF STOCKHOLDERS

Wednesday, May 25, 2022
10:00 a.m. (Central Standard Time)

NOW INC.
7402 N. Eldridge Parkway
Houston, Texas 77041

The 2022 annual meeting of stockholdersof NOW Inc. will be held at the Company’s corporate headquarters
located at 7402 N. Eldridge Parkway, Houston, Texas 77041 on Wednesday, May 25, 2022, at 10:00 a.m. local
time, for the following pur poses:

= Toelect fivedirectorsto hold office for one-year terms (Proposal 1);

= Toconsider and act upon aproposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Y oung L L P asindependent
auditors of the Company for 2022 (Proposal 2);

= Toconsider and act upon an advisory proposal to approve the compensation of our named executive
officers (Proposal 3); and

= To consider and act upon any other matters that may properly come before the annual meeting or
any postponement or adjournment thereof.

The Board of Directorsrecommendsthat you vote “FOR” these three proposals.

The Board of Directors has set March 28, 2022 as the record date for the annual meeting of the stockholders (“Annua
Meeting”). If you were a stockholder of record at the close of business on March 28, 2022, you are entitled to vote at
the Annual Meeting. A complete list of these stockholders will be available for examination at the Annual Meeting and
during ordinary business hours at our corporate headquarters for a period of ten days prior to the Annual Meeting.

On or about April 7, 2022, we sent our stockholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials containing
instructions on how to access our 2022 proxy statement and 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K and how to vote
online. The notice also provides instruction on how you can request a paper copy of these documents if you desire.
If you received your 2022 annual meeting materials via e-mail, the e-mail contains voting instructions and links to
the proxy statement and Form 10-K on the Internet.

You are cordially invited to join us a the Annual Meeting. However, to ensure your representation, we request that you
return your signed proxy card at your earliest convenience, regardless of whether or not you plan to attend the Annual
Meeting. Y ou may revoke your proxy at any time if you wish to attend and vote in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Raymond Chang

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Houston, Texas
April 7, 2022



NOW INC.
7402 N. Eldridge Par kway
Houston, Texas 77041

PROXY STATEMENT

Except as otherwise specifically noted in this Proxy Statement, “NOW”, the“ Company,” “we,” “our,” “us,”
and similar words in this Proxy Statement refer to NOW Inc.

ANNUAL MEETING:

AGENDA:

RECORD DATE/
WHO CAN VOTE:

PROXY NOTICE:

PROXIESSOLICITEDBY:

Date: Wednesday, May 25, 2022
Time: 10:00 am. (Central Standard Time)
Place: DistributionNOW

7402 N. Eldridge Parkway
Houston, Texas 77041

Proposal 1: To elect five nominees as directors of the Company for
one-year terms.

Proposal 2: To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
independent auditors of the Company for 2022.

Proposal 3: To approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of
our named executive officers.

The Board of Directorsrecommendsthat you vote“FOR” the election
of the five nominees for director (Proposal 1), “FOR” the proposal to
ratify theappointment of Ernst & Young L L P asindependent auditors
of the Company for 2022 (Proposal 2), and “FOR” the approval of the
compensation of our named executive officers (Proposal 3).

All stockholders of record at the close of business on March 28, 2022
are entitled to vote. The only class of securities entitled to vote at the
Annua Meeting is NOW common stock. Holders of NOW common
stock are entitled to one vote per share at the Annual Meeting.

The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials is being sent to
stockholders on or about April 7, 2022. Our Annual Report on Form 10-
K, including financial statements, for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2021, accompanies this proxy statement. The Annual Report on
Form 10-K shall not be considered as a part of the proxy solicitation
materials or as having been incorporated by reference.

Y our vote and proxy is being solicited by the Board of Directorsfor use
at the Annua Meeting. This Proxy Statement and enclosed proxy card
is being sent on behalf of the Board of Directors to all stockholders
beginning on or about April 7, 2022. By completing, signing and
returning your proxy card, you will authorize the persons named on the
proxy card to vote your shares according to your instructions.



PROXIES:

REVOKING YOUR
PROXY:

QUORUM:

VOTE REQUIRED FOR
APPROVAL.:

HOUSEHOLDING:

If your proxy does not indicate how you wish to vote your common
stock, the persons named on the proxy card will vote FOR election of
the five nominees for director (Proposal 1), FOR the ratification of the
appointment of Ernst & Y oung LLP asindependent auditors (Proposal
2), and FOR the approval of the compensation of our named executive
officers (Proposal 3).

Y ou can revoke your proxy at any time prior to when the vote is taken
at the meeting by: (i) filing a written notice revoking your proxy; (ii)
filing another proxy bearing a later date; or (iii) casting your vote in
person at the Annual Meeting. Your last vote will be the vote that is
counted.

Asof March 28, 2022, therewere 111,850,667 shares of NOW common
stock issued and outstanding. The holders of these shares have the right
to cast one vote for each share held by them. Shareholders, in person or
by proxy, casting at least 55,925,334 votes constitutes a quorum for
adopting the proposals at the Annua Meeting. Abstentions will be
included in determining the number of shares present at the meeting for
the purpose of determining aquorum, aswill broker non-votes. A broker
non-vote occurs when a broker is not permitted to vote on a matter
without instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares and no
instructionisgiven. If you have properly signed and returned your proxy
card by mail, you will be considered part of the quorum, and the persons
named on the proxy card will vote your shares as instructed.

For the proposal to elect the five director nominees (Proposal 1), our
bylaws require that each director nominee be elected by the mgjority of
votes cast with respect to such nominee (i.e., the number of sharesvoted
“for” a director nominee must exceed the number of shares voted
“againg” that nominee). For additional information regarding our
majority voting policy, see page 6 of the proxy statement. Y ou cannot
abstainin the election of directors and broker non-votes are not counted.
Brokers are not permitted to vote your shares on the éection of
directors in the absence of your specific instructions as to how to
vote. Please provide your broker with voting instructions so that
your vote can be counted.

Approval of the proposd to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as independent auditors (Proposal 2) and the proposal to approve
the compensation of our nhamed executive officers (Proposal 3) will
require the affirmative vote of a mgjority of the shares of our common
stock entitled to vote in person or by proxy. An abstention will have the
same effect asavote“against” such proposal. With respect to Proposal
3, brokers are not permitted to vote your sharesin the absence of
your specific instructions as to how to vote. Please provide your
broker with voting instructions so that your vote can be counted.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, has adopted
rules that permit companies and intermediaries, such as brokers, to
satisfy the delivery requirements for proxy statements with respect to
two or more stockhol ders sharing the same address by delivering a copy



of these materials, other than the Proxy Card, to those stockholders. This
process, which is commonly referred to as “householding,” can mean
extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for the Company.
Beneficia stockholders can request information about householding
from their banks, brokers, or other holders of record. Through
householding, stockholders of record who have the same address and
last name will receive only one copy of our Proxy Statement and Annual
Report, unless one or more of these stockholders notifies us that they
wish to continue receiving individual copies. This procedure reduces
printing costs and postage fees. If an individual receives multiple proxy
cards, thisindicates that your shares are held in more than one account,
such as two brokerage accounts, and are registered in different names.
Y ou should vote each of the proxy cardsto ensurethat al of your shares
are voted.

Stockholders who participate in householding will continue to receive
separate Proxy Cards. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate
in householding and would prefer to receive a separate Proxy Statement
and Annua Report, please notify your broker if you are a beneficial
stockholder. If you are eligible for householding, but you and other
stockholders of record with whom you share an address currently
receive multiple copies of Proxy Statements and Annual Reports, or if
you hold stock in more than one account and wish to receive only a
single copy of the Proxy Statement or Annua Report for your
household, please contact Broadridge Householding Department, in
writing, at 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New Y ork 11717, or by phone
at (800) 542-1061.

COST OF PROXY We have retained Okapi Partners LLC to solicit proxies from our

SOLICITATION: stockholders at an estimated fee of $12,500, plus expenses. This fee
does not include the costs of preparing, printing, assembling, delivering
and mailing the Proxy Statement. The Company will pay for the cost of
soliciting proxies. Some of our directors, officers, and employees may
also solicit proxies personally, without any additional compensation, by
telephone or mail. Proxy materials also will be furnished without cost
to brokers and other nominees to forward to the beneficial owners of
shares held in their names.

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materialsfor the Stockholder Meeting to Be
Held on Wednesday, May 25, 2022.

The Company’s 2022 Proxy Statement and the Annual Report to Stockholdersfor the year ended
2021 are also available at:

http://www.pr oxyvote.com

For directions to the Annual Meeting, please contact Investor Relations at 281-823-4700.

PLEASE VOTE -- YOUR VOTE ISIMPORTANT



ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
PROPOSAL NO. 10N THE PROXY CARD

At the Company’sinception in 2014, the Board of Directors of NOW Inc. (the “Board”) was divided into
three classes with each class serving a term of three years. In 2020, stockholders approved the
declassification of the Board over athree-year period. Directorswhosetermsare expiring in 2022 will serve
one-year termsif eected at the upcoming annual meeting of stockholders. Directors whose terms expirein
2023 will continue their original terms until they are up for reelection at which point all board members
will sit for annual reelection and declassification will be complete. Directors whose terms expire this year
include: Terry Bonno, David Cherechinsky, Galen Cobb, James Crandell, and Sonya Reed.

Terry Bonno, David Cherechinsky, Galen Cobb, James Crandell, and Sonya Reed are nominees for
directors, each for a one-year term expiring at the Annual Meeting in 2023, or when their successors are
elected and qualified. We believe each of the nominees will be able to serve if elected. However, if any
nomineeisunableto serve, the remaining members of the Board have authority to nominate another person,
elect a substitute, or reduce the size of the Board. Directors whose terms expire in 2023 will continue to
serve in accordance with their prior election or appointment. Proxies cannot be voted for a greater number
of persons than the number of nominees named.



Vote Required for Approval

NOW’s Bylaws require that each director be elected by the majority of votes cast with respect to such
director in uncontested elections (the number of shares voted “for” a director nominee must exceed the
number of votes cast “against” that nominee). In a contested election (a situation in which the number of
nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected), the standard for election of directors would be a
plurality of the shares represented in person or by proxy at any such meeting and entitled to vote on the
election of directors. Whether an election is contested or not contested is determined 14 days in advance of
when we file our definitive proxy statement with the SEC. This year’s election was determined to be an
uncontested el ection and the majority vote standard will apply. If anominee who is serving as a director is
not elected at the annual meeting, Delaware law provides that the director would continue to serve on the
Board as a “holdover director.” However, under our Bylaws and Corporate Governance Guidelines, each
director must submit an advance, contingent, irrevocable resignation that the Board may accept if the
director failsto be elected through amajority vote. In that situation, the Environmental, Social, Governance,
and Nominating Committee would make a recommendation to the Board about whether to accept or reject
the resignation or whether to take other action. The Board will act on the Environmental, Social,
Governance, and Nominating Committee’s recommendation and publicly disclose its decison and the
rationale behind it within 90 days from the date the el ection results are certified. If a nominee who was not
already serving as a director fails to receive a majority of votes cast at the annual meeting, Delaware law
provides that the nominee does not serve on the Board as a “holdover director.” In 2022, all director
nominees are currently serving on the Board.

Brokers are not permitted to vote your shares on the election of directorsin the absence of your
specific instructions as to how to vote. Please provide your broker with voting instructions so that
your vote can be counted.



Information Regarding Nomineesfor Director for Terms Expiring in 2022:

Expiration
Date of Year First
Current Became
Name Age Term Biography Director
Terry Bonno 64 2022 Ms. Bonno has been a director of the Company 2014

since May 2014. Ms. Bonno provides advisory and
consulting services to numerous private companies
utilizing her professional expertise in Global
business development, commercial and contractual
due diligence, Sustainability and Enterprise Risk
Management. She has served as a Director of
Kodiak Gas Services, aprivately held company that
is the third largest contract gas compression
company in the US, since 2019. From 2017 to the
successful divestiture to 3i in 2019, Ms. Bonno
served asaDirector of Tampnet, the largest offshore
high-capacity communication network in the world.
She also served as adirector on energy industry and
charity boards. In 2017, she was accepted as an
industry expert to serve in an advisory capacity on
the National Offshore Safety and Advisory
Committee (NOSAC) for athree-year term ending
2020. Ms. Bonno served as Senior Vice President of
Industry and Community Relations for Transocean
Ltd. from 2017 until her retirement in September
2018. Her responsibilities included leadership in
industry forums, community affairs and driving
sustainability in the organization. Ms. Bonno
previously served as Senior Vice President of
Marketing for Transocean Ltd. from 2011 and Vice
President Marketing from 2008 with oversight of
Transocean's marketing in 14 countries. Prior to
this role, she served in various director and
management roles at Transocean Ltd. leading the
marketing and contracts efforts for West Africaand
the Americas from 2001 until 2008. She served in a
Director Marketing and Contracts role for Turnkey
Drilling with RBFalcon and Global Marine (a
wholly owned subsidiary of Applied Drilling
Technology Inc. (ADTI)) from 1993 until 2001,
who later became acquired by Transocean Ltd.
During her time with Global Marine from 1982 to
1999, she served in  various Accounting
Management roles. She is aso a Certified Public
Accountant.




Name

Age

Expiration
Date of
Current

Term

Biography

Year First
Became
Director

David Cherechinsky

58

2022

Mr. Cherechinsky has served as President and Chief
Executive Officer and been a director of the
Company since June 2020. Prior to serving as
President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Cherechinsky served as the Company’s Senior Vice
President and Chief Financia Officer from
February 2018 until June 2020. Mr. Cherechinsky
previousdy served as Vice President, Corporate
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer from
February 2014 until February 2018. Mr.
Cherechinsky served as Vice President—Finance
for NOV’s distribution business group from 2003,
and as Vice President—Finance for NOV’s
Distribution & Transmission business segment from
2011, until the Company’ sspin-off in May 2014. He
previously served NOV starting in 1989 in various
corporate roles, including internal auditor, credit
management and business analyst, and isa CPA.

2020

Galen Cobb

68

2022

Mr. Cobb has been a director of the Company since
May 2014. Mr. Cabb has served as Vice President
Industry Relations for Halliburton since 2002, and
is responsible for Halliburton's industry relations
global activities, energy trade policy issues,
executive client relations, and trade organization
oversight. He has worked for Halliburton for over
forty years serving in various executive
management positions in operations, marketing,
sales and business development. From 1991 to
1994, hewas Director CIS and Chinawith oversight
in establishing Halliburton's presence and
operationsin these emerging markets. L ater, he was
named Director Executive Sales and Business
Development with expanded responsibilities for the
worldwide development and promotion of
Halliburton’s services and products.

2014




Name

Age

Expiration
Date of
Current

Term

Biography

Year First
Became
Director

James Crandell

68

2022

Mr. Crandell has been a director of the Company
since May 2014. Mr. Crandell served as Managing
Director of Cowen and Company from 2013 to
2016. Mr. Crandell served as Managing Director of
Dahlman Rose from 2011 until its acquisition by
Cowen and Company in 2013. Previously, he served
as Managing Director at Barclays Capital plc from
2008 until 2011. Mr. Crandell was Managing
Director for Lehman Brothers starting in 1999 until
its acquisition by Barclays Capital in 2008. From
1981 until 1998, he held various posts at Salomon
Brothers, including managing director, senior oil
services analyst and director of U.S. equity
research, before his promotion to global coordinator
of equity research in 1994. Mr. Crandell has more
than 30 years of experience asaWall Street analyst
focusing on ailfield services & equipment.

2014

Sonya Reed

48

2022

Ms. Reed has been a director of the Company since
August 2021. Ms. Reed has served as the Senior
Vice President of Human Resources and Corporate
Communications of Phillips 66, a publicly traded
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
since 2015. From 2011 to 2015, Ms. Reed waswith
Genera Cable, where she last served as Executive
Vice President, Chief Human Resources Officer.
Ms. Reed began her career at Zurich Financia
Services, where she held several positions of
increasing responsibility, the last of whichwasVice
President of Human Resources of their Latin
American business.

2021

YOUR BOARD OF DIRECTORSRECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE IN FAVOR OF THE
ELECTION OF THE FIVE NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR.




Information Regarding Continuing Directors:

Name

Age

Expiration
Date of
Current

Term

Biography

Year First
Became
Director

Richard Alario

67

2023

Mr. Alario has been adirector of the Company since
May 2014 and has served as the Company’s
Chairman of the Board since April 2021. Mr. Alario
served as Interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from November 2019 until June 2020, and
as Executive Vice Chairman on an interim, short-
term basis from June 2020 until October 2020. Mr.
Alario served as Chief Executive Officer and
director of Key Energy Services, Inc., a provider of
oilfield services, from 2004 until his retirement in
March 2016. Prior to joining Key Energy Services,
Mr. Alario was employed by BJ Services Company,
an oilfield services company, where he served as
Vice President from 2002 after OSCA, Inc. was
acquired by BJ Services. Prior to joining BJ
Services, Mr. Alario had over 21 years of servicein
various capacities with OSCA, an ailfield services
company, most recently having served as its
Executive Vice President. He is aso a director of
Kirby Corporation, serving as its lead director and
chairman of its Environmental, Social, Governance
and Nominating Committee. He formerly served as
Chairman of the Nationa Ocean Industries
Association.

2014

Paul Coppinger

61

2023

Mr. Coppinger has been a director of the Company
since December 2017. Mr. Coppinger has been the
President of SPM QOil & Gas, a Caterpillar Company
(formerly the Qil & Gas Division of the Weir Group
PL C which was acquired by Caterpillar in February
2021) since 2014. From 2012 to 2014, Mr.
Coppinger served as President, Pressure Pumping,
for the Weir Group, and from 2011 to 2012 as
President of Weir SPM. Prior to that, Mr. Coppinger
was Group President of the Energy Segment of
CIRCOR International, Inc. from 2001 to 2011. Mr.
Coppinger is Chairman Emeritus of the Energy
Workforce & Technology Council (formerly the
Petroleum Equipment & Services Association) and
served on its Board of Directors from 2007 to 2019.

2017

10




Expiration

Date of Year First
Current Became
Name Age Term Biography Director
Rodney Eads 71 2023 Mr. Eads has been a director of the Company since 2014

May 2014. Mr. Eads has served as President of Eads
Holdings, LLC, awholly owned private investment
firm since 2009. Mr. Eads provides advisory and due
diligence services for numerous private equity
entities, with deep expertise in Enterprise Risk
Management and Crisis Management. He served as
a director from 2010 to 2015 for private equity
owned Nautronix UK Limited. Mr. Eads previously
served as Chief Operating Officer and Executive
Vice President of Pride International Inc. (NY SE)
from 2006 until 2009, where he was responsible for
safety, environmental, and regulatory compliance
for offshore operations and South American and
eastern hemisphere land assets operating in 15
countries. He also managed a public company spin-
off in 2009 of Seahawk Drilling Company. He
served as Senior Vice President of Worldwide
Operations for Diamond Offshore Drilling Inc.
(NYSE) from 1997 until 2006, with responsibility
for safety, environmenta, and regulatory
compliance in 12 countries. From 1977 to 1997, he
served in several executive and operations
management positions with Exxon Corporation,
primarily in international assignments spanning 11
countries, providing engineering, business planning
and project analysis, and compliance for safety,
environmental, and regulatory requirements. Mr.
Eads has managed global workforces as large as
14,000 employees, managed operating budgets of
$1B per year, and capital projects exceeding $3B.

11




COMMITTEESAND MEETINGSOF THE BOARD
Committees

The Board of Directors appoints committees to help carry out its duties. The Board of Directors has the
following standing committees: Audit, Compensation, and Environmental, Social, Governance, and
Nominating (formerly known as Nominating/Corporate Governance). Last year, the Board of Directors met
six times and the committees met atotal of 12 times. The following table sets forth the committees of the
Board of Directors and their members as of the date of this proxy statement, as well as the number of
meetings each committee held during 2021:

Director Audit Committee Compensation Gofe?ﬁ!r?gg;g;allﬁ;?%a;ﬁn
Committee Co}nmittee 9

David Cherechinsky (1)

Richard Alario + .

Terry Bonno . .

Galen Cobb .

Paul Coppinger . +

James Crandell . .

Rodney Eads +

Sonya Reed (2) .

Number of Meetings

Heldin 2021 8 2 2

(+) Denotes Chair

(1) AsMr. Cherechinsky isan employee of the Company serving as President and Chief Executive
Officer, he does not serve as a member of any board committees.

(2) On August 11, 2021, Sonya Reed was appointed as an independent member of the Board.

Attendance at Meetings

Each incumbent director attended at least 75% of the meetings of the Board and committees of which that
director was amember in 2021.

Audit Committee

Messrs. Eads (Chairman), Cobb and Ms. Bonno are the current members of the Audit Committee. All
members of this committee are “independent” within the meaning of the rules governing audit committees
by the New Y ork Stock Exchange, or NY SE.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities. The Committee's primary duties and responsibilities are to:

e monitor theintegrity of the Company’sfinancia statements, financial reporting processes, systems
of internal controls regarding finance, and disclosure controls and procedures;

e select and appoint the Company’s independent auditors, pre-approve al audit and non-audit
services to be provided, consistent with requirements of the SEC and PCAOB regarding auditor
independence, to the Company by the Company’ sindependent auditors, and establish the fees and
other compensation to be paid to the independent auditors;

¢ monitor the independence and performance of the Company’s independent auditors and internal
audit function;

e establish procedures for the receipt, retention, response to and treatment of complaints, including
confidential, anonymous submissions by the Company’ s empl oyees, regarding accounting, interna

12



controls, disclosure or auditing matters, and provide an avenue of communication among the
independent auditors, management, the internal audit function and the Board of Directors;

e prepare an audit committee report as required by the SEC to be included in the Company’ s annual
proxy statement; and

e monitor the Company’ s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

A copy of the Audit Committee Charter is available on the Company’ s website, www.di stributionnow.com,
under the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance section.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that all members of the Audit Committee meet the NY SE standard
of having accounting or related financial management expertise and meet the SEC’s criteria of an Audit
Committee Financial Expert.

Compensation Committee

Messrs. Alario (Chairman), Coppinger, Crandell and Ms. Reed are the current members of the
Compensation Committee. All members of the Compensation Committee are independent as defined by
the applicable NY SE listing standards.

The Compensation Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors to assist the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities. The Committee's primary duties and responsibilities are to:

e discharge the Board's responsibilities relating to compensation of the Company’s directors and
executive officers;

e approve and evauate all compensation of directors and executive officers, including salaries,
bonuses, and compensation plans, policies, and programs of the Company; and

o administer all plans of the Company under which shares of common stock may be acquired by
directors or executive officers of the Company.

A copy of the Compensation Committee Charter is available on the Company’s website,
www . distributionnow.com, under the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance section.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Messrs. Alario (Chairman), Coppinger, Crandell, Richards and Ms. Reed served on the Compensation
Committee during 2021. Mr. Alario, who had previoudly served as Chair of the Compensation Committee
prior to his appointment asinterim Chief Executive Officer and as Executive Vice Chairman on an interim,
short-term basisfrom November 2019 until October 2020, reassumed hisrole as Chair of the Compensation
Committee in February 2021 in place of Mr. Richards. Except as disclosed herein, none of these members
is a former or current officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, is involved in a
relationship requiring disclosure as an interlocking executive officer/director, or had any relationship
requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K.

Environmental, Social, Gover nance, and Nominating Committee

Messrs. Coppinger (Chairman), Alario, Crandell, and Ms. Bonno are the current members of the
Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee. All members of the Environmental,
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Socia, Governance, and Nominating Committee are independent as defined by the applicable NY SE listing
standards.

Formerly known as the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee, the Environmental, Social,
Governance, and Nominating Committee was restructured in 2021 to give more oversight at the board level
to the Company’s ESG initiatives including (1) providing assistance and oversight on future sustainability
reports; (2) overseeing and working with management on ESG risk assessment and managing and
mitigating these risks, including risks related to climate change and other ESG related matters; and (3)
overseeing and working with management to determine areas of opportunities, goal setting, and expansion
inits ESG initiatives.

The Environmental, Socia, Governance, and Nominating Committeeis appointed by the Board of Directors
to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Committee’s primary duties and
responsibilities are to:

e ensure that the Board and its committees are appropriately constituted so that the Board and
directors may effectively meet their fiduciary obligations to stockholders and the Company;

e identify individuals qualified to become Board members and recommend to the Board director
nominees for each annual meeting of stockholders and candidatesto fill vacanciesin the Board,;

e recommend to the Board annually the directors to be appointed to Board committees;

e monitor, review, and recommend, when necessary, any changes to the Corporate Governance
Guidelines,

¢ monitor and evaluate annually the effectiveness of the Board and management of the Company,
including their effectiveness in implementing the policies and principles of the Corporate
Governance Guiddines; and

e oversee the Company’s efforts on environmental, social, and governance (ESG) matters.

A copy of the Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee Charter is available on the
Company’s website, www.distributionnow.com, under the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance
section.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Director Nomination Process and Diversity Consider ations

The Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee has the responsibility of identifying
candidates for election as directors, reviewing background information relating to candidates for director,
and recommending to the Board of Directors nominees for directors to be submitted to stockholders for
election. It isthe policy of the Committee to consider director candidates recommended by stockholders.
Nominees to be evaluated by the Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee are
selected by the Committee from candidates recommended by multiple sources, including other directors,
management, stockhol ders, and candidatesidentified by independent search firms (which firmsmay be paid
by the Company for their services), al of whom will be evaluated based on the same criteria. As of March
28, 2022, we had not received any formal recommendations from stockholders for potential director
candidates that were approved as a nominee for director by the Company’s Environmental, Social,
Governance, and Nominating Committee for submission to stockholders for election. All of the current
nominees for director are standing members of the Board that are proposed by the entire Board for re-
election. Written suggestions for nominees should be sent to the Secretary of the Company at the address
listed herein.

The Board of Directors believes that nominees should reflect the following characteristics:

o haveareputation for integrity, honesty, candor, fairness, and discretion;
o be knowledgeable, or willing to become so quickly, in the critical aspects of the Company’s
businesses and operations; and

o have arange of talent, skill, and expertise sufficient to provide sound and prudent guidance with
respect to the full scope of the Company’ s operations and interests.

The Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee reviews Board composition annually

to ensure that the Board reflects the knowledge, experience, skills, expertise, and diversity required for the
Board to fulfill its duties. There are currently no directorship vacancies to be filled on the Board.
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Board Diversity

The Board considers diversity in identifying nominees for director. The Board seeks to achieve a mix of
directorsthat represent adiversity of background and experience, including with respect to gender and race.
The Board considers diversity in avariety of different ways and in a fairly expansive manner. The Board
not only considers diversity concepts such as race and gender, but also diversity in the sense of differences
in viewpoint, professional experience, education, skill, and other qualities and attributes that contribute to
board heterogeneity. Also considered as part of the diversity analysis is whether the individual has work
experiencein the Company’ sindustry or in the broader energy or industrial markets. The Company believes
the Board can benefit from different viewpoints and experiences by having a mix of members of the Board
who have experience in itsindustry and those who may not have such experience.

Although we do not have aformal diversity policy in place for the director nomination process, the Board
recognizes that diverse candidates with appropriate and relevant skills and experience contribute to the
depth and diversity of perspective in the boardroom. An important factor in our Environmental, Social,
Governance, and Nominating Committee’s consideration and assessment of a director candidate is the
diversity of background, viewpoints, professional experience, education, gender, age, and culture —
including nationality, race or ethnic background.

Further to these goals and efforts by the Board, in August 2021, the Board added anew director, Ms. Sonya
Reed, which provided additiona diversity both in gender and race and ethnicity to the Board.

If and when the need arises for the Company to add an additional new director to the Board, the
Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee will ensure that diverse candidates
(including, without limitation, women and minority candidates) are in the pool from which nominees are
chosen and strive to obtain diverse candidates by searching in traditional corporate environments, as well
as government, academia, and non-profit organizations. Accordingly, the Environmental, Socia,
Governance, and Nominating Committee will include candidates reflecting ethnic and gender diversity as
part of the candidate search criteria.

Furthermore, the Company acknowledges that the current policies of severd of itskey stakeholdersrequire
aminimum number of female board memberson aboard. The Company will take such policiesinto strong
consideration when considering any additional director appointments.

Director Qualifications

The Company believes that each member of its Board of Directors possess the basic attributes of being a
director of the Company, namely having a reputation for integrity, honesty, candor, fairness, and discretion.
Each director has also become knowledgeable in major aspects of the Company’ s business and operations,
which has alowed the Board to provide better oversight functions to the Company. In addition to the
experience, qualifications, and skills of each director set forth in their biographies starting on page eight of
this proxy statement, the Company also considered the following factors in determining that the board
member should serve on the Board:

Mr. Alario served asthe interim Chief Executive Officer of the Company from November 2019 until June
2020, as Executive Vice Chairman on an interim, short-term basis from June 2020 until October 2020, and
previoudy served asthe chief executive officer and as the chairman of another publicly traded company for
12 years. Mr. Alario has extensive experience in the oil service business, having worked in that industry
for over 30 years. Mr. Alario has gained valuable board experience from his tenure as a director of Kirby
Corporation, including from his service as its lead director and chairman of its Environmental, Social,
Governance and Nominating Committee as well as on its audit committee. Through service in these roles,
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Mr. Alario has gained extensive experience in ng the risks associated with various energy industry
cycles.

Ms. Bonno provides valuable service and experience to the Audit Committee, due to her current role as
Audit Chair on the Audit Committee of Kodiak Gas Services and past experience serving on the financial
committee, enterprise risk management committee, and disclosure committee at Transocean Ltd. Ms.
Bonno has extensive experience in the oil serviceindustry of 36 years and a background in accounting with
approximately 33 years of being a certified public accountant and experience overseeing the Sox
Compliance of the Global Marketing function. Ms. Bonno's extensive professional experience in
international business development, commercial and contractual acumen, Sustainability and Enterprise
Risk Management has provided her the knowledge to deal with al facets of potential risk areas and
opportunities for a globa energy company, and she brings that experience and perspective to the Board.

Mr. Cherechinsky has been an officer of a publicly traded company since 2014. Mr. Cherechinsky’s 33-
year career with the Company includes positions of increasing importance, from business anayst, to Vice
President—Corporate Controller, to Chief Financia Officer, to Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Cherechinsky
has extensive experience with the Company and the oil service industry. Mr. Cherechinsky’s experience in
the Company’s business and the industry, his extensive financial background, and his unparalleled
knowledge of the Company make him uniquely and well qualified to serve as a director of the Company.

Mr. Cobb provides valuable service and experience to the Audit Committee, due to his over 40 years of
serving in various management positionsfor Halliburton. Mr. Cobb has devel oped experience and expertise
in warehouse management and distribution, international operations, especially in emerging markets, as
well as marketing and business development in alarge corporate environment. As aresult of this extensive
experience, Mr. Cobb is very familiar with the strategic and project planning processes that impact the
Company’ s business and continued devel opment for growth.

Mr. Coppinger has over 35 years of experiencein the petroleum equipment and service, process equipment
and flow control businesses, as well as experience in the industrial markets and manufacturing, and has
held various positions of increasing responsibility, including managing domestic and internationa
operations. Mr. Coppinger has extensive operational and strategic planning experience from hislong career
in manufacturing and distribution. Mr. Coppinger also has extensive mergers and acquisitions experience
of over 20 yearson aglobal basis. Mr. Coppinger has dealt with all facets of potential risk areasfor aglobal
energy service company and brings that experience to the Company.

Mr. Crandell has over 30 years of experience as a Wall Street analyst focusing on ailfield services and
equipment. He has held positions of increasing importance at multiple investment firms, including serving
as managing director of global oilfield services equity research. Given Mr. Crandell’ s extensive experience
as an analyst covering the oilfield services sector, heis able to provide the Company useful and impactful
information from a shareholder perspective. As such, Mr. Crandell’ s experience as an analyst of the energy
industry helps provide a different perspective for the Company.

Mr. Eads provides valuable service and experience to the Audit Committee, due to his MBA degree and 40
years of experience in the energy industry and in his previousrolesin senior executive management where
he worked to identify and mitigate risk. Mr. Eads has also been an active member of the Nationa
Association of Corporate Directors (NACD) since 2010, achieving the NACD’s Governance Fellow
recognition, the highest standard of credentialing for directors and governance professionals, and recently
achieved the NACD Directorship Certification. He currently serves on the Board for the Tri-Cities Chapter
NACD. Mr. Eads dgnificant internationa experience and deep expertise in heath and
safety/environmental/regulatory compliance; risk assessment; supply chain management; and large
construction projects, together with his 12 years of experience as an executive officer of two public
companies, which included SEC reporting, mergers and acquisitions evauations and integration,
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pay/performance programs, and asset rationalization efforts including a public company spin-off, and
private equity sales, makes him well qualified to serve as a director of the Company.

Ms. Reed has served as a chief human resources officer of two public companies since 2013. Her expertise
in executive compensation, succession planning and talent management, and diversity, equity, andinclusion
provide the board with significant insight on these key risk areas. Ms. Reed has devel oped experience and
expertise in corporate communications including internal and external messaging, brand and reputation
management, as well as media relations in a large corporate environment. As a result of this experience,
Ms. Reed has had extensive board exposure and uses that background and knowledge to help provide a
perspective on these evolving risk aress.

The following are some of the key qualifications and skills of our Board.

Alario | Bonno | Cherechinsky | Cobb | Coppinger | Crandell | Eads Reed
CEO/Former CEO . .
Financial . . . . . .
Acumen/Expert
Operations . . . . .
L eadership
ESG Experience . . . . . . .
International . . . . . . . .
Exposure/Experience
Qil & Gas Industry . . . . . . . .
Technology Systems . . . .
Diversity . .
Strategic Planning . . . . . . . .
Background
Age 67 64 58 68 61 68 71 48
Gender Male | Female Male Male Male Male Male | Female
Ethnicity White | White White White White White | White | Hispanic
Y ear joined Board 2014 2014 2020 2014 2017 2014 2014 2021
Other Boards 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
| ndependent . . . . . . .
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Composition

The Audit Committeeis currently comprised of three members: Rodney Eads, Committee Chairman, Terry
Bonno, and Galen Cobb. The Board of Directors has determined that al of the members of the Audit
Committee are independent based on the guidelines set forth by the NYSE and SEC rules for the
independence of Audit Committee members. The Board of Directors has also determined that all members
of the Audit Committee meet the NY SE standard of having accounting or related financial management
expertise and meet the SEC' s criteria of an Audit Committee Financial Expert.

Oversight Responsibilities

Under the Audit Committee Charter, which is available for review on the Company’s website at
www.distributionnow.com, under the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance section, the Audit
Committee's primary purpose is to assist the Board of Directorsin fulfilling its oversight responsibilities.
In that regard, the Audit Committee’'s primary purposes and functions are: (i) monitoring the integrity of
the Company’s financial statements, financial reporting processes, systems of internal controls regarding
finance, and disclosure controls and procedures; (ii) selecting and appointing the Company’ s independent
auditors, pre-approving al audit and non-audit services to be provided, consistent with all applicable laws
and regulations, to the Company by the Company’s independent auditors, and establishing the fees and
other compensation to be paid to the independent auditors; (iii) monitoring the independence and
performance of the Company’s independent auditors and internal audit function; (iv) establishing
procedures for the receipt, retention, response to and treatment of complaints, including confidential and/or
anonymous submissions by the Company’ s employees, regarding accounting, internal controls, disclosure
or auditing matters, and providing an avenue of communication among the independent auditors,
management, the internal audit function, and the Board; and (v) monitoring the Company’s compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. Specifically, with respect to oversight of accounting, internal
controls and disclosure matters, as well as oversight of the Company’ s compliance with various legal and
regulatory requirements, the Audit Committee, as appropriate, but at least on a quarterly basis, reviews al
reports generated by the Company’s independently administered employee hotline and other corporate
governance hotline systems. The Audit Committee also reviews, on a quarterly basis, reports from the
Company’s enterprise  risk management system, cybersecurity monitoring system, and
ESG monitoring system, and reports to the full Board on these matters.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is not the Audit Committee’s duty to determine that the Company's
financial statements are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) or to conduct audits. In carrying out its duties, the Audit Committee relies on the
Company’s senior management, specifically senior financial management. Our Company management is
responsible for establishing a system of interna controls, assessing such controls and for preparing our
consolidated financia statements in accordance with GAAP. Management is also responsible for assuring
compliance with laws and regulations and the Company’s corporate policies. Our independent registered
public accountants are responsible for auditing our consolidated financia statements and the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting in accordance with standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (the "PCAOB") and issuing their reports based on those audits. During each
regularly scheduled quarterly meeting in 2021, the Audit Committee met separately in executive session
with both the interna audit director and the independent audit partner, without Company’s senior
management being present.
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Oversight of I ndependent Auditor

The Audit Committee reviews in advance and pre-approves audit and non-audit services provided to the
Company by the independent auditors. The Audit Committeeisalso directly responsiblefor reviewing with
the independent registered public accountants the plans and scope of the audit engagement and providing
an open venue of communication between management, the internal audit function, the independent
registered public accountants, and the Board.

In connection with the selection and appointment of the independent auditors each year, the Audit
Committee reviews and evaluates the qualifications, performance and independence of the independent
auditors and lead partner, including taking into account the opinions of management and the Company’s
internal auditor. In doing so, the Audit Committee considers a number of factors including, but not limited
to: quality of services provided; technica expertise and knowledge of the industry; effective
communication; objectivity; independence; costs of services considering scope of services as compared to
independent auditor costs of similar size public companiesin sameindustry sector; and the potential impact
of changing independent auditors. Based on this evaluation, the Audit Committee has retained Ernst &
Young LLP (*EY”) as the Company’s independent auditors for 2022. EY has been the Company’s
independent auditors since 2013, and the Company’ s current lead partner has been engaged since 2019.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors believe that it isin the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders to continue retention of EY to serve as our independent auditors. Although the Audit
Committee has the sole authority to appoint the independent auditors, the Audit Committee will continue
to recommend that the Board of Directors request the stockholders at the Annual Meeting to ratify the
appointment of the independent auditors.

2021 Audited Financial Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with senior management the audited financial statements
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. Management has confirmed to the Audit
Committee that such financial statements have been prepared with integrity and objectivity and in
conformity with GAAP. Non-GAAP measures reported by management are reviewed by the Audit
Committee to ensure transparency and consistency.

The Audit Committee discussed with EY, the Company’ s independent auditors, the matters required to be
discussed by the applicable requirements of the PCAOB, which included theidentification of Critical Audit
Metters.

The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from EY required by applicable
requirements of the PCAOB regarding EY's communication with the Audit Committee concerning
independence and has discussed with the independent auditors any relationships that may impact their
objectivity and independence.

Based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited
financial statements be included in the Company’s 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Member s of the Audit Committee
Rodney Eads, Committee Chairman
Terry Bonno
Galen Cobb
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RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
PROPOSAL NO. 20N THE PROXY CARD

Information Regarding our Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has reappointed Ernst & Young LLP as independent
auditors for 2022. Stockholders are being asked to vote upon the ratification of the appointment.
Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP will attend the Annual Meeting, where they will be available to
respond to appropriate questions and have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire.

Vote Required for Approval

The proposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Y oung LL P asindependent auditorswill require approval
of a majority of the shares of our common stock entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy. In
accordance with NY SE rules, a proposal to ratify independent auditorsis considered to be a“discretionary”
item. This means that brokerage firms may vote in their discretion on this matter on behalf of beneficial
ownerswho have not furnished voting instructionswithin the time period specified in the voting instructions
submitted by such brokerage firms. Abstentions, which will be counted as votes present for the purpose of
determining a quorum, will have the effect of a vote against the proposal. Y our shares will be voted as you
specify on your proxy. If your proxy does not specify how you want your shares voted, we will vote them
for the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Y oung LLP asindependent auditors.

Audit Fees

The Audit Committee pre-approves services provided by the Company’s independent auditors to the
Company and its subsidiaries. Consideration and approval of such services generally occursintheregularly
scheduled quarterly meetings of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has delegated the Chairman
of the Audit Committee to pre-approve allowed non-audit services, subject to review by the full committee
at the next regularly scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of all
services other than those rendered for the audit of the Company’s financial statements is compatible with
maintaining Ermst & Young LLP's independence and has concluded that their independence is not
compromised.

The following table setsforth Ernst & Young LLP sfees for services rendered during 2020 and 2021. All
services provided by Ernst & Young LLP were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

2021 2020
Audit Fees $1,516,798 $1,517,338
Audit Related Fees @ $232,500 $125,000
Tax Fees $10,691 $23,248
All Other Fees - -
Totd $1,759,989 $1,665,586

@ Consists of fees for audits of employee benefit plans and due diligence services on potential
acquisitions.

Your Board of Directorsrecommends that you vote* FOR” the proposal to ratify the appointment
of Ernst & Young LLP.
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APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION OF OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
PROPOSAL NO. 30N THE PROXY CARD

A proposal will be presented at the meeting asking stockholders to approve on an advisory basis the
compensation of the Company’s named executive officers as described in this proxy statement.

Why You Should Approve our Executive Compensation Program

The Company’ s compensation philosophy is designed to attract and retain executive talent and emphasize
pay for performance, including the creation of stockholder value. The Company encouragesits stockhol ders
to read the Executive Compensation section of this proxy statement, including the compensation tables, as
well as the Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A) section of this proxy statement, for a more
detailed discussion of our compensation programs and policies. The Company believes its compensation
programs and policies are appropriate and effective in implementing its compensation philosophy, in
achieving its goals, and that they are aligned with stockholder interests and worthy of stockholder support.

We believe that stockholders should consider the following in determining whether to approve this
proposal:

Compensation Program is Closely Linked to Stockholder Value

An important and significant portion of each executive’'s compensation at the Company is in the form of
long-term incentive awards, which are directly linked to the Company’ s performance and the creation of
stockholder value. The Company’ slong-term incentive awards, starting with itsfirst annual grant in 2015,
have historically consisted of: stock options, time-based restricted stock and performance-based share
awards. Performance-based share awards comprise 50% of each executive's current long-term incentive
awards. We believe this mix appropriately motivates long-term performance and rewards executives for
absolute gains in share price, performance against designated metrics and relative financial performance
against a designated peer group.

Strong Pay-for-Performance Orientation

The Company’s annual and long-term incentive programs pay its named executive officers only if certain
performance metrics (absolute and/or relative) are achieved. Thus, two of the three components of an
executive' s pay at the Company are based on performance.

Compensation Program Has Appropriate L ong-term Orientation

Minimum three-year vesting for equity awards. The Company encourages a long-term orientation by its
executives through the use of three-year vesting requirements for annual grants of restricted stock and
performance-based awards.

Summary of Good Governance and Risk Mitigating Factors

e Limited Bonus payouts. Bonus awards cannot exceed 200% of target, limiting excessive awards
for short-term performance.

e Balanced pay mix: The mix of pay is balanced between annua and long-term compensation.

e Multiple year vesting of long-term incentives: Long-term incentive awards do not fully vest until
aminimum of three years after the grant.
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e CEO Pay: CEO base salary level during 2021 waswell below the competitive peer median (below
the market 25" percentile) and actual total direct compensation was also below the competitive
peer median.

e Adoption of Executive and Board Stock Ownership Guiddlines: Stock ownership guidelinesfor its
executive officers and directors to better align the interests of the Company’s executive officers
and directors and the Company’ s stockhol ders by requiring executives and directors to accumulate
and retain ameaningful level of the Company’s stock.

o Clawback Policy: Awards of long-term equity compensation and compensation under the
Company’s annual cash incentive plan can be terminated by the Compensation Committee if it
determines that the recipient of such award has engaged in material misconduct.

e COVID-19: The Company did not make any adjustments to the compensation for its named
executive officers, including no adjustments to the performance metrics or targets in its
compensation programs that its named executive officers participate in, as aresult of the COVID-
19 pandemic.

Shareholder Outreach - Say on Pay Feedback

The Company’s 2021 Say on Pay voteat the May 2021 annual meeting received approximately 95% support
from our sharehol ders. The Compensation Committee continued to make enhancementsto its compensation
planin 2021 asfollows:

(1) decreased the working capital metric (i.e. lower working capital percentages indicate higher
achievement by the Company) in the annual incentive awards to make achievement more
challenging;

(2) added four new companies and eliminated four companies from the peer group to enhance and
improve the comparisons between the Company and its peer group; and

(3) did not make any adjustments to the compensation for its named executive officers, including
no adjustments to the performance metrics or targets in its compensation programs that its named
executive officers participate in, as aresult of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Compensation Committee continues its efforts to ensure that the executive compensation program is
optimally designed to reflect shareholder values, enhances the link between executive pay and company
performance, responds to changing market practices and retains effective leaders who have a significant
understanding of our business, particularly during a cyclical economic environment.

Shareholder Resolution

The Company’ s compensation program for its named executive officers has been thoughtfully designed to
support the Company’ s long-term business strategies and drive creation of stockholder value. The program
does not encourage excessive risk-taking by management. It is aigned with the competitive market for
talent and is highly sensitive to Company performance. The Company believes its program will deliver
reasonable pay that is strongly linked to Company performance over time.

The following resolution will be submitted for a stockholder vote at the 2022 annual meeting:
“RESOLVED, that the stockholders of the Company approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation
of the Company’s named executive officers listed in the 2021 Summary Compensation Table included in

the proxy statement for this meeting, as such compensation is disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of
Regulation S-K in this proxy statement under the section entitled “ Executive Compensation”, including the
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compensation tables and other narrative executive compensation disclosures set forth under that section, as
well as the section in the proxy statement entitled “ Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

This advisory vote on the compensation of the Company’s named executive officers gives
stockholders another mechanism to convey their views about the Company’ s compensation programs and
policies. Although your vote on executive compensation is not binding on the Company, the Board values
the views of stockholders. The Board and Compensation Committee will review the results of the vote and
take them into consideration in addressing future compensation policies and decisions.

Your Board of Directorsrecommendsthat you vote* FOR” the proposal to approvethe
compensation of our named executive officers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

NOW’s Board of Directors is committed to promoting transparency in reporting information about the
Company, complying with the spirit as well as the literal requirements of applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and corporate behavior that conforms to corporate governance standards that substantially
exceed the consensus view of minimum acceptabl e corporate governance standards. The Board of Directors
adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines which established provisions for the Board’s composition and
function, Board committees and committee membership, evaluation of director independence, the roles of
the independent Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, the evaluation of the Chief
Executive Officer, regular meetings of non-employee directors, board conduct and review, selection and
orientation of directors, director compensation, accessto management and i ndependent advisors, and annual
review of the Corporate Governance Guidedlines. A copy of the Corporate Governance Guiddlines is
available on the Company’s website, www.distributionnow.com, under the Investor Relations/Corporate
Governance section. The Company will furnish print copies of the Corporate Governance Guidelines, as
well as its Committee charters, to interested stockholders without charge, upon request. Written requests
for such copies should be addressed to the Secretary of the Company at the address listed herein.

Highlights
We maintain astrong and proactive approach to corporate governance, as follows:

Active Board and committees of the Board providing oversight of areas of risk to the Company;
Independent Chairman of the Board serving as the lead director;

Independent committee chairs and members,

Stock Ownership Guidelines for Executive Officers and Directors;

Clawback policy to recover executive compensation;

Annual Board and committee self-eval uations and assessments;

Board engagement with Chief Executive Officer over Management Success on Planning;
Declassified Board resolution passed in 2020 with a staggered three year rollout with one-year
director termsfor al directors beginning in 2023; and

» Directors meet in executive sessions without management present.

Director Independence

The Corporate Governance Guidelines address, among other things, standards for evaluating the
independence of the Company’ sdirectors. The Board undertakes an annual review of director independence
and considers transactions and relationships during the prior year between each director or any member of
his or her immediate family and the Company and its affiliates, including those reported under “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in this Proxy Statement. In February 2022, asaresult of thisannua
review, the Board affirmatively determined that a majority of the members of the Board of Directors are
independent of the Company and its management under the standards set forth in the Corporate Governance
Guidelines. The following directors were affirmed as independent: Richard Alario, Terry Bonno, Galen
Cobb, Paul Coppinger, James Crandell, Rodney Eads, and Sonya Reed. In making these independence
determinations, our Board of Directors considered the current and prior relationships that each non-
employee director has with our Company and all other facts and circumstances our Board of Directors
deemed relevant.

Boar d L eader ship — I ndependent Chairman of the Board

Currently, the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are not combined at the
Company. The Company believesthe current leadership structure delineates the separate roles of managers
and directors. Our Chief Executive Officer sets the strategic direction for the Company, working with the
Board, and providing day-to-day leadership. Our independent Chairman of the Board leads the Board in
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the performance of its duties and serves as the principal liaison between the independent directors and the
Chief Executive Officer.

To assist with providing independent oversight of management and the Company’s strategy, the non-
employee members of the Board of Directors have appointed Richard Alario as the independent Chairman
of the Board (the " Independent Chair”). The Independent Chair isresponsiblefor: (1) chairing al meetings
of the Board at which the Chair is present, (2) working with the Chief Executive Officer on the scheduling
of Board meetings and the preparation of agendas and materialsfor Board meetings, (3) defining the quality,
quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between senior management and the Board, (4)
approving, in consultation with the other directors, the retention of consultants who report directly to the
Board, (5) developing the agenda for and presiding over the executive sessions of the Board's non-
management directors, (6) facilitating communications amongst the Chairman of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer and other members of the Board, (7) coordinating, with the Chief Executive Officer, the
assessment of the committee structure, organization, and charters, and eval uating the need for any changes,
(8) acting as principal liaison between the non-management directors and the Chief Executive Officer on
matters dealt with in executive session, and (9) assuming such further tasks as the independent directors
may determine.

The Board holds executive sessions on a quarterly basis at which only non-employee directors are present.
In addition, the committees of the Board provide independent oversight of management. Each of the
committees of the Board is composed entirely of independent directors,

The Board has concluded that this structure is in the best interest of stockholders because it provides an
appropriate balance between our independent Chairman’s ability to lead the Board and to provide
independent objective oversight of our management, and the Chief Executive Officer’s ability to provide
strategic direction for the Company and lead the Company on a day-to-day basis.

Board Rolein Risk Oversight

The Board of Directors and its committees help conduct certain risk oversight functions for the Company.
The Board is periodically advised on the status of various factors that could impact the business and
operating results of the Company, including oil and gas prices and other economic conditions. The full
Board is also responsible for reviewing the Company’s strategy, business plan, and capital expenditure
budget at least annually. Through these various functions, the Board is able to monitor these risks and assist
the Company in determining whether certain mitigating actions, if any, need to be taken.

The Audit Committee serves an important role in providing risk oversight, asfurther detailed inits charter.
One of the Audit Committee's primary duties and responsibilities is to monitor the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, financial reporting processes, systems of interna controls regarding
finance, and disclosure controls and procedures. The Audit Committee is aso responsible for establishing
procedures for the receipt, retention, response to and treatment of complaints, including confidential and/or
anonymous submissions by the Company’ s employees, regarding accounting, internal controls, disclosure
or auditing matters, and providing an avenue of communication among the independent auditors,
management, and the internal audit function and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee monitorsthe
Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, as well as the Company’s cybersecurity
risks (which the Audit Committee considers at each quarterly meeting and at other times on an as needed
basis). The Company considers the Audit Committee an important part of the risk management process
and senior management works closely with the Audit Committee on these matters in managing material
risks to the Company.

The other committees of the Board also assist in the risk oversight function. The Environmental, Social,
Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Board and its committees are
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appropriately constituted so that the Board and its directors may effectively meet their fiduciary obligations
to stockholders and the Company. The Environmental, Social, Governance and Nominating Committeeis
also responsible for monitoring and evaluating on an annual basis the effectiveness of the Board and
management of the Company, including their effectiveness in implementing the policies and principles of
the Corporate Governance Guidelines and overseeing the Company’s ESG efforts. The Compensation
Committeeis responsible for compensation of the Company’ s directors and executive officers. The various
responsibilities of these committees allow them to work with the Company to make sure these areas do not
pose undue risks to the Company.

Risk Assessment in Compensation Programs

Consistent with SEC disclosure requirements, the Company, its Compensation Committee, and the
Compensation Committee’s independent compensation consultant assess the Company's compensation
programs on an annual basis and have determined that the Company’ s compensation policies and practices
do not createrisksthat are reasonably likely to have amateria adverse effect on the Company. On an annual
basis, Company management, the Compensation Committee and the Compensation Committee’s
compensation consultant will assess the Company's executive compensation programs to determine if the
programs' provisions and operations create undesired or unintentional risks of amateria nature.

The Company’s variable forms of compensation, namely the annual cash incentive bonus program and
long-term equity incentives, have structural limitations and other mitigating controls which are designed to
prevent the Company from being exposed to unexpected or unbudgeted materially adverse events. For
example, bonus payments to an executive under the annual cash incentive bonus program are capped at a
certain percentage of the executive' s base salary while restricted stock and stock options granted under the
Company’s long-term equity incentive plan are fixed values resulting in a fixed number of shares (i.e.,
targeted award val ue to determine number of shares).

The Company, the Compensation Committee, and the Compensation Committee’s consultant believe that
the Company’ s compensation policies and practices do not create inappropriate or unintended significant
risks to the Company as a whole. The Company and the Compensation Committee aso believe that the
Company’s incentive compensation arrangements provide incentives that do not encourage risk-taking
beyond the organization's ability to effectively identify and manage significant risks and are supported by
the oversight and administration of the Compensation Committee with regard to executive compensation
programs.

Policies on Business Ethics and Conduct

The Company has a long-standing Business Ethics Policy. The Board adopted the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics For Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers and the Code of Ethics
for Senior Financia Officers. These codes are designed to focus the Board and management on areas of
ethical risk, provide guidance to personnel to help them recognize and deal with ethical issues, provide
mechanisms to report unethical conduct and help to foster a culture of honesty and accountability. As set
forth in the Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Board may not waive the application of the Company’s
policies on business ethics and conduct for any Director or Executive Officer. Copies of the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics For Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers and the Code
of Ethics for Senior Financid Officers, as well as the code of ethics applicable to employees of the
Company, are available on the Company’s website, www.distributionnow.com, under the Investor
Relations/Corporate Governance section. The Company will furnish print copies of these Codes to
interested stockholders without charge, upon request. Written requests for such copies should be addressed
to the Secretary of the Company at the address listed herein.
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Environment

We are committed to working to minimize our
impact on the environment through energy
management, conservation initiatives,
responsible water conservation and recycling,
where applicable.

Social

We strive to invest in our employees, our
communities and the industries in which we
operate. We engage and support many

organizations and groups in the communities
where we operate globally.

Governance

We are committed to and recognize the
importance of good corporate governance and
high ethical standards. Our Code of Business
and Ethical Standards enhances our
relationships with key stakeholders, including
our people, customers, suppliers, other
partners, shareholders and local communities
across the world.

Environmental, Social and Gover nance Oversight and Highlights

Company management formed an Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) Committee in 2019 to
oversee the creation, identification, measurement, and disclosure of sustainability performance data most
relevant to the Company’s operations. This committee is comprised of representatives from various
departments across the Company including members of the executive management team. The Company
published its 2020 Sustainability Report in September 2021 which is available on the Company’ s website
at: https:.//www.dnow.com/company/corporate-citi zenship/corporate-sustai nability#aboutReport.  This
report isnot part of or incorporated by referenceinto this Proxy Statement or with our other filingswith the
SEC.

With the oversight of the Environmental, Social, Governance, and Nominating Committee of the Board of
Directors, the ESG Committee ensures that the relevant sustainability metrics and disclosures align with
the Company’ s strategic plan and that the results are communicated to stakeholders. The ESG Committee
coordinates with Internal Audit through the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
disclosure of mattersin financia statements and reports related to ESG are truthful and accurate.
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DNOW Board of
Directors

Environmental,
Social, Governance,

and Nominating
Committee

ESG Committee Internal Audit

* The diagram above represents the working relationship between the various committees and departments
playing arolein corporate governance oversight at the Company.

The Company recognizes that ESG objectives have a significant impact to its core business strategy and
drive for innovative ways for the Company to increase engagement while contributing to the environmental
and safety objectives of our customers. Further, the Company is focused on proactively exploring
alternative and renewable markets in the event that the United States or the other countries where the
Company operates impose climate change regulations on the oil and natura gas industry.

One of our Board' s primary responsibilitiesis overseeing and working with management on risk assessment
and managing and mitigating these risks, including risks related to climate change and other ESG related
matters. The Board of Directors meets with Company management at regular Board meetings and, as
needed, at other times to discuss the strategy in addressing these key risks along with any other risks we
may face. On at least a quarterly basis, the Board of Directors also receives specific environmental data as
well as specific human management resources data for review, analysis and discussion with the Company.
The Board of Directors not only provides oversight in these areas, but also provides input to the Company
and assists with business strategies to improve the Company’ s operations taking into consideration this data
aswell as factoring in other risk areas.
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DNOW Business Strategy

Distribute products to both the full energy value chain and industrial sectors

Become a preferred supplier to customers through increased efficiency of
supply chain and materials management solutions

Diversify customer base through more balanced energy end-markets, including renewable
energy, carbon capture, utilization and storage ("CCUS"), mining, and municipal water

Invest in digitalization, such as DigitalNOW®, to disrupt the market by transitioning
products through an evolving digital and more efficient infrastructure

Increase efficiency and productivity through structural transformation

Continue to drive growth through acquisitions

Our ESG Focus Areas Advance the Achievement of Our Business Strategy

Environmental Social Governance
Emissions Reduction Services ) )
& Fuels Management Workforce Diversity _ _
& Inclusion Business Ethics & Payments

. . Transparency
Energy Management in Retail

& Distribution

Workforce Health & Safety
Opportunities for Enabling
Customer Sustainability

Management of the Legal &
Regulatory Environment

Opportunities for Serving Data Security
Renewable Energy Markets

Sustainability

We can assist in reducing emissions of greenhouse gases in our operations by creating a more efficient
supply chain. An efficient supply chain can help reduce the carbon footprint of deliveriesto our distribution
centers and branches and, ultimately to our customers. Use of our large centralized supercenters and
regional distribution centers allow usto aggregate product across multiple suppliers and customers, which,
in turn, prevents each customer from separately creating duplicative supply chains that require fuel for
deliveries and resources to manage.

Asadistributor, we perform minimal manufacturing operations. We do not utilize large amounts of water.
Our energy inputsare primarily electricity for lighting, heating and office and warehouse equi pment, natural
gas for heating and gasoline for company sales and delivery vehicles. We strive to make our operations
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more efficient, and in turn try to work to reduce use of these resources and resulting emissions. We have
recycling programs to try and reduce waste from used cardboard, office paper and other recyclables.
However, recycling programs are sometimes limited by the unavailability of users, haulers or purchasers
for recyclable materials at reasonable costs.

We are a distributor of products that contain and control the movement of gases and fluids in an efficient
and sustainable manner. The products we sell are designed by the manufacturers of those products to
prevent and minimize accidental leaks of hydrocarbons. Additionally, we offer product lines that further
aid in the mitigation of environmental impact. Examples of such products include: domestically produced
goods; low emission rated valves; steel piping products produced from recycled scrap; glass reinforced
epoxy piping systems; vapor recovery units that capture volatile organic compounds in an effort to limit
and reduce emissions to the atmosphere; produced water transfer and water injection packages that
environmentally dispose of produced water; and pipe produced using wind power, recycled water, and
wood pellet inputs.

Social

We are committed to advancing an inclusive environment where diversity is appreciated and encouraged,
and al employees have a sense of belonging throughout our organization. We recognize the opportunity to
drive diversity in our workforce through talent acquisition and retention because we know that one of our
greatest strengthsis the diverse and different perspectives of our team members. We recognize that having
a team with a broad range of experience, cultural characteristics and varying perspectives fortifies our
brand.

In addition, by directly engaging people in the communities we serve, we create a transparent dialogue to
try to listen and learn from aternative views in how we conduct our business. We have also implemented
our DNOW Lights program to service the communities we serve through volunteering and fundraising
efforts for various charities.

Shareholder Engagement

Following our 2021 annual meeting, we reached out to our top institutional investors representing over 60%
of total ownership of the Company to discuss our updates on Board composition and ESG related matters
and to receive any feedback on those items as well as executive compensation, amongst other topics. Asa
result of this outreach, we had direct discussions with two of our top shareholders representing
approximately 27% of our stock ownership and gained positive feedback from those conversations. We
also discussed how Board diversity and ESG oversight from the Board would continue to be afocus for our
Company moving forward.

Communicationswith Directors

The Board has provided a process for interested parties to communicate with our non-employee directors.
Parties wishing to communicate confidentially with our non-employee directors may do so by calling 1-
866-880-2773. This procedure is described on the Company’ s website, www.distributionnow.com, in the
Investor Rel ations/Corporate Governance section. Callsto this number will be answered by an independent,
automated system 24 hours aday, 365 days ayear. A transcript of the call will be delivered to amember of
the Audit Committee. Parties wishing to send written communicationsto the Board, other than sales-rel ated
communications, should send a letter addressed to the member or members of the Board to whom the
communication is directed care of the Secretary of the Company at the address listed herein. All such
communications will be forwarded to the Board member or members specified.
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Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

The Company does not have a formal policy with respect to director attendance at annual stockholder
mestings. In 2021, all members of the Board were in attendance at the annual meeting.

NY SE Cor por ate Gover nance M atters

Asalisted company with the NY SE, our Chief Executive Officer, asrequired under Section 303A.12(a) of
the NY SE Listed Company Manual, must certify to the NY SE each year whether or not heis aware of any
violation by the Company of NYSE Corporate Governance listing standards as of the date of the
certification. On May 26, 2021, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer submitted such a certification to
the NY SE which stated that he was not aware of any violation by the Company of the NY SE Corporate
Governance listing standards.

On February 17, 2022, the Company filed its 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K with the SEC, which

included as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer certifications
required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following persons are our current executive officers. The executive officers of the Company serve at
the pleasure of the Board of Directors and are subject to annual appointment by the Board of Directors.
None of the executive officers, directors, or nominees for director has any family relationships with each

other.

Name

Age

Position

Biography

David Cherechinsky

58

President and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. Cherechinsky has served as President
and Chief Executive Officer and been a
director of the Company since June 2020.
Prior to serving as President and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Cherechinsky served
as the Company’s Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer from February 2018
until  June 2020. Mr. Cherechinsky
previoudy served as Vice President,
Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer from February 2014 until February
2018. Mr. Cherechinsky served as Vice
President—Finance for NOV'’s distribution
business group from 2003, and as Vice
President—Finance for NOV’s Distribution
& Transmission business segment from
2011, until the Company’s spin-off in May
2014. He previously served NOV starting in
1989 in various corporate roles, including
internal auditor, credit management and
business analyst, and isa CPA.

Mark Johnson

40

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

Mr. Johnson has served as the Company’s
Senior Vice President and Chief Financia
Officer since June 2020. Mr. Johnson
previously served as the Company’s Vice
President, Corporate Controller and Chief
Accounting Officer from February 2018 until
June 2020. Mr. Johnson also served as the
Company’s Vice President — Finance and
Assistant Corporate Controller from May
2014 until February 2018. Mr. Johnson
served as Vice President — Finance for the
NOV Distribution business group from 2012
until the Company’s spin-off in May 2014.
Before joining NOV in 2008, he worked in
public accounting and is a CPA.

Raymond Chang

51

Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Mr. Chang has served asthe Company’sVice
Presdent and General Counsel since
February 2014. Mr. Chang served as NOV'’s
Vice President, Assistant General Counsel
and Assistant Secretary from 2009 until the
Company’s spin-off in May 2014. He
previousy served NOV starting in 2001 in
various positions within its legal department.
Prior to joining NOV, he was an associate at
thelaw firm of Baker & McKenziefrom 1997
until 2001.
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Name

Age

Position

Biography

Kelly Munson

37

Chief Administrative and
Information Officer

Ms. Munson has served as the Company’s
Chief Adminigtrative and Information
Officer since March 2020. Prior to this role,
she served as the Company’s Director of
Organizational Development and Human
Resources responsible for global HR and
Organization Development, Human
Resource  Information  Systems and
Recruiting. Ms. Munson has been with the
Company and its predecessor since 2009 and
has held progressively increasing roles in
employee training and development,
organization development, talent
management and leadership development.
Ms. Munson is a member of the Energy
Workforce & Technology Council (formerly
the Petroleum Equipment and Services
Association) HR committee and Diversity
and Inclusion Program committee and was a
past member of its Emerging Leaders
committee.

Rocio Surratt

46

Vice President — Finance and
Corporate Controller

Ms. Surratt has served as the Company’s
Vice President Finance and Corporate
Controller since July 2020. Ms. Surratt also
served as the Company’s Vice President of
Finance from May 2014 until September
2018. Ms. Surratt served as Director —
Finance for the NOV Distribution business
group from 2012 until the Company’s spin-
off in May 2014, and as International
Controller from 2007 to 2012. Before joining
NOV in 2007, she worked in public
accounting.
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STOCK OWNERSHIP

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Based on information filed with the SEC as of the most recent practicable date, this table shows the number
and percentage of shares beneficialy owned by owners of more than five percent of the outstanding shares of
the common stock of the Company at December 31, 2021. The number and percentage of shares of common
stock beneficialy owned isbased on 109,951,610 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2021.

No. of Per cent
5% Owners Shares of Class
BlackRock, Inc. @ 17,477 447 15.90%
55 East 52™ Street
New York, NY 10055
The Vanguard Group @ 12,259,219 11.15%

100 Vanguard Blvd.
Malvem, PA 19355

(1)

(2)

Shares owned at December 31, 2021, asreflected in Amendment No. 8 to Schedule 13G filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2022, by BlackRock, Inc. (“BlackRock). Within the BlackRock group are
the following subsidiaries: BlackRock Life Limited, BlackRock Advisors, LLC, Aperio Group,
LLC, BlackRock (Netherlands) B.V., BlackRock Fund Advisors, BlackRock Institutional Trust
Company, National Association, BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Limited, BlackRock
Financial Management, Inc., BlackRock Asset Management Schweiz AG, BlackRock Investment
Management, LLC, BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited, BlackRock Asset
Management Canada Limited, BlackRock Investment Management (Australia) Limited and
BlackRock Fund Managers Ltd

Shares owned at December 31, 2021, as reflected in Amendment No. 7 to Schedule 13G filed with
the SEC on February 10, 2022, by The Vanguard Group.
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Security Ownership of Management

Thistable shows the number and percentage of shares of the Company’s common stock beneficially owned
as of March 28, 2022 by each of our current directors and executive officers and by all current directors
and executive officers as a group. The number and percentage of shares of common stock beneficialy
owned is based on 111,850,667 shares outstanding as of March 28, 2022. Beneficial ownership includes
any shares asto which the director or executive officer has the right to acquire within 60 days of March 28,
2022 through the exercise of any stock option, warrant or other right. Each stockholder has sole voting and
investment power, or shares these powerswith his/her spouse, with respect to the shares beneficially owned.

Shares Beneficially Owned
Outstanding
Options
Number of  Exercisable
Common Within 60 Per cent

Name of Individual Shares® Days of Class*
Richard AlarO. . .....oe e e 211,766 0 *
Terry BONNO. ... .o e e 69,728 0 *
Raymond Chang...........coooeve e e e 198,722 272,824 *
David ChereChinsKy ....ccccocuveuieiie e e e e e 403,534 331,885 *
Galen Cobb... ... 67,328 0 *
Paul COPPINGEY ... e et e e e e 49,766 0 *
James Crandell...........ouii i 72,328 0 *
RodNgy EadS........ocoviiie e e 72,592 0 *
Mark JONNSON. ...t e e e e 87,003 118,301 *
KeElY MUNSON......eie e e e e e e 51,664 52,922 *
SONYaREEA..... oo 15,094 0 *
ROCIO SUIMaLt.......evi i e 19,086 4,181 *
All current directors and executive officers as a group
(L2 PEISONS) ... vt ettt et e et e et e e e e e eeae s 1,318,611 780,113 1.9%

*Lessthan 1 percent.

DIncludes shares deemed held by executive officers and directors in the Company’s 401(k) plans and
deferred compensation plans.
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
General Overview

NOW Inc.’s executive compensation program is administered by the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee establishes specific compensation levels for the
Company’s executive officers and administers the Company’s long-term incentive award plans. The
Compensation Committee’'s objective regarding executive compensation is to design and implement a
compensation program that will attract and retain the best available individual s to serve on the Company’s
executive team and properly incentivize those executives to achieve the Company’s short-term and long-
term financia and operational goals. To this end, the Compensation Committee strives to provide
compensation packages for key executives that generaly offer compensation opportunities in the median
range of the companies in its designated peer group as described below. Data sources reviewed by the
Compensation Committee and its independent compensation consultants include industry survey groups,
national survey databases, proxy disclosures and general trend data, which are updated annually. The
Compensation Committee reviews al elements of executive compensation both separately and in the

aggregate.

Major components of the executive compensation program for 2021 were base salary, participation in the
Company'sannual cash incentive (bonus) plan and the grant of non-qualified stock options, restricted stock,
and performance-based restricted stock awards (long-term incentives).

Participants

Thefollowingisalist of our named executive officers by name and position, as of December 31, 2021

Name Position
David Cherechinsky President and Chief Executive Officer
Mark Johnson Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Raymond Chang Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
Kelly Munson Chief Administrative and Information Officer
Rocio Surratt Vice President — Finance and Corporate Controller
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DNOW Strategy to Unlock Value

>

Optimize

m Operations

Through

1)

Deliver Margin Discipline

Using pricing discipline and leveraging technology in e-commerce efforts
Optimizing distribution network and product mix

Growing with strategic suppliers by signing MRO agreements
Continuing to tightly manage expenses

2)

Optimize Operations

Scale size and number of locations to match market opportunity and build
a centralized fulfillment model

Maximize regional distribution centers for stock fulfillment strategy
Invest in, train, and develop our human capital

Cost transformation to align to market demand and preserve our balance
sheet

3)

Maximize Working Capital
Velocity

Invest in organic and inorganic growth

Focus capital on high value-add Supply Chain Solutions and Process
Solutions

Leverage inventory investment by optimizing DOI

Allocate capital to high value-add product lines

Continue to conservatively manage debt and increase cash position

4)

Drive Growth Through
Acquisitions

Highly selective in evaluating targets in the current environment
Leverage acquired product lines to gain organic share

Promote cross-selling into Energy operations at higher margins
Seek high value-add products and solutions

Increase barriers to entry

Divestment of non-core and unprofitable businesses
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2021 Performance Overview
In 2021, the Company had the following highlights:

e Revenuein 2021 of $1.632 billion;

* EBITDA of $45 million in 2021, an increase of $92 million year over year;

e Cash position of $313 million, zero debt, and a five-year extension to our $500 million global
revolving credit facility with potential to further increase the credit facility to $750 million;

* Record net working capital of 12.28% at the end of 2021;

* Acquiring Flex Flow Services to actively leverage M& A to deliver complimentary growth to
our exigting businesses;

* Implemented our DNOW Lights program to service the communities we serve through
volunteering and fundraising efforts for various charities;

» Fulfilled orders for equipment that help reduce customer’s greenhouse gas emissions tied
directly to their ESG emission targets; and

» Hired a Director of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) and created an internal Company
DEI Council to help create and establish a more inclusive work environment and diverse
employee base.

Market conditions fluctuated in 2021 as countries and their citizens continued to deal with the COVID-19
pandemic and the spread of new variants. As people began to resume work commutes, travel, and pre-
pandemic activities, we saw increasesin the price of domestic and foreign oil. Continuing into 2022, levels
of uncertainty still exist concerning the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic, but domestic and foreign ail
prices have responded favorably in the last severa months leading up to the date of thisreport. Amid these
changing dynamics, the Company continues to optimize operations, advance strategic goas and manage
the Company effectively based on market conditions. We have seen and experienced the benefits of the
significant cost transformation we began in 2020 by becoming profitable on lower revenue volume and
growing our gross margins to unprecedented levels. The Company believes it is in a solid position to
weather any challenging market conditions, given that we have achieved three straight profitable quarters,
have a cash balance of $313 million and no debt, and have talented employees guiding our Company not
only for success today, but also for generationsto come.

COvID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected the global economy, disrupted global supply chains and
created significant volatility in the financial markets. In addition, the pandemic has resulted in travel
restrictions, business closures and quarantining and other restrictions on movement in many communities.
As aresult, there was a significant reduction in demand for crude oil, natural gas and natural gasliquids.

Uncertainty ill exists concerning the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic, new potential variants and
their effects, the benefits of vaccines, and the overall impact on the economy and global oil and gas demand.
The Company has been able to stay open for business throughout the pandemic as its employees qualify as
essential critical infrastructure workers. The Company has implemented workplace restrictions in our
officesand work sitesfor health and safety reasons, including guidance for our employeesto work remotely
if able. We continue to monitor national, state and local government directives where we have operations
or offices. Further, we will continue to optimize our operations, advance our strategic goals and manage
the Company based on market conditions.

The Company did not make any adjustmentsto the compensation for its named executive officers, including

no adjustmentsto the performance metrics or targetsin its compensation programs that its named executive
officers participate in, as aresult of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Compensation Program Features

Our compensation program and policies include key features that are designed to align the interests of our
executives and stockholders and to mitigate compensation-related risks. The table below highlights our
practices:

What We Do What We Do Not Do

Pay for Performance No gross-up payments to cover excise taxes
or perquisites

Long-term incentives linked to stock price appreciation and No Guaranteed Annual or Multi-Y ear
company financial performance Bonuses

Annual Cash Incentive and Long-Term Incentives are No Repricing of Underwater Stock Options
subject to the Company’ s clawback policy

Bonus payments to executives under the annual cash No significant compensation in the form of
incentive program are capped at a certain percentage of the perquisites for executives
executive' s base salary

L ong-term incentive awards do not fully vest until a No pledging of our shares by executive
minimum of three years after the grant officers or directors

Varied performance metrics under short-term and long-term
incentive plans

Double Trigger Provisions for Change in Control

Independent Compensation Consultant Reports Directly to
the Compensation Committee

Fully independent Compensation Committee

X

X

X

N H H E

X

X

N H HEH {H H

Benchmark pay relative to the market and review the
designated peer group used for market benchmarking on an
annual basis

Robust Stock Ownership Guidelines for Executives and
Directors

=

| Mitigate Undue Risk in Compensation Programs

Shareholder Outreach - Say on Pay Feedback

The Company’s2021 Say on Pay vote at the May 2021 annual meeting received approximately 95% support
from our shareholders.

The Compensation Committee believes that it has built a compensation program that will attract and retain
the best available individuals to serve on the Company’s executive team and properly incentivize those
executives to achieve the Company’s short-term and long-term financial and operational goals. The
Compensation Committee continues its efforts to annually get shareholder feedback to ensure that the
executive compensation program is optimally designed to reflect shareholder values, enhances the link
between executive pay and company performance, responds to changing market practices and retains
effective leaders who have a significant understanding of our business, particularly during a cyclica
economic environment.

Following our 2021 annual meeting, we reached out to our top institutional investors representing over 60%
of total ownership of the Company to receive any feedback they may have on any topics, including
executive compensation. As a result of this outreach, we had direct discussions with two of our top
shareholders representing approximately 27% of our stock ownership and gained positive feedback from
those conversations. These shareholders did not convey any issues or concerns over the Company’s
executive compensation program.
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Key Compensation Actions and Decisions

The key features of our long-term incentive compensation program for 2021 awards and enhanced
disclosure of our short-term incentive compensation program are set forth bel ow and are described in further

detail in the Components of Compensation sections and Recent Devel opments below.

What We Have Heard
From Investors

]

‘.’I Changes We Have Made
5|

Disclose performance metric targets for the annual
short-term incentive plan

We have provided the specific performance metric targets
for our annual short-term incentive plan, along with detail as
to how these metrics were determined and set, thereby
enhancing our disclosure on our annual short-term incentive
plan. For more information, see our discussion under
“ Components of Compensation—Annual Incentive Award”.

Long-term incentive award program needs to have
more weighting on performance-based vehicles and
metrics

The performance-based share awards comprise 50% of the
long-term incentive award program for the Company’'s
executives. For more information, see our discussion under
“Components of Compensation—Long-Term Incentive
Compensation”.

Greater reliance on performance-based measures
relative to a peer group, such as total shareholder
return

In the performance-based share awards, total shareholder
return relative to the peer group is 50% of the performance-
based share awards. For more information, see our
discusson under “Components of Compensation—Long-
Term Incentive Compensation”.

Avoid duplication between metrics used for the
short-term incentive program and the long-term
incentive program

EBITDA(1) and working capital were previously the two
measures used in both the short-term incentive program and
the long-term incentive program. Beginning in 2019, in the
long-term incentive program, we have removed working
capital as a measure and replaced it with return on capital
employed (ROCE). The EBITDA metric was generaly
considered by our shareholders to be the most important
financial metric for the Company’s performance to be
measured by, which is why it remained as a performance
measure in both the short-term incentive program and the
long-term incentive program (though the weighting of the
EBITDA metric was reduced in the long-term incentive
program). For more information, see our discussion under
“Components of Compensation—Long-Term Incentive
Compensation”.

Review the compensation peer group to confirm
operational alignment and appropriate size

Annua evaluation which thisyear led to the addition of four
companies to our peer group and elimination of four
companies based on quditative and quantitative similarity.
The TSR peer group was modified in the same manner as
well. For more information, see our discussion under
“ Competitive Positioning”.

(1) EBITDA excluding other costs (referred to as“EBITDA” within this document) isreconciled in
our 2021 10-K to the most comparable GAAP financial measure.

In addition to engaging with our shareholders, we aso engaged with members from 1SS and Glass Lewis
to gain clarity on matters they highlighted in their reports to investors. During these engagements, which
we beganin 2018, we received clarification on how they evaluated our past proxy disclosures and how they
intend to evaluate our future proxy disclosures.

We believe that our continued outreach with shareholders and annua review on market standards show
compensation practices which are appropriate and in line for a company of our size and stage of growth.
We intend to continue engaging with our shareholders and reviewing our compensation and governance
practicesin the future.
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Compensation Philosophy

The Company believesthat compensation should be directly linked to performance and the creation of long-
term value for our stockholders. The Company achieves this by providing amix of base salary with short-
term and long-term incentives ensuring that compensation opportunities are measured by avariety of time-
based targets to balance both our near-term and long-term strategic goals.

The Company’ s compensation program places a very strong emphasis on performance driven annual and
long-term incentives to align the executive's interests with stockholder value. The annual and long-term
incentives are calculated and paid based primarily on financial measures of profitability and stockholder
value creation. Executives of the Company are incentivized to increase the Company’s profitability and
stockholder return and to optimize the Company’s financial performance in order to earn a major portion
of their compensation package.

The Company seeks to structure a balance between achieving strong short-term annual results and ensuring
the Company’ s long-term success and viability. The Company wants each of its executives to balance their
focus between the Company’ s day-to-day operational performance and the Company’ slong-term goals and
strategies. To reinforce the importance of balancing these perspectives, the Company’s executives are
provided both short and long-term incentives.

Components of NOW s Compensation Program

Total Compensation

Components
of Compensation

. Fixed level of compensation to attract and retain executive talent

Fixed Pay Base Sdlary «  Sdlary level based on tenure, expertise, scope of responsibility
and individual performance

. Incentivize and reward executives for achieving the Company’s

) profitability goals

Performance Pay | Annual Incentives (Cash) +  Encourage prudent deployment of capital

»  Attract, motivate, and retain high quality management talent

. Recognizes the Company’ s total shareholder performance relative
to industry peers

. Encourage positive financial results on the income statement and
balance sheet

. Links the Company’s performance to long-term stockholder
value creation

. Provides along-term incentive vehicle tied to a three-year
performance goal

e Alignsinterests of executives with shareholders by providing

“At Risk” Pay Restricted Stock long-term stock ownership

. Requires three-year cliff vesting, thus serves as a retention tool

Performance Pay | Performance Shares

There were no compensation policy differences among the individual executives in 2021, except that the
more senior officers, such as the Chief Executive Officer, received higher compensation consistent with
their increased responsibilities. These differences are reviewed and considered regularly by the
Compensation Committee in connection with the compensation analysis performed by its independent
consultant.
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Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer

The Compensation Committee determines the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer based on
competitive peer group data, leadership, meeting operational goals, executing the Company’ sbusiness plan,
tenure and years of experience, and achieving certain financial results. Components of the Chief Executive
Officer’s compensation for 2021 are consistent with those for executive officers as described above and
included base salary, participation in the annual incentive plan, as well as the grant of restricted stock and
performance share awards.

Through its annual evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer’s base salary level, the Compensation
Committee reviews the compensation level of Chief Executive Officers of each of the companies in the
designated peer group and considers the Chief Executive Officer’s individual performance and successin
achieving the Company’ s strategic objectives.

The Compensation Committee establishes goals and objectives for the Chief Executive Officer for each
fiscal year. For 2022, Mr. Cherechinsky’ s performance as Chief Executive Officer will be measured in three
key areas of the Company that align with DNOW'’ s strategic goals: (1) forecasting and communication, (2)
operational and financia performance, and (3) management development and succession planning. The
specific goal s within these three areas were set based on a determination of prioritizing the Chief Executive
Officer’s efforts on those specific areas and responsibilities that would have the greatest impact on the
Company, and included the following:

e grow market share, achieve relevant annual milestones, expand end-market diversification,
rationalize expenses and maintain sufficient liquidity to support growth;

¢ managethe M&A processto yield acquisitions that add materialy to the return profile;

e invest in digita transformation; redefine sales strategy to adapt to today’s market and forecasted
customer needs, including their focus on clean energy, and accel erate progress towards a successful
DNOW Energy Transition;

¢ emphasize focus on employee engagement and devel opment efforts; and

e enrich diversity, equity and inclusion, integra to the culture of the Company and embed in its
recruiting, talent development and succession planning processes.

Competitive Positioning

Because of the goals and objectives for executive compensation, the Company believes each element of
compensation should be properly designed, as well as competitive with the marketplace, to incentivize its
executives in the manner stated above. The Company believes it is also important that executive
compensation be properly designed to attract and retain talented executives.

As part of its process to establish compensation levels for the Company’s named executive officers, the
Compensation Committee compares each of the major el ements of compensation (base salary, annual bonus
and long-term incentives) for each of its named executive officers against the median compensation
provided to comparable executive officers at companies in a designated peer group. When analyzing peer
group data, the Compensation Committee does not establish a specific numeric range around the median
data points, which it considers reasonable or acceptable. Rather, in setting compensation for any particular
named executive officer, the Compensation Committee considers any variance from the median, taking into
account other factors as discussed below, and determines whether such variance is appropriate. If the
Compensation Committee determines that any variance is unwarranted, the Compensation Committee will
make appropriate adjustments to the compensation levels.

In September 2021, the Compensation Committee requested that its independent compensation consul tant
NFP Compensation Consulting (*NFPCC”), formerly known as Longnecker & Associates, review its
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designated peer group against which the Company’ s named executive officers: compensation is compared
and provide recommendations on the ongoing peer group framework. The designated peer group is
comprised of companies of similar size, companiesin the equipment and servicesindustry with an emphasis
on serving the energy industry, and companies in the peer group of its closest competitors, as well as
companies for which the Company competes for management talent.

After reviewing the peer group and NFPCC' sanalysis and recommendations, the Compensation Committee
approved the following peer group of 16 companies to form the Company’s current designated peer group:

Applied Industrial Technologies, Inc. | H& E Equipment Services MSC Industrial Direct Co. Inc.
DXP Enterprises, Inc. Kaman Corp. NexTier Qilfield Solutions
Exterran Corporation Kennametal, Inc. Oceaneering International, Inc.
Flowserve Corp. Kirby Corporation RPC, Inc.

Global Industrial Company Liberty Qilfield Services

GMSInc. MRC Globd Inc.

The Compensation Committee recognized that the designated peer group was within reasonable size
parameters (generaly 0.5 times to 3 times the Company’s revenues, assets, EBITDA and/or market
capitalization) and were generally similar to the Company in terms of industry and/or operations.

In 2021, four previous peer companies were removed due to those peer companies being outside of the
reasonable size parameters, while four new peer companies were added to the peer group (that met the
reasonabl e size parameters as discussed above and had some general similarity in business industry and/or
operations to the Company). The Company was near the 50" percentile median of the designated peer group
above in terms of revenue.

Separately, the Compensation Committee engaged NFPCC in September 2021 to conduct its annual
competitive review of executive compensation for the Company’s named executive officers relative to its
peer companies, as well as to analyze internal pay equity based on the peer group approved by the
Compensation Committee. NFPCC analyzed and compared each position’ s responsibilities and job title to
develop competitive market data. Its executive compensation review covered the following elements of
compensation: base salaries, annual bonuses (realizable), and equity compensation (realizable). NFPCC
generated data on the components of the Company’ s compensation program compared to the market 251
percentile, market 50" percentile, and market 75" percentile of the designated peer group.

Based on the compiled data and the comparisons prepared by NFPCC, the Compensation Committee, in
consultation with the Company and NFPCC, determined that the total direct compensation for the
Company’s named executive officers relative to the designated peer group was generaly positioned
between the 25" percentile and 50" percentile range of the peer group.

Components of Compensation

The following describes the elements of the Company’s compensation program for the Company’ s named
executive officersfor 2021, why they were selected, and how the amounts of each element were determined.

Base Salary

Base salaries provide executives with a fixed level of monthly cash income. While the Compensation
Committee is aware of competitive levels, actua salary levels are based on factors including tenure,
individual performance, level and scope of responsibility. The Company does not give specific weights to
these factors. The Compensation Committee determines median base salary levels by having NFPCC
conduct acomprehensive review of information provided in proxy statements filed by the Company’ s peer
companies. Generally, each executive is reviewed by the Compensation Committee individually on an
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annual basis. Salary adjustments are based on the individual’ s experience and background, the individua’s
performance during the prior year, the general movement of salaries in the marketplace, the Company’s
financial position and, for each executive other than the Chief Executive Officer, the recommendations of
our Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee only establishes specific individual goals for
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (see “Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer” above for a
discussion of the Chief Executive Officer’s goals for 2022). The Compensation Committee' s anaysis of
the individual performance of any particular named executive officer is subjective in nature and takes into
account the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer (other than with respect to his own saary).
As aresult of these factors, an executive' s base salary may be above or below the targeted median at any
point in time.

After NFPCC conducted its annua review and analysis of executive compensation in November 2017, the
Compensation Committee agreed starting in 2018 to staged increases in base salary pay over athree-year
period for its then named executive officers to align with market median levels (“Three Year Base Pay
Plan™). These base sdary adjustments were the result of the Compensation Committee approving the Three
Y ear Base Pay Plan, asaresult of their following findings:

(1) the Company’s executives were generally aligned between the market 25" percentile and the
market 50" percentile,

(2) market conditions had improved and the Company’ s performance had improved as well, and

(3) the Company’ s executive officers had not had any base salary adjustments for three years.

TheThree Y ear Base Pay Plan was designed to address the above concerns, taking into further consideration
that the executives base salary levels had remained below median levels since the Company was spun-off
in 2014, and the implementation of this new plan was designed to bring executive compensation closer to
the market 50" percentile over athree year period.

In November 2019, NFPCC reviewed executive base salaries with the Compensation Committee relative
to the peer group and determined that the Three Y ear Base Pay Plan was till supported by market data.
However, given that market conditions stabilized in 2019 and projections for market conditions in 2020
appeared to be challenging, Company management requested that the Compensation Committee suspend
the previously approved Three Year Base Pay Plan and maintain each executive' s base salary at current
levels despite the Three Y ear Base Pay Plan being fully supported by market data.

On June 1, 2020, in connection with his promotion and appointment as President and Chief Executive
Officer, the Compensation Committee, following consultation with NFPCC, increased David
Cherechinsky’s annual base salary from $425,000 to $650,000. The Compensation Committee also
increased Mark Johnson’s base salary from $243,000 to $385,000 with his promotion to Senior Vice
President and Chief Financia Officer. These changes in base sdary were approved as a result of such
executive’s new positions at the Company and their new responsibilities. While each of these new base
salaries was near or below the 25" percentile of comparable salaries offered by the Company’s industry
peers, the Compensation Committee found that alignment near or below the 25" percentile was reasonable
since Mr. Cherechinsky and Mr. Johnson were in the first year of their positions. The Compensation
Committee agreed to evaluate their performance in these new roles, and as Mr. Cherechinsky and Mr.
Johnson successfully grew into their new roles, their base salary compensation could be adjusted over the
next few years towards the market 50" percentile.

In November 2020, the Compensation Committee conducted its annual review with NFPCC of the base
saaries of the named executive officers and determined that the Three Year Base Pay Plan was till
supported by market data. However, given that market conditions had deteriorated in 2020 due to industry
decline which was exacerbated by COVID-19, the Company and the Compensation Committee agreed to
keep base salaries for the named executive officers unchanged.
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In November 2021, the Compensation Committee conducted its annual review with NFPCC who noted that
base salary pay was below the market 25" percentile range for all of the Company’s named executive
officers (including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer positions), except for one
executive officer position. NFPCC discussed its recommendation to align base salary pay for the Company
executives to the market 50th percentile range over a three-year period as the Company had done in the
past. However, there was concern of extending continued below market base salary pay for its executive
officers over such an extended period. Asaresult of the Company having suspended base salary alignment
efforts previously, as well asthe low level of base salary pay relative to their peers (below the market 251
percentile), the Compensation Committee decided to take a more proactive approach to align base salary
levels to the market 50" percentile range over a two-year period by ingtituting the following base salary
adjustments effective January 1, 2022.

Accordingly, the Company’s named executive officers had the following base salaries at the end of 2021
with the following base salary adjustments beginning in 2022:

Name 2021 Base Salary 2022 Base Salary
David Cherechinsky $650,000 $800,000
Mark Johnson $385,000 $450,000
Raymond Chang $412,000 $440,000
Kelly Munson $225,000 $315,000
Rocio Surratt $160,000 $225,000

The Compensation Committee’ s adjustments not only helped align base salary pay for its executive officers
above the market 25" percentile range to move them closer to the market 50" percentile range, but were
further supported, despite continued challenges in the marketplace throughout a mgjority of 2021, by the
Company’ s positive financial performance in 2021 and outlook heading into 2022. Even given thelevel of
base salary adjustment in 2022 for the Chief Executive Officer position, the new base sdary for that position
still placed closer to the market 25" percentile than the market 50" percentile.

Annual Incentive Award

The objectives of the Company’sannual cash incentive plan are to incentivize performance to achieve the
Company’ scorporate growth and profitability goa s, encourage smart investments and prudent employment
of capital, encourage efficient and optimal cash flow management, and provide competitive compensation
packages to attract and retain management talent.

The Company’s annual incentive plan is designed to reward its employees in line with the financia
performance of the Company on an annua basis. Almost all corporate exempt employees of the Company,
including executive officers, were eligible to participate in the Company’s annual incentive plan in 2021,
aligning a portion of each employee’s cash compensation with the Company’s performance. When the
Company is achieving strong financial results, its executives will be rewarded well through its annual
incentive plan. The Company believes this structure helps keep the executives properly motivated to
continue helping the Company achieve strong results.

The Company’s annual incentive plan has two independent, pre-determined metrics to measure the
Company’ s success and payouts under such plan: (1) working capital as a percentage of revenue (“Working
Capital”) and (2) EBITDA percentage (“EBITDA”). These metrics were chosen to align management’s
incentives with DNOW'’s strategic goals, which have been extensively communicated to DNOW’s
shareholders. Working capital is defined as current assets (excluding cash) less current liabilities (excluding
short-term borrowings). EBITDA means earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.
EBITDA excluding other costs (referred to as “EBITDA” within this document) is reconciled in the
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Company’s 2021 Form 10-K to the most comparable GAAP financial measure. This financial measure
excludes the impact of certain other amounts and is not calculated in accordance with GAAP. Our
shareholders consider both of these metrics to be very important to them in judging the Company’ s overall
performance.

Metric Alignment with strategy

Working capital Working capita is directly aligned with DNOW'’ s strategic approach to capita
alocation. This metric incentivizes executive officers to focus on DNOW’s
liquidity, operational efficiency and short-term financial health.

EBITDA EBITDA is directly aligned with DNOW’s strategic goa to optimize
operations. This metric incentivizes executive officers to focus on DNOW’s
core operations and overall health of our business.

Each participant is assigned a target level percentage bonus (target incentive opportunity) which ranges
from 5% to 100% of salary, depending on the level of the participant. There are three performance result
levels of the percentage bonuses set under the incentive plan for each of the two performance level metrics
— entry (50%), target (100%) and maximum (200%) (the “ performance metric result”). Entry level is the
“minimum” level of EBITDA and Working Capital for which the Company provides an annual incentive
payout.

The table below sets forth the different payout levels for the entry/threshold level, target level, and
maximum level achievements for the EBITDA and Working Capital metrics:

Performance Levelsfor EBITDA and Working Capital Payout L evel
Below Entry/Threshold No Payout
Entry/Threshold 50% of Target Payout
Target 100% of Target Payout
Maximum 200% of Target Payout

If the Company’s EBITDA is less than the entry level threshold, then there is no payout in that fiscal year
for the EBITDA portion of the annual incentive. If the Company’s Working Capital is less than the entry
level threshold, then there is no payout in that fiscal year for the Working Capital portion of the annual
incentive. Results falling between the stated thresholds of entry, target and maximum will result in an
interpolated, or diding scale payout. Effective February 2020, the Company added a threshold condition
that would have to be achieved before any bonus payout would be payable under either performance metric,
namely that the Company needed to achieve at |east the Company’s entry level EBITDA.

For 2021, the chief executive officer’s participation level was 100% and the other executive officers
participation levels were between 65-80%. These participation level percentages are based on each
executive' s leve of responsibility for the Company’s financial performance.

A summary of the executive officer’s participation level is below:

Name E:Zr t(;?'g:;'eogall‘;ﬁ Entry Target Maximum
David Cherechinsky 100% 50% 100% 200%
Mark Johnson 80% 50% 100% 200%
Raymond Chang 80% 50% 100% 200%
Kelly Munson 80% 50% 100% 200%
Rocio Surratt 65% 50% 100% 200%
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The Compensation Committee believes the use of two separate metrics, EBITDA and Working Capital, as
the designated performance objectives under the annual incentive plan best align the interests of the
Company’ s stockholders and the Company’ s executive officers. The “target” objective is set based on the
Company’ s operating and financial plan for that given year, which isthoroughly prepared and reviewed by
the Company each year based on projected industry market conditions for that year and the operating
budgets announced by companies in the industry. This plan and the “target” objective are fully reviewed
and vetted by the Compensation Committee as well as the Company’s Board of Directors. The “target”
objective is thus set at a level that the Company believes is challenging to meet but achievable if the
Company properly and efficiently executes its operationa plan and market conditions are positive and
favorable during the year.

The “minimum” and “maximum” level of EBITDA and Working Capital under the incentive plan are set
based off of the “target” objective. The Compensation Committee believes this objective, formulaic
measure alows the “minimum” objective to be set at alevel that the Company can achieve even if market
conditions are not as favorable. The “minimum” objective serves to motivate the Company’ s executives to
continue to work towards executing the Company’s operational plan if market conditions, which are
generally outside the control of the Company, are not as favorable. The Compensation Committee believes
this objective, formulaic measure allows the “maximum” objective to be set at a level that would be
extremely challenging for the Company to achieve. The Compensation Committee believes that, for the
“maximum” objective to be achieved, acombination of market conditions being much more favorable than
initially forecasted and the Company executing its operationa planin ahighly efficient manner would need
to occur.

Depending on prevailing and forecasted market conditions from year to year, the EBITDA and Working
Capital metric levels (minimum, target and maximum) may be reduced from one year to the next. Any
such reduction in metric levels from year to year does not mean the rigor of the annua cash incentive
program has been reduced or lessened. Given that market conditions may be projected to be stronger in
certain years (and performanceis greater in those years) and weaker in other years (and performanceisless
in those years), as supported by the cyclical nature of certain of the industries the Company serves, the
Compensation Committee and the Company take those factorsinto consideration when setting these metric
levels on an annua basis to ensure, irrespective of the actua metric levels for a given year, that the
Company’s annual cash incentive program maintains the same level of rigor each year in order to achieve
an incentive payout.

As aresult of our shareholders conveying to the Company the importance of the EBITDA metric as athe
most important key metric in which they measure the Company’s financia performance, it is also used as
a portion of the Company’s performance-based share awards (comprises 25% of such performance-based
share awards, where such awards comprise 50% of the overall equity value provided to executives). The
EBITDA metric in the annual incentive plan is measured over a one-year performance period, while the
EBITDA metric in the long-term incentive plan is measured over a three-year performance period,
providing some differentiation between the usage of such metric across both plans as market conditions,
competition, and other factors may substantially vary over time.

In February 2021, the Compensation Committee approved the structure of the 2021 NOW Inc. Annual
Incentive Plan, with a 70% weighting to the EBITDA metric and the remaining 30% weighting to the
Working Capital metric. The Compensation Committee approved the greater weighting to the EBITDA
metric relative to the Working Capital metric because the EBITDA metric is generally considered by our
shareholders to be the most important financial metric for which the Company’ s performance is measured

by.

Also, asthe Company has historically achieved greater success with the Working Capital metric relative to
the EBITDA metric, the Compensation Committee chose to incentivize better Company performance on
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the EBITDA metric by having an increased weighting to the EBITDA metric. Entering 2021, in light of
market uncertainty due to the ongoing negative economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and the slow
recovery of the energy industry, the Compensation Committee set the entry level targets to a goal which
they believed was potentially achievable for the Company despite the continued uncertainty with the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and increased the maximum target to alevel which they believed would be
extremely difficult for the Company to achievein 2021 unless market conditions were more favorable than
forecasted and the Company achieved greater than expected operational results. Given the significant
negative impacts to the overall market in 2020, and the unprecedented uncertainty caused by the COVID-
19 pandemic entering 2021, the Compensation Committee believed setting the entry level target for
EBITDA at 0.0% was reasonable, especially in light of the negative performance experienced in a very
difficult and unexpected market environment in 2020 and the uncertainty of the prolonged effects and
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the economy and global oil and gas demands.

The metrics for EBITDA and Working Capital were set as follows by the Compensation Committee:

EBITDA 2020 Metric | 2021 Metric WC/R 2020 Metric | 2021 Metric
Metric Metric
(70%) (30%)
Entry 3.0% 0.0% Entry 23% 21.5%
Target 4.0% 0.7% Target 21.5% 20%
Maximum 5.0% 4.5% Maximum 20% 18.5%
Metric Weighting Entry Target Maximum Actual Achievement
2020 EBITDA 70% 3.0% 4.0% 5.0% -3.5%
WC/R 30% 23% 21.5% 20% 19.9%
2021 EBITDA 70% 0.0% 0.7% 4.5% 2.267%
WC/R 30% 21.5% 20.0% 18.5% 12.28%

NOTE: To increase the difficulty level of achieving the working capital metric, percentages are reduced
(i.e., lower working capital percentages indicate higher achievement by the Company).
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Payouts are determined by metric under the Company’s annual incentive plan using the following
formula:

The following examples cal culate an annual incentive award payment for Mr. Cherechinsky assuming (1)
the Company’s 2021 EBITDA and Working Capital were each equal to the entry level set under the
incentive plan, (2) the Company’s 2021 EBITDA and Working Capital were each equal to the target set
under the incentive plan, and (3) the Company’s 2021 EBITDA and Working Capital each exceeded the
maximum set under the incentive plan. For the 2021 annual incentive awards, the Company added a
threshold condition that the EBITDA Entry Metric must be achieved before any bonus payout would be

payable under either performance metric, which is assumed for purposes of the example below.

EBITDA Base Saary Target Performance Performance Award
Metric Incentive Metric Weight | Metric Result Amount
Opportunity
Entry $650,000 100% 70% 50% $227,500
Target $650,000 100% 70% 100% $455,000
Maximum $650,000 100% 70% 200% $910,000
WC/R Metric Base Saary Target Performance Performance Award
Incentive Metric Weight | Metric Result Amount
Opportunity
Entry $650,000 100% 30% 50% $97,500
Target $650,000 100% 30% 100% $195,000
Maximum $650,000 100% 30% 200% $390,000

2021 Financial Results

Market conditions fluctuated in 2021 as countries and their citizens continued to deal with the COVID-19
pandemic and the spread of new variants. As citizens began to resume work commutes, travel, and pre-
pandemic activities, we saw increasesin the price of domestic and foreign oil and increasesin the purchases
of our products. We also were able to see the benefits of the Company’ s significant cost transformation that
we began in 2020 which alowed the Company to accelerate structural changes and become profitable at
lower total revenues than we had historically. The Company performed between the target and maximum
levels of EBITDA under its annual cash incentive plan, exceeding expectations and internal projections set
at the beginning of 2021. In addition, the Company was able to continue to effectively manage its balance
sheet, achieving a cash position of $313 million with zero debt, resulting in the Company achieving better
than the maximum level of Working Capital under its annual cash incentive plan.
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The Company was able to achieve an above target earnout on the EBITDA metric and a maximum earnout
of the Working Capital metric for 2021 resulting in a total of 158.87% of target for the annual incentive
award payment.

. . 5
Metric Achievement Achlever_lt\?;eatlsa Y% of Weighted Payout (%)
EBITDA (70%) 2.267% (1) 141.24% 98.87%
Working Capital (30%) 12.28% 200% 60%

(1) EBITDA % for purposes of the annual incentive plan calculation included stock-based compensation
expense, which was excluded from the EBITDA % included in the Company’ s Form 10-K filing for the
year ended 2021.

Thus, based on the Company’s financial results in 2021, bonus payments were made to the Company’s
named executive officers, as follows. David Cherechinsky - $1,032,646, Mark Johnson - $489,316,
Raymond Chang - $523,631, Kelly Munson - $285,964, and Rocio Surratt - $165,223.

Base Target Performance Performance Award Total
Name Salar Incentive Metric Metric Result Amount Award
y Opportunity Weight Amount
. . 70.00% 141.24% $642,646
David Cherechinsky | $650,000 100% $1,032,646
30.00% 200% $390,000
70.00% 141.24% $304,516
Mark Johnson $385,000 80% $489,316
30.00% 200% $184,800
70.00% 141.24% $325,871
Raymond Chang $412,000 80% $523,631
30.00% 200% $197,760
70.00% 141.24% $177,964
Kelly Munson $225,000 80% $285,964
30.00% 200% $108,000
Rocio Surratt $160,000 65% 70.00% 141.24% $102,823 | $165,223
30.00% 200% $62,400

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

The primary purpose of the Company’ s long-term incentive compensation is to focus its executive officers
on alonger-term perspective in their managerial responsibilities. This component of an executive officer’'s
compensation directly links the officers’ interests with those of the Company’s stockholders. In addition,
long-term incentives encourage management to focus on the Company’s long-term development and
prosperity in addition to profitability and optimal cash flow. This program hel ps balance long-term versus
short-term business objectives, reinforcing that one should not be achieved at the expense of the other. The
Company’ s long-term incentive compensation program also serves to help the Company attract and retain
management talent.

The Company historically has granted stock options, time-based restricted stock, and performance-based
share awards to the Company’ s key executives based on competitive grants within the industry and based
on thelevel of long-term incentives appropriate for the competitive long-term compensation component of
total compensation. Such executives were eligible to receive stock options, restricted stock, and
performance share awards annually with other key employees who were €eligible to receive equity grants
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on adiscretionary basis. Eligibility for an award does not ensure receipt of an award. As explained in more
detail below, the Company decided to eliminate stock option grants from its 2022 long-term incentive
compensation.

Starting with the 2019 long-term equity incentive grants to its executives, the long-term equity incentive
program has been comprised of the following:

o 25% stock options,
e 25% time-based restricted stock and
o 50% performance-based share awards.

This change was to ensure that 50% of the Company’s long-term incentive awards to its executives were
purely performance based from the previous allocation which was equal in stock options, time-based
restricted stock, and performance-based share awards.

The goal of the stock option program was to provide a compensation program that was competitive within
the industry while directly linking asignificant portion of the executive' s compensation to the enhancement
of stockholder value. The ultimate value of any stock option was based solely on the increase in value of
the shares of the Company’s common stock over the grant price. Accordingly, stock options have value
only if the Company’s stock price appreciates from the date of grant. Additionally, the option holder must
remain employed during the period required for the option to “vest”, thus providing an incentive for an
option holder to remain employed by the Company. As explained in more detail below, the Company
decided to eliminate stock option grants from its 2022 |ong-term incentive compensation.

The goa of the performance-based share award program is to provide a compensation program that is also
competitive within the industry while directly linking asignificant portion of the executive’ scompensation
to the financial performance of the Company. The performance-based share awards received by the
executives have value only if the Company’s designated financial performance objectives are met and
exceeded. Additiondlly, the holder must also remain employed during the three-year period required for
the award to “vest”, thus providing an additional incentive for the executive to remain employed by the
Company. This at-risk component of compensation focuses executives on achieving strong financial
performance for the Company over the long-term.

The goa of time-based restricted stock award grantsisto serve as a key retention tool for the Company to
retain its executives and key employees. The restricted stock awards will have value to the executive even
if the Company’ s stock price falls below the price on the date of grant, provided that the executive remains
employed during the full three-year period required for the award to “vest”.

The Company believes that its equity incentive grants must be sufficient in size and duration to provide a
long-term performance and retention incentive for executives and to increase their interest in the
appreciation of the Company’s stock and achievement of positive financial results, both in absolute terms
and relative to its peers. The Company believes that restricted stock and performance award grants at a
competitivelevel, with certain vesting requirements, are an effective way of promoting thelong-term nature
of its business while also being used as aretention tool for its executives.

The Company’s long-term incentive compensation program is focused on employees who will have a
greater impact on the direction and long-term results of the Company by virtue of their roles and
responsibilities. Restricted stock award grants and performance award grants must be reviewed and
approved by the Compensation Committee.

The Compensation Committee, Company management, and NFPCC each believe it is important that a
portion of the equity grantsinclude a grant based on the satisfaction of specified performance conditions to
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determine vesting of that particular grant. After consultation with Company management and NFPCC, the
Compensation Committee established three separate performance metrics to be used for vesting of the
performance share awards for executives. The Compensation Committee believed that the performance
measures they established would serve to motivate the Company’ s executivesto deliver resultsaligned with
the interests of Company stockholders. The performance share awards can be earned by the executives only
by performance against established goals and vest three years from the grant date.

Starting with the 2019 long-term equity incentive grants to its executives, the performance share awards
have been divided into three separate performance metrics:

e 50% with a TSR (total shareholder return) goal,
o 25% with an EBITDA goal, and
o 25% with areturn on capital employed goal (ROCE).

As our shareholders view the EBITDA metric as a very key metric to measure the Company’s financia
performance, it isalso used as a performance metric in the Company’ sannual incentive plan. The EBITDA
metric in the annua incentive plan is measured over a one-year performance period, while the EBITDA
metric in the long-term incentive plan is measured over a three-year performance period, providing some
differentiation between the usage of such metric across both plans.

Depending on prevailing and forecasted market conditions from year to year, the EBITDA and ROCE
metric levels (minimum, target and maximum) may be reduced from one year to the next. Any such
reduction in metric levels from year to year does not mean the rigor of these performance measures in the
performance-based share awards has been reduced or lessened. Given that market conditions may be
projected to be stronger in certain years (and performance is greater in those years) and weaker in other
years (and performanceislessin those years), as supported by the cyclical nature of certain of theindustries
the Company serves, the Compensation Committee and the Company take those factors into consideration
when setting these metric levels on an annual basis to ensure, irrespective of the actual metric levels for a
given year, that the Company’ s performance-based share award metrics maintain the same level of rigor
each year in order to achieve an incentive payoui.

For the 2021 performance shares awards, with respect to the EBITDA performance metric, the
Compensation Committee approved the EBITDA performance metrics at 0.0%, 2.5% and 5.0% for the
entry, target and maximum levels, respectively. With respect to the return on capital employed metric, the
Compensation Committee approved the metrics of 1.5%, 3.0% and 5.0% for the entry, target and maximum
levels, respectively. These metric targets were updated to better reflect prevailing and future expected
market and business conditions during the performance period, aswell asfactoring in past Company results
and future budgeted Company results. The setting of the “minimum (entry)”, “target” and “maximum”
levels follow the same philosophy the Company uses in setting these levels under its annual cash incentive
plan. For more information, see * Components of Compensation — Annual 1ncentive Award” .

Level Payout Percentile Rank vs. Actual EBITDA | Actual Return on Capital
% Designated Peer Group Performance Employed (ROCE)
Performance
Maximum 200% | 75" percentile or greater 5.0% or higher 5.0% or higher
Target 100% 50" percentile 2.5% 3.0%
Entry 50% 25" percentile 0.0% 1.5%
No Payout 0% L ess than 25" percentile Lessthan 0.0% Lessthan 1.5%

Performance against the TSR goal is determined by comparing the Company’s TSR with the TSR of
members of the Company’s designated peer group for the three-year performance period. The
Compensation Committee believes that the members of the Company’s designated peer group are an
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appropriate benchmark against which to compare the Company’s TSR performance. The above table
summarizes the relationship between the Company’s TSR performance when compared with the TSR
performance of the members of its designated peer group and the associated payout levels for the
performance achieved for the TSR portion of the award.

Performance against the EBITDA percentage goal is determined by comparing the performance of the
Company’sactual EBITDA percentage performance average for each of the three years of the performance
period against the EBITDA goa set by the Compensation Committee. The above table summarizes the
payout levels on the EBITDA portion of the award based on the Company’ s EBITDA performance against
the EBITDA goal.

Performance against the return on capital employed goal is determined by comparing the performance of
the Company’s actual return on capital employed as a percent of return of capital employed average for
each of the three years of the performance period against the return on capital employed goal set by the
Compensation Committee. The above table summarizesthe payout levels on the return on capital employed
portion of the award based on the Company’s return on capital employed against the return on capital
employed goal (ROCE).

Results falling between the stated thresholds of entry, target and maximum will result in an interpolated, or
dliding scale payout.

The Compensation Committee implemented this performance award structure to provide for long-term
incentives comparable to those awards used by the Company’ s peers, such as:

e Making award payouts based on multiple measuresmetrics,

e Encouraging long-term oversight of growth and goal accomplishments; and

e Providing an earn-out structure with a threshold and maximum payout with varying levels of
performance to incentivize performance

2019-2021 Performance Period

The performance share awards granted in 2019, vesting in 2022, were eligible to be earned based on the
Company’ s performance against the three separate performance metrics with 50% based off of a TSR (total
shareholder return) goal, 25% off of an EBITDA goal, and 25% off of a return on capital employed goal
(ROCE) goa during the three-year period from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2021. The performance
metrics set at the time of grant in 2019 and the results for each metric and the payout levels for these
performance share awards, which were certified by the Compensation Committee in February 2022, are as
follows:
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Level Payout Percentile Rank vs. Actual EBITDA | Actual Return on Capital
% Designated Peer Group Performance Employed (ROCE)
Performance

Maximum 200% | 75" percentile or greater 4.5% or higher 9% or higher

Target 100% 50" percentile 3.5% 8%

Entry 50% 25" percentile 3.0% 7%

No Payout 0% L ess than 25™ percentile Lessthan 3.0% Lessthan 7%
Performance
Result 2019- Payout %

Metric 2021

TSR 31.2 percentile 62.4%

EBITDA 0.6% 0%

ROCE 1.6% 0%

Among the three independent metrics for the performance awards, the TSR metric exceeded the entry
threshold point, resulting in a 62.4% payout. The second and third metrics, EBITDA and ROCE, did not
result in any award given that DNOW fell below the minimum threshold points. As a note, these
performance share awards were granted and based off of metrics set prior to the COVID-19 pandemic,
which were not adjusted subsequently.

Perfor mance Awards
Paid Out in 2022
(# of Shares) (1)

Performance Awar ds
Granted in 2019
(Target # of Shares)

Name

David Cherechinsky 27,124 8,463
Mark Johnson 10,294 3,212
Raymond Chang 20,425 6,373
Kelly Munson (2) - -
Rocio Surratt (2) - -

(1) Represents the gross number of shares that were paid out, before deduction of sharesto cover tax
withholding obligations.

(2) Ms. Munson and Ms. Surratt were not executives at the time of the 2019 grants and were thus not
granted performance awardsin 2019.

2021-2023 Performance Period
On February 21, 2021, the Compensation Committee approved the grant of stock options, restricted stock

awards, and performance share awards to its executive officers pursuant to the NOW Inc. Long-Term
Incentive Plan for the 2021-2023 performance period, as follows:

Name Securities Underlying Sharesof Restricted | Performance Awards
Options (#) Stock (3 Years) (#) (Target # of Shares)
David Cherechinsky 198,213 96,248 192,495
Mark Johnson 50,181 24,366 48,733
Raymond Chang 32,617 15,839 31,676
Kelly Munson 27,599 13,402 26,803
Rocio Surratt 12,545 6,092 12,183

The value of such awards made to the Company’ s executive officers above were at or near the 50" percentile
median levelsrelative to their peersin the designated Company peer group. For the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, grants were near the 65" percentile to account for the lack of a one-time
equity grant in 2020 when Mr. Cherechinsky and Mr. Johnson were promoted into the Chief Executive
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Officer and Chief Financial Officer roles (asis common to make such awards at the time of promotion, but
were not made at the time due to market conditions), aswell asto account for the base salary levelsfor each
of their positions being below the 25" market percentile.

The exercise price of the stock optionsis $10.26 per share, which was the closing stock price of NOW Inc.
common stock on the date of grant. The stock options have aterm of seven yearsfrom the date of grant and
vest in three equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of the grant. The
restricted stock awards granted by the Company to its executive officers vest 100% on the third anniversary
of the date of grant. The performance share awards can be earned by the executives only by performance
against established goals set forth above and vest three years from the grant date.

2022 Annual and Long-Term I ncentive Programs

On February 22, 2022, the Compensation Committee approved the terms and structure of the 2022 NOW
Inc. Annual Incentive Plan, based on two component metrics consistent with the weighting of the 2021
annual incentive plan with the EBITDA metric at 70% with the remaining 30% weighting to the Working
Capital metric.

With respect to the EBITDA performance metric, the Compensation Committee approved the EBITDA
performance metrics at 2.75%, 4.75% and 6.75% for the minimum, target and maximum levels,
respectively. The Compensation Committee believes that these EBIDTA metrics are consistent with
prevailing market conditions and reasonable projections for 2022 as the Target EBITDA level would
require the Company to double EBITDA year over year. The Compensation Committee also kept the
threshold condition that the Entry EBITDA level be achieved by the Company in 2022 before any bonus
payout would be payable under either performance metric. With respect to the working capital metric, the
Compensation Committee approved making the working capital metrics more difficult by adjusting them
to 20%, 16% and 12% for the minimum, target and maximum levels, respectively. The Target WC/R has
been set at a challenging level that the Company has only beat once in its history and will be made more
challenging to achieve in a growing market with the Maximum WC/R set at a level which the Company
has never achieved.

EBITDA 2022 Metric | 2021 Metric WC/R 2022 Metric | 2021 Metric
Metric Metric
(70%) (30%)
Entry 2.75% 0.0% Entry 20% 21.5%
Target 4.75% 0.7% Target 16% 20%
Maximum 6.75% 4.5% Maximum 12% 185

Elimination of Siock Options From 2022 Long-Term Incentive Program

Since the Company’s inception in 2014, the Company has granted stock options to its key employees,
including executives, in the first quarter of the year. The Compensation Committee bore the responsibility
of approving any Company stock option grants with the exercise price for the option grant being based on
the Company’ s closing stock price on the date of grant.

The goal of the stock option component was to provide a compensation program that was competitive
within the industry while directly linking a significant portion of the executive’'s compensation to the
enhancement of stockholder value. The ultimate value of any stock option was based solely on the increase
in value of the shares of the Company’s common stock over the grant price. Accordingly, stock options
would have value only if the Company’s stock price appreciates from the date of grant. Additionally, the
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option holder must remain employed during the period required for the option to “vest”, thus providing an
incentive for an option holder to remain employed by the Company.

However, in many cases, stock options can be seen as an inefficient means of attracting, retaining, and
motivating a company's executives and empl oyees based on the variations and instability of a Company’s
stock price due to reasons outside of a Company’s control and which are not indicative of a Company’s
financial stability and performance. Stock options also have been discontinued by a number of the
Company’s peer group members. As a result, the Compensation Committee, based on a recommendation
from NFPCC, decided to eliminate stock option grantsfrom the 2022 NOW Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan,
resulting in a split of 50% restricted stock and 50% performance share awards. The elimination of stock
options does not decrease the projected compensation of the executives of the Company, but only modifies
the components of the long-term equity incentive program to more directly link to the financia performance
of the Company even if the Company’s stock price falls below the price on the date of grant.

2022 Long-Term Incentive Grants

On February 22, 2022, the Compensation Committee approved the terms and structure of the 2022 Long-
Term Incentive grants to the Company’s executives. The terms of such grants are consistent with those
described under “Long-Term Incentive Compensation” above, except as otherwise set forth below. Equity
grants to the executives were deemed to be in the 50" percentile range of their peers.

The Compensation Committee approved the grant of time-based restricted stock to its executive officers
pursuant to the NOW Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan, as follows:

Shares of Restricted Stock
Name (3Years) (¥
David Cherechinsky 155,925
Mark Johnson 36,383
Raymond Chang 36,383
Kelly Munson 25,988
Rocio Surratt 12,994

The restricted stock awards granted by the Company to its executive officers vest 100% on the third
anniversary of the date of grant.

The Compensation Committee approved the grant of performance share awards to its executive officers
pursuant to the NOW Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan, as follows:

Performance Awar ds
Name (Target # of Shares)
David Cherechinsky 155,925
Mark Johnson 36,383
Raymond Chang 36,383
Kelly Munson 25,988
Rocio Surratt 12,994

The performance share awards can be earned by the executives only by performance against established
goalsand vest three yearsfrom the grant date. The performance share awards are divided into three separate
performance metrics: 50% witha TSR (total shareholder return) goal, 25% with an EBITDA goal, and 25%
with a return on capital employed goal (ROCE). With respect to the EBITDA performance metric, the
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Compensation Committee approved the EBITDA performance metrics of 2.75%, 4.75% and 6.75% for the
minimum, target and maximum levels, respectively. With respect to the return on capital employed metric,
the Compensation Committee approved the metrics of 4%, 5% and 6% for the minimum, target and
maximum levels, respectively.

Retirement, Health and Welfar e Benefits

The Company offers retirement, heath and welfare programs to al eigible employees. The Company’s
executive officers generally are eligible for the same benefit programs on the same basis as the rest of the
Company’s employees. The health and welfare programs cover medical, pharmacy, dental, vision, HSA
and FSA, life, accident, accidenta death and dismemberment and disability insurance.

The Company offersretirement programsthat are intended to supplement the employee' s persona savings.
The programs include the NOW Inc. 401(k) and Retirement Savings Plan (“401k Plan”) and NOW Inc.
Supplemental Savings Plan (“Supplemental Plan”). The Company’s U.S. employees, including its
executives, are generaly eligible to participate in the 401k Plan. Employees of the Company who are
eligible based on guidelines established by the Company’s benefits plan administrative committee may
participate in the Supplemental Plan. Participation in the 401k Plan and Supplemental Plan are voluntary.

The Company established the 401k Plan to alow employeesto savefor retirement through atax-advantaged
combination of employee and Company contributions and to provide empl oyees the opportunity to directly
manage their retirement plan assets through avariety of investment options. The 401k Plan allows eligible
employees to elect to contribute a portion of their eligible compensation into the 401k Plan. Wages and
salaries from the Company are generally considered eligible compensation. After one year of service,
employee contributions are matched in cash by the Company at the rate of $1.00 per $1.00 employee
contribution for the first 4% of the employee’s salary. Such contributions vest immediately. The 401k Plan
offers 28 different investment options, for which the participant has sole discretion in determining how both
the employer and employee contributions are invested. The 401k Plan provides the Company’ s employees
the option to invest directly in the Company’s stock. The 401k Plan offers in-service withdrawals, loans
and hardship distributions.

The Company established the Supplemental Plan, a non-qualified plan, to:

o alow Supplemental Plan participants to continue saving towards retirement when empl oyees, due
to compensation and contribution ceilings established under the Internal Revenue Code, they can
no longer contribute to the 401k Plan; and

e provide Company contributions that cannot be contributed to the 401k Plan due to compensation
and contribution ceilings established under the Internal Revenue Code.

Compensation which may be deferred into the Supplemental Plan includes wages and salaries from the
Company and bonus payments made under a Company incentive plan. Supplemental Plan participants may
elect to defer a percentage of their base pay and bonus payments received under a Company incentive plan
into the Supplemental Plan. Contributions in the Supplemental Plan vest immediately. The investment
options offered in the Supplemental Plan are similar to the investment options offered in the 401k Plan.

On April 1, 2020, the Company announced that it would suspend al Company contributions to the 401k
and Supplemental Plans effective May 1, 2020. The Company reinstated company contributions at the rate
of $1.00 per $1.00 employee contribution for the first 4% of the employee's salary effective for the first
full pay period of 2022.
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U.S. Income Tax Limits on Deductibility

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code imposes a $1 million limitation on the deductibility of certain
compensation paid to our Chief Executive Officer and the next three highest paid executives excluding the
chief financial officer (“covered employees’). Pursuant to the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, signed into law
on December 22, 2017 (the “Tax Act”), for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, the
compensation of the chief financial officer is also subject to the deduction limitation. For fiscal years
beginning on or before December 31, 2017, Section 162(m) excluded compensation from this limitation
that qualified as “performance based.” For compensation to be performance based, it must meet certain
criteria, including being based on predetermined objective standards approved by stockholders. Our stock
option and performance-based share award grants have been designed to be “performance based
compensation” and, for periods prior to January 1, 2018, bonus payments to our executives under the
Company’s Annua Incentive Plan should also qualify as performance based and therefore be excluded
from this limitation. Pursuant to the Tax Act, subject to certain transition rules, for fiscal years beginning
after December 31, 2017, the performance-based compensation exception to the deduction limitations under
Section 162(m) will no longer be available. Asaresult, for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017,
any compensation in excess of $1,000,000 million paid to our executive officers may not be deductible.
Although the Compensation Committee takes the requirements of Section 162(m) into account in designing
executive compensation, the Compensation Committee believes that the potential deductibility of the
compensation payable under our executive compensation plans and arrangements should be only one of a
number of relevant factors taken into consideration in establishing those compensation plans and
arrangementsfor our executive officers and not the sole governing factor. For that reason, the Compensation
Committee intends to structure our compensation plans and arrangements in a manner similar to the plans
and arrangements in prior fiscal years, acknowledging that a portion of those compensation payments may
not be deductible under Section 162(m), in order to assure appropriate levels of total compensation for our
executive officers based on the Company’ s performance.

Recoupment Palicy and Other Considerations
“ Clawback” Policy Regarding the Adjustment or Recovery of Compensation

The Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan allows the Compensation Committee, at its sole discretion, to
terminate any award if it determines that the recipient of such award has engaged in material misconduct.
For purposes of this provision, material misconduct includes conduct adversely affecting the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations, or conduct which constitutes fraud or theft of Company assets,
any of which require the Company to make arestatement of itsreported financial statements. If any material
misconduct resultsin any error in financial information used in the determination of compensation paid to
the recipient of any award and the effect of such error is to increase the payment amount pursuant to such
award, the Compensation Committee may a so require the recipient to reimburse the Company for al or a
portion of such increase in compensation provided in connection with any such award. In addition, if there
isamaterial restatement of the Company’s financia statements that affects the financial information used
to determine the compensation paid to the recipient of an award, then the Compensation Committee may
take whatever action it deems appropriate to adjust such compensation.

Prohibition on Hedging and Pledging and Blackout Periods

The Company has a policy in place prohibiting the Company’ s employees (including its executives) and
directors from engaging in hedging and pledging activities with respect to the Company’s shares. The
Company prohibits its employees from making any short sales of any of the Company’s shares. The
Company also restrictsits employeesfrom engaging in any transactionsthat hedge or offset, or are designed
to hedge or offset, any decrease in the Company’ s stock value. The policy also has prohibitions against the
Company’s employees buying or selling puts, calls or options in respect of the Company’s shares. The
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Company d so restricts employees from holding any shares of the Company in amargin account or pledging
any Company stock as collateral.

Finally, the Company also restricts certain key employees from making any transactions during quarterly
blackout periods. These periods begin the day after a fiscal quarter ends until one full day after the
Company’ searnings are released or occur when an employee has material or proprietary information which
could affect the Company’ s stock price which has not been publicly released.

Stock Owner ship Guidelinesfor Executives

The Company adopted stock ownership guidelinesfor its executive officers and directorsin February 2020.
The Company’ s stock ownership guidelinesfor its executive officers and directors are intended to align the
interests of the Company’s executive officers and directors and the Company’ s stockholders by requiring
executives to accumulate and retain a meaningful level of the Company’s stock.

Under the Company’s guidelines, the executive officers must comply with the following ownership
requirements:

Title Multiple of Base Salary
CEO 6X
Other executive officers 3X

The Company’ s executive officers must attain the applicable stock ownership level within five years of first
becoming subject to the guidelines. The following shares of Company stock count towards compliance with
the guidelines: shares owned directly or indirectly by the executive; shares equal to the in-the-money
portion of any vested, unexercised options; unvested shares of time-based restricted stock or restricted stock
units, and shares credited to the executive's 401(k) plan account. Unvested and unearned performance
shares or units and unvested stock options do not count towards compliance guidelines.

Compensation Consultant Independence

In connection with its engagement of NFPCC, the Compensation Committee considered various factors
bearing upon NFPCC’ sindependence including, but not limited to, the amount of feesreceived by NFPCC
from the Company as a percentage of NFPCC' stotal revenue, NFPCC' s palicies and procedures designed
to prevent conflicts of interest, and the existence of any business or personal relationship that could impact
NFPCC' sindependence. After reviewing these and other factors, the Compensation Committee determined
that NFPCC wasindependent and that its engagement did not present any conflicts of interest. NFPCC also
determined that it was independent from management and confirmed this to the Compensation Committee.

In furtherance of maintaining the independence of the Compensation Committee’s compensation
consultant, the Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain or terminate NFPCC.

Compensation Committee Report

The responsibilities of the Compensation Committee, which are set forth in the Compensation Committee
Charter adopted by the Board of Directors, include approving and evaluating all compensation of directors
and executive officers, including salaries, bonuses, and compensation plans, policies and programs of the
Company. A copy of the Compensation Committee Charter is available on the Company’s website,
www.di stributionnow.com, under the Investor Relations/Corporate Governance section.

We, as the Members of the Compensation Committee, have reviewed and discussed with senior
management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section included in this proxy statement. Based
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on this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that
the Compensation Discussion and Anaysis be included in the Company’ s 2022 Proxy Statement.

Member s of the Compensation Committee
Richard Alario, Committee Chairman

Paul Coppinger

James Crandel|

Sonya Reed
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Employment Contractsand Termination of Employment and Change-in-Contr ol Arrangements
Cherechinsky, Johnson, Chang, Munson, and Surratt

The Company entered into employment agreements on May 30, 2014 with Messrs. Cherechinsky and
Chang, on February 16, 2018 with Mr. Johnson, on March 6, 2020 with Ms. Munson, and on November
12, 2021 with Ms. Surratt. The Company entered into new employment agreements on June 1, 2020 with
Messrs. Cherechinsky and Johnson as a result of their new positions as President and Chief Executive
Officer and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, respectively. Under the employment
agreements, Messrs. Cherechinsky, Johnson, and Chang, and Ms. Munson and Surratt are provided a base
salary. The agreements have a one-year term and are automatically extended on an annua basis. The
agreements a so provide for participation in employee incentive plans and employee benefits as generaly
provided to al employees. If the employment relationship is terminated by the Company for any reason
other than

voluntary termination;

termination for cause (as defined in the agreements);
death; or

long-term disability;

or if the employment relationship is terminated by the employee for Good Reason, the employeeis entitled
toreceiveamultiplier of their then current base salary: for Mr. Cherechinsky 3 times his current base salary,
for Messrs. Johnson and Chang 2.5 times their current base salaries, and for Ms. Munson and Ms. Surratt
1.5 times their current base salary. The executives are also entitled to an amount equal to the total of the
employer matching contributions under the Company’s 401k Plan and Supplemental Plan as well as
continued participation in the Company’s welfare and medical benefit plans. Further, any restricted stock
held by the executive, not aready vested, will be 100% vested.

Under the agreements, termination by Messrs. Cherechinsky, Johnson, and Chang and Ms. Munson and
Ms. Surratt for “Good Reason” means:

o amateria diminution of any duties inconsistent with their current position or any action by the
Company that resultsin adiminution in his position, authority, duties or responsibilities; or
o afailure by the Company to comply with the terms of the agreement.

The agreements al so contain restrictions on competitive activities and solicitation of our employeesfor two
yearsfor Mr. Cherechinsky and one year for Messrs. Johnson and Chang and Ms. Munson and Ms. Surratt
following the date of termination. After any such termination of employment, the executive will also have
the option to participate in the Company’ s welfare and medical benefit plans at employee rates for a period
of time and will be entitled to receive outplacement servicesvalued at not more than 15% of the executive's
base salary.

Additionally, the Company’ s stock option agreements, restricted stock agreements, and performance award
agreements provide for full vesting of unvested outstanding options, restricted stock, and performance
awards, respectively, in the event of a change of control of the Company and a change in the holder’s
responsibilities following a change in control of the Company (a*“double trigger”).

The Company’ s employment agreements with its executives do not contain any “gross up” provisions for

excise tax that could be imposed under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code as a result of any
payment or benefits provided to an executive under their employment agreement.
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Potential Payments Upon Termination or Changein Control

The Company has entered into certain agreements and maintains certain plansthat will require the Company
to provide compensation to the named executive officers in the event of atermination of employment or
changein control of the Company.

The Company’s Compensation Committee believes the payment and benefit levels provided to its named
executive officers under their employment agreements and/or change of control plans upon termination or
change of control should correspond to the level of responsibility and risk assumed by the named executive
officer. Thus, the payment and benefit levelsfor Mr. Cherechinsky, Mr. Johnson, Mr. Chang, Ms. Munson,
and Ms. Surratt are based on their levels of responsibility and market considerations at the time the
Company entered into the relevant agreements. The Compensation Committee recognizes that it is not
likely that the Company’s named executive officers would be retained by an acquirer in the event of a
change of control. As a result, the Compensation Committee believes that a certain amount of cash
compensation, along with immediate vesting of all unvested equity compensation, is an appropriate and
sufficient incentive for the named executive officers to remain employed with the Company, even if a
change of control were imminent. It is believed that these benefit levels should provide the Company’s
named executive officers with reasonable financial security so that they could continue to make strategic
decisions that benefit the future of the Company.

The amount of compensation payable to each named executive officer as of December 31, 2021 in each
situation islisted in the tables below.
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Thefollowing table describes the potential payments upon termination or change in control of the Company
as of December 31, 2021 for David Cherechinsky, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer.

Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Involuntary Not for Cause
Termination (1) Termination (2)

Base Sdlary (3 times) $1,950,000

Continuing medical benefits $38,891

Retirement Contribution and Matching $91,685

Value of Unvested Stock Options $0

Value of Unvested Restricted Stock $1,123,719

Value of Unvested Performance Awards (3) | $2,247,438

Outplacement Services (4) $97,500

Total: $5,549,233

(1) For purposes of this analysis, we assumed the Executive’ s compensation is as follows: base salary as
of December 31, 2021 of $650,000. Unvested stock options include 18,396 from 2019 grant at
$15.30/share, 57,929 from 2020 grant at $9.53/share, and 198,213 from 2021 grant at $10.26/share.
Unvested restricted stock includes 13,562 shares from 2019 grant, 21,773 shares from 2020 grant, and
96,248 from 2021 grant. Unvested performance share awards includes 27,124 shares from 2019 grant,
43,547 shares from 2020 grant, and 192,495 from 2021 grant. The value of unvested stock options,
restricted stock and performance share awards is based on the share price of $8.54, the Company’s
closing stock price on December 31, 2021.

(2) Assumes the employment relationship is terminated by the Company for any reason other than
voluntary termination, termination for cause, death, or disability, or if the employment relationship is
terminated by the executivefor “ Good Reason”, as of December 31, 2021. Termination by the executive
for “ Good Reason” meansthe amaterial diminution of any dutiesinconsistent with his current position
or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in the executive' s position, authority, duties
or responsibilities; afailure by the Company to comply with the terms of the executive’ s employment
agreement; or the requirement of the executive to rel ocate from where he was employed as of the date
of the employment agreement.

(3) For purposesof thisanalysis, we have assumed that the performance share awards vest at target (100%).

(4) Executive aso entitled to outplacement services valued at not more than 15% of base salary. For
purposes of thisanalysis, we valued the outplacement services at 15% of base salary.

In the event of:

o aCompany termination of Mr. Cherechinsky’ s employment for cause;

o Mr. Cherechinsky’s voluntary termination of his employment with the Company (not for “Good
Reason”); or

e Mr. Cherechinsky’ s employment with the Company isterminated due to his death or disability,

no extra benefits are payable by the Company to Mr. Cherechinsky as a result of any such events, other
than accrued obligations and benefits owed by the Company to Mr. Cherechinsky (such as base salary
through the date of termination and his outstanding ba ance in the Company’s 401k Plan and Supplemental
Plan). In the event termination is not for cause, Mr. Cherechinsky would also be entitled to receive an
amount equal to 50% of his base salary.
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Thefollowing table describes the potential payments upon termination or change in control of the Company
as of December 31, 2021 for Mark Johnson, the Company’s Senior Vice President and Chief Financia

Officer.

Executive Benefitsand Payments Involuntary Not for Cause
Upon Termination (1) Termination (2)
Base Salary (2.5 times) $962,500
Continuing medical benefits $0
Retirement Contribution and Matching $42,873
Value of Unvested Stock Options $0
Value of Unvested Restricted Stock $322,607
Value of Unvested Performance Awards (3) | $645,231
Outplacement Services (4) $57,750
Total: $2,030,961

(1) For purposes of this analysis, we assumed the Executive’ s compensation is as follows: base sdary

as of December 31, 2021, of $385,000. Unvested stock options include 6,982 options from 2019
grant at $15.30/share, 21,985 optionsfrom 2020 grant at $9.53/share, and 50,181 optionsfrom 2021
grant at $10.26/share. Unvested restricted stock includes 5,147 shares from 2019 grant, 8,263
shares from 2020 grant, and 24,366 shares from 2021 grant. Unvested performance share awards
includes 10,294 shares from 2019 grant, 16,527 shares from 2020 grant, and 48,733 shares from
2021 grant. The value of unvested stock options, restricted stock and performance share awards is
based on the share price of $8.54, the Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2021.

(2) Assumes the employment relationship is terminated by the Company for any reason other than

voluntary termination, termination for cause, death, or disability, or if the employment relationship
is terminated by the executive for “Good Reason”, as of December 31, 2021. Termination by the
executive for “Good Reason” means a material diminution of any duties inconsistent with his
current position or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in the executive's
position, authority, duties or responsibilities; afailure by the Company to comply with the terms of
the executive' s employment agreement; or the requirement of the executive to relocate from where
he was employed as of the date of the employment agreement.

(3) For purposes of this analysis, we have assumed that the performance share awards vest at target

(100%).

(4) Executive aso entitled to outplacement services valued at hot more than 15% of base salary. For

purposes of thisanalysis, we valued the outplacement services at 15% of base salary.

In the event of:

a Company termination of Mr. Johnson’s employment for cause;
Mr. Johnson’s voluntary termination of his employment with the Company (not for “Good Reason”);

or

Mr. Johnson’ s employment with the Company is terminated due to his death or disability,

no extra benefits are payable by the Company to Mr. Johnson as a result of any such events, other than
accrued obligations and benefits owed by the Company to Mr. Johnson (such as base salary through the
date of termination and his outstanding balance in the Company’s 401k Plan and Supplemental Plan). In
the event termination is not for cause, Mr. Johnson would also be entitled to receive an amount equa to
50% of his base salary.
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Thefollowing table describes the potential payments upon termination or change in control of the Company
as of December 31, 2021 for Raymond Chang, the Company’s Vice President and General Counsel.

Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Involuntary Not for Cause
Termination (1) Termination (2)
Base Sdlary (2.5 times) $1,030,000
Continuing medical benefits $466,160
Retirement Contribution and Matching $51,997
Value of Unvested Stock Options $0
Value of Unvested Restricted Stock $362,497
Value of Unvested Performance Awards (3) | $724,978
Outplacement Services (4) $61,800
Total: $2,697,432

(1) For purposes of this analysis, we assumed the Executive’ s compensation is as follows: base salary as
of December 31, 2021 of $412,000. Unvested stock optionsinclude 13,852 options from 2019 grant at
$15.30/share, 43,621 options from 2020 grant at $9.53/share, and 32,617 options from 2021 grant at
$10.26/share. Unvested restricted stock includes 10,212 shares from 2019 grant, 16,396 shares from
2020 grant, and 15,839 shares from 2021 grant. Unvested performance share awards includes 20,425
shares from 2019 grant, 32,791 shares from 2020 grant, and 31,676 shares from 2021 grant. The vaue
of unvested stock options, restricted stock and performance share awardsis based on the share price of
$8.54, the Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2021.

(2) Assumes the employment relationship is terminated by the Company for any reason other than
voluntary termination, termination for cause, death, or disability, or if the employment relationship is
terminated by the executive for “Good Reason”, as of December 31, 2021. Termination by the
executive for “Good Reason” means a material diminution of any duties inconsistent with his current
position or any action by the Company that resultsin adiminution in the executive' s position, authority,
duties or responsibilities; a failure by the Company to comply with the terms of the executive's
employment agreement; or the requirement of the executive to relocate or to travel to a substantially
greater extent than required at the date of the employment agreement.

(3) For purposesof thisanalysis, we have assumed that the performance share awards vest at target (100%).

(4) Executive aso entitled to outplacement services valued at not more than 15% of base salary. For
purposes of thisanalysis, we valued the outplacement services at 15% of base salary.

In the event of:

o aCompany termination of Mr. Chang's employment for cause;
e Mr. Chang’s voluntary termination of his employment with the Company (not for “ Good Reason”); or
e Mr. Chang’s employment with the Company isterminated due to his death or disability,

no extra benefits are payable by the Company to Mr. Chang as a result of any such events, other than
accrued obligations and benefits owed by the Company to Mr. Chang (such as base salary through the date
of termination and his outstanding balance in the Company’s 401k Plan and Supplemental Plan). In the
event termination is not for cause, Mr. Chang would also be entitled to receive an amount equal to 50% of
his base salary.
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Thefollowing table describes the potential payments upon termination or change in control of the Company
as of December 31, 2021 for Kelly Munson, the Company’ s Chief Administrative and Information Officer.

Executive Benefitsand Payments Involuntary Not for Cause
Upon Termination (1) Termination (2)

Base Sdlary (1.5 times) $337,500

Continuing medical benefits $38,891

Retirement Contribution and Matching $25,056

Value of Unvested Stock Options $0

Value of Unvested Restricted Stock $194,106

Value of Unvested Performance Awards (3) | $361,438

Outplacement Services (4) $33,750

Total: $990,741

(1) For purposes of this analysis, we assumed the Executive’ s compensation is as follows: base sdary

as of December 31, 2021 of $225,000. Unvested stock options include 2,644 options from 2019
grant at $15.30/share, 20,985 optionsfrom 2020 grant at $9.53/share, and 27,599 optionsfrom 2021
grant a $10.26/share. Unvested restricted stock includes 1,567 shares from 2019 grant, 7,760
shares from 2020 grant, and 13,402 shares from 2021 grant. Unvested performance share awards
are 15,520 shares from 2020 grant and 26,803 from 2021 grant. The value of unvested stock
options, restricted stock and performance share awards is based on the share price of $8.54, the
Company’s closing stock price on December 31, 2021.

(2) Assumes the employment relationship is terminated by the Company for any reason other than

voluntary termination, termination for cause, death, or disability, or if the employment relationship
is terminated by the executive for “Good Reason”, as of December 31, 2021. Termination by the
executive for “Good Reason” means a material diminution of any duties inconsistent with her
current position or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in the executive's
position, authority, duties or responsibilities; afailure by the Company to comply with the terms of
the executive' s employment agreement; or the requirement of the executive to relocate from where
she was employed as of the date of the employment agreement.

(3) For purposes of this analysis, we have assumed that the performance share awards vest at target

(100%).

(4) Executive dso entitled to outplacement services valued at not more than 15% of base salary. For

purposes of thisanalysis, we valued the outplacement services at 15% of base salary.

In the event of:

a Company termination of Ms. Munson’ s employment for cause;
Ms. Munson’ s voluntary termination of her employment with the Company (not for “Good Reason”);

or

Ms. Munson’'s employment with the Company is terminated due to her death or disability,

no extra benefits are payable by the Company to Ms. Munson as a result of any such events, other than
accrued obligations and benefits owed by the Company to Ms. Munson (such as base salary through the
date of termination and her outstanding balance in the Company’ s 401k Plan and Supplementa Plan). In
the event termination is not for cause, Ms. Munson would aso be entitled to receive an amount equal to
50% of her base salary.
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Thefollowing table describes the potential payments upon termination or change in control of the Company
as of December 31, 2021 for Rocio Surratt, the Company’s Vice President — Finance and Corporate
Controller.

Executive Benefitsand Payments Involuntary Not for Cause
Upon Termination (1) Termination (2)

Base Salary (1.5 times) $240,000

Continuing medical benefits $0

Retirement Contribution and Matching $15,442

Value of Unvested Stock Options $0

Value of Unvested Restricted Stock $52,026

Value of Unvested Performance Awards $104,043

Outplacement Services $24,000

Total: $435,511

(1) For purposes of this analysis, we assumed the Executive’ s compensation is as follows: base sdary
as of December 31, 2021 of $160,000. Unvested stock options include 12,545 options from 2021
grant at $10.26/share. Unvested restricted stock includes 6,092 shares from 2021 grant. Unvested
performance share awards are 12,183 shares from 2021 grant. The value of unvested stock options,
restricted stock and performance share awardsis based on the share price of $8.54, the Company’s
closing stock price on December 31, 2021.

(2) Assumes the employment relationship is terminated by the Company for any reason other than
voluntary termination, termination for cause, death, or disability, or if the employment relationship
is terminated by the executive for “ Good Reason”, as of December 31, 2021. Termination by the
executive for “Good Reason” means a material diminution of any duties inconsistent with her
current position or any action by the Company that results in a diminution in the executive's
position, authority, duties or responsibilities; afailure by the Company to comply with the terms of
the executive' s employment agreement; or the requirement of the executive to relocate from where
she was employed as of the date of the employment agreement.

(3) For purposes of this analysis, we have assumed that the performance share awards vest at target
(100%).

(4) Executive aso entitled to outplacement services valued at not more than 15% of base salary. For
purposes of thisanalysis, we valued the outplacement services at 15% of base salary.

In the event of:

o aCompany termination of Ms. Surratt’ s employment for cause;
e Ms. Surratt’s voluntary termination of her employment with the Company (not for “ Good Reason”); or
e Ms. Surratt’s employment with the Company is terminated due to her death or disability,

no extra benefits are payable by the Company to Ms. Surratt as a result of any such events, other than
accrued obligations and benefits owed by the Company to Ms. Surratt (such as base salary through the date
of termination and her outstanding balance in the Company’s 401k Plan and Supplemental Plan). In the
event termination is not for cause, Ms. Surratt would also be entitled to receive an amount equal to 50% of
her base salary.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table sets forth for the year ended December 31, 2021 the compensation paid by the Company to its named
executive officers (the “Named Executive Officers’) serving in such capacity at December 31, 2021.

Summary Compensation Table

Name and Y ear Saary Bonus Stock Option Non-Equity | Change | All Other Tota ($)
Principal (%) (%) Awards Awards Incentive in Compen-
Position %D ($)(2 Plan Pension sation
Compens- Vaue ($)(4)
ation and
$?3) Nonqual-
ified
Deferred
Compen-
sation
Earnings
%
@ (b) (© (d) (e) ) (@ (h) (i) @)
David 2021 | $650,000 - $3,309,101 $996,734 | $1,032,646 - - $5,988,481
Cherechinsky | 2020 | $554,808 - $498,233 | $207,971 - - $13,976 | $1,274,988
Eﬁfdeﬂt& 2019 | $424,923 - $711,285 | $166,110 | $191,001 - $34,483 | $1,527,802
i
Executive
Officer
Mark Johnson | 2021 | $385,000 - $837,732 $252,340 $489,316 - - $1,964,388
Senior Vice 2020 | $324,923 - $189,083 $78,928 - - $6,309 $599,243
EL‘?zrdent& 2019 | $243,000 - $269,952 $63,041 $102,382 - $18,225 $696,600
i
Financial
Officer
Raymond 2021 | $412,000 - $544,539 $164,018 $523,631 - - $1,644,188
Chang 2020 | $412,000 - $375,177 | $156,604 . - $11,410 | $955,191
VP, General | 2019 | $411,954 - $535,610 | $125084 | $185,159 - $24,082 | $1,281,889
Counsdl, &
Secretary
Kelly Munson | 2021 $225,000 - $460,760 $138,784 $285,964 - - $1,110,508
Chief 2020 | $188,077 - $177,572 $75,358 - - $3,692 $444,699
Administrative | 2919 - - - - - - - -

and
Information
Officer
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Rocio Surratt

VP — Finance
and Corporate
Controller

2021 | $160,000 - $209434 | $63084 | $165223 - - $597,741
2020 | $76,923 - - - - - - $76,923
2019 - - - - - - - -

@

@

®
4

The amounts reported in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of stock awards granted in the relevant year
compiled in accordance with FASB Topic 718, excluding forfeiture estimates. Refer to the Company’s 2021 Annua Report on
Form 10-K, for al relevant valuation assumptions used to determine the grant date fair value of the stock awards included in this
column. On February 23, 2021, the Named Executive Officers at that time were granted shares of performance-based share awards,
which are included in this column in the table above. The grants vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant, contingent on
performance against three separate, independently established goals. For a more detailed discussion, see the section titled “Long-
Term Incentive Compensation”. For the performance-based share awards, the value as of the grant date under FASB ASC Topic
718, excluding the effect of estimated forfeitures, based upon the probable outcome of such conditions were as follows: Mr.
Cherechinsky - $2,321,597; Mr. Chang - $382,031; Mr. Johnson - $587,736; Ms. Munson - $323,256; and Ms. Surratt - $146,930.
For the performance-based share awards, the value as of the grant date under FASB ASC Topic 718, excluding the effect of
estimated forfeitures, assuming that the highest level of performance conditionswill be achieved were asfollows: Mr. Cherechinsky
- $3,949,997; Mr. Chang - $649,992; Mr. Johnson - $1,000,001; Ms. Munson - $549,998; and Ms. Surratt - $249,995.

The amounts reported in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of option awards granted in the relevant year
compiled in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, excluding forfeiture estimates. Refer to the Company’s 2021 Annual Report
on Form 10-K, for al relevant valuation assumptions used to determine the grant date fair value of option awards included in this
column.

Starting in 2015, the Named Executive Officers have participated in the NOW Inc. Annual Incentive Plan. For further information,
see the section titled “Annual Incentive Award”.

The amounts include cash contributions under the Company’s 401k Plan and under the Supplemental Plan, both defined
contribution plans. On April 1, 2020, the Company announced that it would suspend al Company contributions to the 401k and
Supplemental Plans effective May 1, 2020. The Company reinstated company contributions at the rate of $1.00 per $1.00 employee
contribution for the first 4% of the employee’s salary effective January 2022.
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Grants of Plan Based Awards

The following table provides information concerning stock options, restricted stock, and performance share awards
granted to Named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. The Company has granted no stock
appreciation rights.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

Name Grant | Estimated Possible Payouts Under Estimated Future Payouts Under | All Other | All Other | Exercise | Grant Date
Date | Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards Equity Incentive Plan Awards Stock Option or Base | Fair Valueof
Awards: Awards: Price of Stock and
Number of | Number of [ Option |Option Awards
Sharesof | Securities | Awards 3
Threshold | Target | Maximum | Threshold| Target [ Maximum | Stock or | Underlying | ($/Sh)
®@ ®@ ®@ 2 | MO Q2 Units Options
(@) #

@ (b) © (d) C ® @ (h) 0] @ (k) U]

David 2021 | $325,000 | $650,000 | $1,300,000 [ 96,248 | 192,495 | 384,990 96,248 198,213 $10.26 $4,305,837
Cherechinsky

Mark Johnson  |2021 | $154,000 | $308,000 | $616,000 | 24,367 | 48,733 97,466 24,366 50,181 $10.26 $1,090,071

Raymond 2021 | $164,800 | $329,600 | $659,200 15,838 31,676 63,352 15,839 32,617 $10.26 $708,557
Chang

Kelly Munson 12021 | $84,375 | $168,750 | $337,500 | 13,402 | 26,803 53,606 13,402 27,599 $10.26 $599,544

Rocio Surratt 2021 $52,000 | $104,000 | $208,000 6,092 12,183 24,366 6,092 12,545 $10.26 $272,517

(1) Representsthe range of possible payouts under our 2021 annual incentive compensation plan.

(2)  OnFebruary 23, 2021, each of the Named Executive Officers was granted performance-based share awards, which are
reflected in the “Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards’ column in the table above. The
performance share awards can be earned by the executivesonly by performance against established goals and vest three
years from the grant date. The performance share awards are divided into three independent parts that are subject to
these three separate performance metrics: 50% with a TSR (total shareholder return) goal, 25% with an EBITDA goal
and 25% with areturn on capital employed goal (ROCE). For amore detailed discussion, see the section titled “Long
Term Incentive Compensation”.

(3) Assumptions made in calculating the value of option and restricted stock awards are further discussed in Item 15.
Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules— Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 17, of the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021.
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Exercises and Holdings of Previously-Awarded Equity Disclosure

The following table provides information regarding outstanding awards that have been granted to Named
Executive Officers where the ultimate outcomes of such awards have not been realized, as of December 31, 2021. The
table includes awards received by the Named Executive Officers while employed under NOV (NOV awards granted prior
to the spin-off) which were converted into Company awards as aresult of the spin-off from NOV.

Outstanding Equity Awardsat Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards Stock Awards
Name Number Number of Equity Option Option Number of [ Market Vaue Equity Equity
of Securities Incentive Exercise | Expiration | Sharesor Units| of Sharesor Incentive | Incentive Plan
Securities Underlying [ Plan Awards: Price Date of Stock That Units of Plan Awards: Awards:
Underlying [ Unexercised | Number of %) Have Not Stock That | Number of Market or
Unexercised Options Securities Vested Have Not Unearned Payout Vaue
Options # Underlying # Vested Shares, Units| of Unearned
# Unexercisable | Unexercised %) (1) or Other Shares, Units
Exercisable Unearned Rights That [or Other Rights
Options HaveNot [ That Have Not
(€3] Vested Vested
# %) (1)
@ (b) (© (d) (e) ® (@ (hy 0] )
10,565 $29.123 2/16/23
10,565 $31.433 2/26/24
25,121 $13.71 2/19/23
29,470 $20.64 2/21/24
123,881 $9.90 2/20/25
18,395 9,198 (2) $15.30 2/19/26
19,309 38,620 (3) $9.53 2/21/27
198,213 (4 10.26 2/23/28
David @) $
Cherechinsky 13,562 (5) $115,819
27,124 (6) $231,639
21,773 (7) $185,941
43,547 (8) $371,891
96,248 (9) $821,958
192,495 (10) |$1,643,907
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Option Awards Stock Awards
Name Number Number of Equity Option Option Number of | Market Value Equity Equity
of Securities Incentive Exercise | Expiration | Sharesor Units| of Sharesor Incentive | Incentive Plan
Securities | Underlying | Plan Awards: Price Date of Stock That Units of Plan Awards: Awards:
Underlying [ Unexercised | Number of %) Have Not Stock That | Number of Market or
Unexercised Options Securities Vested Have Not Unearned Payout Vaue
Options # Underlying # Vested Shares, Units| of Unearned
# Unexercisable | Unexercised ® @ or Other Shares, Units
Exercisable Unearned Rights That [or Other Rights
Options HaveNot | That Have Not
# Vested Vested
# ® @)
@ (b) (© (d) (e) ® () (h) 0} 0)
10,565 $29.123 2/16/23
15,093 $31.433 2/26/24
41,580 $13.71 2/19/23
51,572 $20.64 2/21/24
93,284 $9.90 2/20/25
Rg{gﬁgd 13,852 6,926 (2) $15.30 2/19/26
14,540 21,811 (3) $9.53 2/21/27
32,617 (4) $10.26 2/23/28
10,212 (5)  |$87,210
20,425 (6)  |$174,430
16,396 (7)  |$140,022
32,791 (8)  [$280,035
15,839 (9)  |$135,265
31,676 (10) |$270,513
2,413 $29,123 2/16/23
3,018 $31.433 2/26/24
16,500 $13.71 2/19/23
13,000 $20.64 2/21/24
Mark 47,015 $9.90 2/20/25
Johnson g ggq 3,491 (2) $15.30 2/19/26
7,328 14,657 (3) $9.53 2/21/27
50,181 (4) $10.26 2/23/28
5,147 (5) $43,955
10,294 (6)  |$87,911
8,263 (7) $70,566
16,527 (8)  [$141,141
24,366 (9)  |$208,086
48,733 (10) |$416,180
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Option Awards Stock Awards
Name Number Number of Equity Option Option Number of | Market Vaue Equity Equity
of Securities Incentive Exercise | Expiration | Sharesor Units| of Sharesor Incentive | Incentive Plan
Securities Underlying | Plan Awards: Price Date of Stock That Units of Plan Awards: Awards:
Underlying [ Unexercised | Number of %) Have Not Stock That | Number of Market or
Unexercised Options Securities Vested Have Not Unearned Payout Vaue
Options # Underlying # Vested Shares, Units| of Unearned
# Unexercisable | Unexercised (%) (1) or Other Shares, Units
Exercisable Unearned Rights That [or Other Rights
Options HaveNot | That Have Not
# Vested Vested
# ® O
@ (b) (© (d) (e) ® (@ (h) (0] @
3,018 $31.433 2/26/24
7,500 $13.71 2/19/23
5,250 $20.64 2/21/24
6,666 $9.90 2/20/25
Kely
Munson 2,643 1,322 (2) $15.30 2/19/26
6,995 13,990 (3) $9.53 2/21/27
27,599 (4) $10.26 2/23/28
1,567 (5) $13,382
7,760 (7) $66,270
15,520 (8) $132,541
13,402 (9) $114,453
26,803 (10) |$228,398
. 12,545 (5) $10.26 2/23/28
Rocio
Surratt 6,092 (9) $52,026
12,183 (10) |$104,043

(1)
()
©)
4)
)
(6)

(7)
8

(9)
(10)

Calculations based upon the closing price ($8.54) of the Company’s common stock on December 31, 2021.

2019 Stock Option Grant — Stock optionsvest at the rate of 33 1/3%/year, with vesting dates of 2/19/2020, 2/19/2021, 2/19/2022.
2020 Stock Option Grant — Stock optionsvest at the rate of 33 1/3%/year, with vesting dates of 2/21/2021, 2/21/2022, 2/21/2023.
2021 Stock Option Grant — Stock optionsvest at the rate of 33 1/3%/year, with vesting dates of 2/23/2022, 2/23/2023, 2/23/2024.
2019 Restricted Stock Award — The Grant vests 100% on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

2019 Performance Share Award Grant — The performance share awards can be earned by the executives only by performance
against established goals and vest three years from the grant date. The performance share awards are divided into three
independent parts that are subject to these three separate performance metrics: 50% with a TSR (tota shareholder return) goal,
25% with an EBITDA goa and 25% with a ROCE (return on capital employed) goal.

2020 Restricted Stock Award — The Grant vests 100% on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

2020 Performance Share Award Grant — The performance shares awards can be earned by the executives only by performance
against established goals and vest three years from the grant date. The performance share awards are divided into three
independent parts that are subject to these three separate performance metrics: 50% with a TSR (total shareholder return) goal,
25% with an EBITDA goa and 25% with a ROCE (return on capital employed) goal.

2021 Restricted Stock Award — The Grant vests 100% on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

2021 Performance Share Award Grant — The performance shares awards can be earned by the executives only by performance
against established goals and vest three years from the grant date. The performance share awards are divided into three,
independent parts that are subject to these three separate performance metrics: 50% with a TSR (tota shareholder return) goal,
25% with an EBITDA goa and 25% with a ROCE (return on capital employed) goal.
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Thefollowing table provides information on the amounts received by the Named Executive Officers during
2021 upon exercise of stock options or vesting of stock awards.

Option Exercisesand Stock Vested

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of |ValueRealized| Number of Value Realized
Name Shares on Exercise Shares on Vesting
Acquired €] Acquired %
on Exercise on Vesting

# #)
@ (b) © (d) (e)

David Cherechinsky |0 $0 40,543 $379,888
Raymond Chang 0 $0 30,530 $286,066
Mark Johnson 0 $0 15,387 $144,176
Kelly Munson 0 $0 1,450 $13,587
Rocio Surratt 0 $0 0 $0
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Post-Employment Compensation

The following table provides information on nonqualified deferred compensation provided under the
Supplementa Plan to the Named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. For a
more detailed discussion, see the section titled “ Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Retirement, Health
and Welfare Benefits’.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contributionsin | Contributionsin | Earningsin Last | Withdrawals/ Balance
Last FY Last FY FY Distributions at Last
Name ®@) ®? ®A) ) FYE
3
@ (b) (© (d) (€) (f)
David Cherechinsky $0 $0 ($114) - $15,999
Raymond Chang $0 $0 $7,228 - $38,489
Mark Johnson $0 $0 $3,777 - $38,446
Kelly Munson $0 $0 $0 - $0
Rocio Surratt $0 $0 $0 - $0

(1) Executive contributions were from the executive’s salary and are included in the Summary Compensation Table under the
“Salary” column.

(2) Registrant contributions are included in the Summary Compensation Table under the “ All Other Compensation” column.

(3) Aggregate earningsreflect the returns of the investment funds sel ected by the executives and are not included in the Summary
Compensation Table.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

We transact business with companies with which certain of our Directors are affiliated. All transactionswith
these companies are on terms competitive with other third party vendors, and none of these is material either
to us or any of these companies.

A “conflict of interest” occurs when adirector or executive officer’s private interest interferesin any way, or
appears to interfere, with the interests of the Company. Conflicts of interest can arise when a director or
executive officer, or amember of hisor her immediate family, have a direct or indirect material interestin a
transaction with us. Conflicts of interest aso arise when adirector or executive officer, or amember of hisor
her immediate family, receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her position as a director or
executive officer of the Company. The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Members of the
Board of Directors and Executive Officers provides that directors and executive officers must avoid conflicts
of interests with the Company. Any situation that involves, or may reasonably be expected to involve, a
conflict of interest with the Company must be disclosed immediately to the Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee for his review and approval or ratification. This Code aso provides that the Company shall not
make any personal loans or extensions of credit to nor become contingently liable for any indebtedness of
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directors or executive officers or amember of hisor her family.

On February 27, 2021, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement to acquire the horizontal
pumping business of GR Energy Services (the “Flex Flow Acquisition”). The Flex Flow Acquisition closed
on April 1, 2021. Our Chairman of the Board at such time, Wayne Richards, served as President and CEO,
and isaminority shareholder, of GR Energy Services. Consistent with our related person transactions policy
and code of conduct, Mr. Richards recused himsalf from all board discussions and decisions related to the
Flex Flow Acquisition and did not participate in any negotiations with respect thereto. Our Board, excluding
Mr. Richards, in consultation with its independent financial advisors, independently evaluated and approved
the Flex Flow Acquisition. On August 10, 2021, Mr. Richards resigned from the Board due to persona
reasons.

One of our directors, Paul Coppinger, isthe Division President of SPM Qil & Gas, a Caterpillar Company
which was previously Weir Oil & Gas (part of the Weir Group PLC) prior to its acquisition in February
2021. For the 2021 fiscal year, we made payments to various subsidiaries of SPM Qil & Gas for certain
products of approximately $2.8 million. In the Company's opinion, the terms of such payments were
substantially equivalent to those which would have been obtained from unaffiliated third parties. Such
amounts are not material to either the Company or SPM Oil & Gas.

On August 11, 2021, the Board of Directors elected Sonya Reed as an independent member of the Board.
Ms. Reed is the Senior Vice President of Human Resources and Corporate Communication at Phillips 66,
whichisan existing Company customer. During 2021, the Company recorded revenue from Phillips 66 and
its subsidiaries in the amount of approximately $20 million. In the Company’s opinion, the terms of such
payments were substantially equivaent to those which would have been obtained from unaffiliated third
parties. Such amounts are not material to either the Company or Phillips 66.

Pay Ratio

As required by Section 953(b) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and
Item 402(u) of Regulation S-K, we are providing the following information about the relationship of the
median annua total compensation of our worldwide employee population and the annual tota
compensation of Mr. Cherechinsky, our President and Chief Executive Officer (our “ CEQ").

For 2021, our last completed fiscal year:

. the median of the estimated annual total compensation of al employees of our company
(other than our CEO), was $60,750; and

. the annual total compensation of our CEO was $5,988,481.

Based on this information, for 2021, our Chief Executive Officer's annualized total compensation was
approximately 98.5 times that of the median of the annual total compensation of al employees.

To identify the median of the estimated annual total compensation of all our employees, as well as to
determine the annual total compensation of the “median employee,” the methodology and the material
assumptions, adjustments, and estimates that we used were as follows:

1. As permitted under the SEC rules, in order to identify our median employee, we used a consistently
applied compensation measure of estimated ‘total cash compensation’ earned from January 1, 2021 to
December 31, 2021. We used December 31, 2021 for our employee listing and annualized total cash
compensation for those permanent employees who commenced work during 2021. We did not adjust the
size of our employee population or make any cost-of-living adjustments when identifying our median
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employee.

2. In calculating the estimated annual total compensation of the median employee and CEO, we identified
and included the elements of such compensation in accordance with the requirement of Item 402(c)(2)(x)
of Regulation S-K.

3. We believe the pay ratio disclosed above is a reasonable estimate calculated in accordance with SEC
rules, based on our records and the methodol ogy described above. The SEC rulesfor identifying the median
employee and cal culating the pay ratio allow companiesto use avariety of methodologiesand apply various
assumptions. The application of various methodol ogies may result in significant differences in the results
reported by SEC reporting companies. As aresult, the pay ratio reported by other companies may not be
comparable to the pay ratio we report above.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Directors who are employees of the Company do not receive compensation for serving on the Board of
Directors. The following table sets forth the compensation paid by the Company to its non-employee
members of the Board of Directorsfor the year ended December 31, 2021.

Director Compensation

Name Fees Earned Stock Option | Non-Equity Changein All Other Total
or Awards [Awards|Incentive Plan| Pension |Compensation (%)
Paidin % ($) |Compensation| Vaueand %
Cash % Nonqualified
$ Deferred
Compensation
Earnings
(@ (b) ©@) (d) (€) () ) (h)
Richard Alario |$121,000 |$186,002 - - - - $307,002
Terry Bonno $118,500 |$120,001 - - - - $238,501
Galen Cobb $103,500 |$120,001 - - - - $223,501
Paul Coppinger |$108,000 |($120,001 - - - - $228,001
James Crandell ($113,000 ($120,001 - - - - $233,001
Rodney Eads  |$131,000 |$120,001 - - - - $251,001
J. Wayne $105,174 - - - - - $105,174
Richards (2)
Sonya Reed (3) |$19,500 $119,997 $139,497

(1) Theaggregate number of outstanding shares of restricted stock as of December 31, 2021 for each director are asfollows: Mr.
Alario—16,971; Ms. Bonno —10,949; Mr. Cobb —10,949; Mr. Coppinger — 10,949; Mr. Crandell —10,949; Mr. Eads—10,949;
and Ms. Reed — 15,094. Award price is based on the value of the shares on the date of grant and is subject to fluctuation based

on share price variance.

@

from the Board, Mr. Richards pending stock awards were cancelled.

(3) Ms. Reed joined the Board of Directors on August 11, 2021.

Board Compensation

On August 10, 2021, Mr. Richards resigned from the Board. The resignation was not the result of any disagreement with the
Company or any of its affiliates on any matter relating to the Company’ s operations, policies, or practices. Upon hisresignation

Members of the Company’s Board of Directors who are not full-time employees of the Company receive
the following cash compensation:

e For service on the Board of Directors —an annual retainer of $70,000, paid quarterly;

e For service as chairperson of the audit committee of the Board of Directors— an annual retainer of
$20,000, paid quarterly;
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e For service as chairperson of the compensation committee of the Board of Directors — an annual
retainer of $15,000, paid quarterly;

e For service as chairperson of the environmental, social, governance, and nominating committee of
the Board of Directors—an annual retainer of $15,000, paid quarterly;

e For service as a member of the audit committee of the Board of Directors —an annual retainer of
$7,500, paid quarterly;

e For service as a member of the compensation committee of the Board of Directors — an annual
retainer of $5,000, paid quarterly;

e For service as amember of the environmental, social, governance, and nominating committee of
the Board of Directors—an annual retainer of $5,000, paid quarterly; and

e $2,000 for each Board meeting and each committee meeting attended.

The independent Chairman of the Board receives an annual cash retainer of $44,000, paid quarterly. The
independent Chairman of the Board also receives an annual restricted stock grant valued at approximately
$66,000, in addition to the annual restricted stock grant value received by all non-employee directors of the
Company.

Directors of the Board who are aso employees of the Company do not receive any compensation for their
service as directors.

Members of the Board are also eligible to receive stock options and awards, including restricted stock,
performance awards, phantom shares, stock payments, or SARs under the NOW Inc. Long-Term Incentive
Plan. The Board approved the grant of 10,949 shares of restricted stock awards on May 19, 2021 to each
non-employee director under the NOW Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan with the exception of Mr. Alario
who was awarded 16,971 shares of restricted stock awards on May 19, 2021 and Ms. Reed who was
awarded 15,094 shares of restricted stock awards on August 11, 2021 upon her appointment to the Board.
The restricted stock award shares vest in full on the first anniversary of the date of the grant.

CEO Search Committee

Rodney Eads (Chair), Terry Bonno and James Crandell each served on the CEO Search Committee in 2020
and assisted inidentifying and interviewing potential CEO candidates, along with the executive search firm
retained by such committee. As a result of their efforts, the Compensation Committee agreed, in
consultation with NFPCC, the Compensation Committee’ sindependent compensation consultant, that each
of the members of the CEO Search Committee receive aone-time cash payment of $15,000 for their service,
which was paid out in the first quarter of 2021. The Compensation Committee agreed that the one-time
compensation was justified as these members had not previoudy received any compensation for their work
on the CEO Search Committee, and that the compensation was reasonable and appropriate (as reviewed
and confirmed by NFPCC) for the additional work done by these members on behalf of the Board.

Stock Owner ship Guidelines

Under the Company’s stock ownership guidelines implemented in February 2020, each non-employee
director must own Company stock equal to five timesthe directors' annual cash retainer. The Company’s
non-employee directors must attain the applicable stock ownership level within five years after first
becoming subject to the guidelines. For adiscussion of the types of sharesthat count towardsthe ownership
guidelines, please read “Compensation Discussion and Analysis - Stock Ownership Guidelines for
Executives.”
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

The rules of the SEC require that the Company disclose late filings of reports of stock ownership (and
changes in stock ownership) by its directors, executive officers, and beneficial owners of more than ten
percent of the Company’s stock. The Company has undertaken responsibility for preparing and filing the
stock ownership forms required under Section 16(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, on behalf of its officers and directors. Based upon a review of forms filed and information
provided by the Company’s officers and directors, we believe that all Section 16(a) reporting requirements
were met during 2021.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2023 ANNUAL MEETING

If you wish to submit a proposd to be included in our 2023 Proxy Statement, we must receive it on or
before December 8, 2022. Please address your proposal to: Raymond Chang, Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary, NOW Inc., 7402 N. Eldridge Parkway, Houston, TX 77041.

If you wish to otherwise introduce any item of business for consideration at our 2023 annua meeting, you
must comply with the procedures specified in our bylaws and the rules of the SEC, including giving written
notice of such item of business no later than January 7, 2023 nor earlier than December 8, 2022 to:
Raymond Chang, Vice President, General Counsd and Secretary, NOW Inc., 7402 N. Eldridge
Parkway, Houston, TX 77041.

ANNUAL REPORT AND OTHER MATTERS

At the date this Proxy Statement went to press, we did not know of any other matters to be acted upon at
the meeting other than the el ection of directors, ratification of the appointment of independent auditors, and
approval on an advisory basis of the compensation of our named executive officers, as discussed in this
Proxy Statement. If any other matter is presented, proxy holderswill vote on the matter in accordance with
their best judgment.

NOW Inc.’s 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 17, 2022 isincluded in this mailing, but
is not considered part of the proxy solicitation materials.

By order of the Board of Directors,

/s/ Raymond Chang

Raymond Chang

Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Houston, Texas
April 7, 2022
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FORM 10-K
Note About Forward-L ooking Statements

This report includes estimates, projections, statements relating to our business plans, objectives and expected operating results that are
“forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements may appear throughout
this report, including the following sections: “Business,” “Risk Factors’ and “Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” These forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words “may,” “believe,”
“anticipate,” “expect,” “plan,” “predict,” “estimate,” “will be” or other similar words and phrases. Forward-looking statements are
based on current expectations and assumptions that are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ
materially. We describe risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to differ materially in “Risk Factors’ (Part I,
Item 1A of this Form 10-K), “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’ (Part 11, Item
7) and “ Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” (Part |1, Item 7A). We undertake no obligation to update or
revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether because of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent
required by applicable law.

PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

NOW Inc. (“NOW” or the “Company”), headquartered in Houston, Texas, was incorporated in Delaware on November 22, 2013. On
June 2, 2014, NOW stock began regular trading on the New Y ork Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “DNOW”. We are a global
distributor to the oil and gas and industrial markets with alegacy of over 150 years. We operate primarily under the DistributionNOW
and DNOW brands. Through a network of approximately 180 locations and approximately 2,350 employees worldwide, we offer a
complementary suite of digital procurement channels, in conjunction with our locations, that provides products to the energy and
industrial markets around the world.

Additionally, through our growing DigitalNOW® platform, customers can leverage world-class technology across ecommerce, data
management and supply chain optimization applications to solve awide array of complex operational and product sourcing challenges
to assist in maximizing their return on assets.

Our energy product offering is consumed throughout all sectors of the energy industry — from upstream drilling and completion,
exploration and production (“E& P"), midstream infrastructure development to downstream petroleum refining and petrochemicals —
aswell asin other industries, such as chemical processing, mining, utilities and renewables. The industria distribution end markets
include engineering and construction firms that perform capital and maintenance projects for their end user clients. We also provide
supply chain and materials management solutions to the same markets where we sell products.

Our global product offering includes consumable maintenance, repair and operating (“MRQO”) supplies, pipe, valves, fittings, flanges,
gaskets, fasteners, electrical, instrumentation, artificial lift, pumping solutions, valve actuation and modular process, measurement and
control equipment. We also offer procurement, warehouse and inventory management solutions as part of our supply chain and
materials management offering. We have devel oped expertise in providing application systems, work processes, parts integration,
optimization solutions and after-sales support.

Our solutions include outsourcing portions or entire functions of our customers procurement, warehouse and inventory management,
logistics, point of issue technology, project management, business process and performance metrics reporting. These solutions allow
usto leverage the infrastructure of our SAP™ Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) system and other technologies to streamline our
customers' purchasing process, from requisition to procurement to payment, by digitally managing workflow, improving approval
routing and providing robust reporting functionality.

We support land and offshore operations for the major oil and gas producing regions around the world through our network of
locations. Our key markets, beyond North America, include South America, the North Sea, the Middle East, Asia Pacific, the Former
Soviet Union (“FSU”) and Africa. Products sold through our locations support greenfield expansion upstream capital projects,
midstream infrastructure and transmission and MRO consumables used in day-to-day production. We provide downstream energy and
industrial products for petroleum refining, chemical processing, liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) terminals, power generation utilities
and customer on-site locations.
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We stock or sell approximately 300,000 stock keeping units (“ SKUS") through our branch network. Our supplier network consists of
thousands of vendorsin approximately 40 countries. From our operationsin over 20 countries, we sell to customers operating in
approximately 80 countries. The supplies and equipment stocked by each of our branches are customized to meet varied and changing
local customer demands. The breadth and scale of our offering enhances our value proposition to our customers, suppliers and
shareholders.

We employ advanced information technologies, including acommon ERP platform across most of our business, to provide complete
procurement, warehouse and inventory management and logistics coordination to our customers around the globe. Having a common
ERP platform allows immediate visibility into our inventory assets, operations and financials worldwide, enhancing decision making
and efficiency.

Global Operations

Demand for our productsis driven primarily by the level of oil and gas drilling, completions, servicing, production, transmission,
refining and petrochemical activities. It isalso influenced by the global supply and demand for energy, the economy in general and
geopolitics. Several factors drive spending, such as investment in energy infrastructure, the North American conventional and shale
plays, market expectations of future developmentsin the oil, natural gas, liquids, refined products, petrochemical, plant maintenance
and other industrial, manufacturing and energy sectors.

We have expanded globally, through acquisitions and organic investments, in Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Canada, China, Colombia,
Egypt, England, India, Indonesia, Kazakhstan, Kuwait, Mexico, Netherlands, Norway, Oman, Russia, Saudi Arabia, Scotland,
Singapore, the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) and the United States.

A-3



Summary of Reportable Segments

We operate through three reportable segments: United States (“U.S.”), Canada and International. The segment data included in our
Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) are presented on abasis
consistent with our internal management reporting. Segment information appearing in Note 15 “Business Segments’ of the Notesto
Consolidated Financial Statements (Part 1V, Item 15 of this Form 10-K) is also presented on this basis.

United Sates

We have approximately 115 locationsin the U.S., which are geographically positioned to best serve the upstream, midstream and
downstream energy and industrial markets.

We offer higher value solutions in key product linesin the U.S. which broaden and deepen our customer relationships and related
product line value. Examples of these include artificial lift, pumps, valves and valve actuation, process and production equipment,
fluid transfer products, measurement and controls, spoolable and coated steel-pipe and composite pipe, along with many other
products required by our customers, which enable them to focus on their core business while we manage varying degrees of their
supply chain. We also provide additional value to our customers through the design, construction, assembly, fabrication and
optimization of products and equipment essential to the safe and efficient production, transportation and processing of oil and gas.

Canada

We have a network of approximately 40 locationsin the Canadian oilfield, predominately in the oil rich provinces of Alberta,
Saskatchewan, Manitoba and other targeted |ocations across the country. Our Canada segment primarily serves energy exploration,
production, mining and drilling business, offering customers many of the same products and value-added solutions that we perform in
the U.S. In Canada, we also provide training for, and supervise the installation of, jointed and spoolable composite pipe. This product
lineis supported by inventory, aswell as product and installation expertise to serve our customers.

International

We operate in approximately 20 countries and serve the needs of our international customers from approximately 25 locations outside
the U.S. and Canada, which are strategically located in major oil and gas devel opment areas. Our approach in these marketsis similar
to our approach in North America, as our customers turn to us to provide products and supply chain solutions support closer to their
drilling and exploration activities. Our long legacy of operating in many international regions, combined with significant expansion
into several key markets, provides a competitive advantage as few of our competitors have a presence in most of the global energy
producing regions.

Distribution Industry Overview

The distribution industry is highly fragmented, comprised of large companies with global reach and numerous small, local and
regional competitors. Distribution companies act both as supply stores and supply chain management providers for their customers.
Distributors deliver value to their customers by serving as a supply chain partner by managing vendor networks and aggregating,
carrying and distributing a wide range of product inventory from numerous vendors in locations close to the end user. As a distributor
of energy and industrial markets, we offer awide array of products and supply chain services.

We offer our products, services and supply chain solutions across the entire energy value chain, from onshore and offshore drilling of
oil and gas, to the exploration and production of oil and gas, the separation, transfer, and disposal of produced water, to the midstream
gathering, processing and transmission of oil, gas, water, natural gasliquids (“NGLS"), LNG, and refined petroleum products, to the
downstream refining of oil, and the manufacturing of petrochemicals and specialty chemicals. In addition, we provide our products,
services and supply chain solutions to other end markets including mining and minerals, municipal water and wastewater and
industrial manufacturing.

We provide drilling products, MRO consumables, safety and original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) equipment for land drilling
rigs, workover rigs and initial offshore drilling rig load outs. Once rigs are contracted, commissioned and deployed, we seek to replace
material and inventory consumed during drilling operations. We couple the sale of products with supply chain services in the form of
inventory planning, inventory management and warehouse management. We provide afull suite of process and production equipment,
pumps and compressor packages, artificial lift, steel, fiberglass and composite pipe, valves and fittings (“PVF"), instrumentation and
measurement, and safety and personal protective equipment (“PPE”) in the exploration, production, separation, storage and gathering
of oil and gas, aswell as the separation, removal, storage and transfer of produced water.
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To minimize air emissions, we provide vapor recovery systems to capture and transfer gas and volatile organic compounds during the
separation and storage of oil, gas and water from operating reservoirs. For produced water, we provide fluid movement products that
help our customers environmentally dispose of water. For oil streams, we provide products that measure the quality and quantity of oil
and gas through the separation process and prior to distribution to the midstream sector. We offer avariety of fluid movement
solutions ranging from standard to engineered pump packages and awide variety of American Society of Mechanical Engineers
(“ASME") fabricated process and production equipment to remove water and contaminants prior to the midstream transfer of oil,
NGLs and other refined products within the midstream sector. For gas processing and gas conditioning, we offer afull suite of PVF
and ASME coded fabricated process equipment to efficiently and economically process and condition gas for transfer to end markets.
Many of the terminals and tank farms used in the midstream space to facilitate the storage and distribution of ail, gas, NGLs, LNG,
and other hydrocarbon-based fluids utilize our products. Across many of the process industries where we provide valves, we offer low
emission stem packing options to help reduce emissions. We provide PVF, pumps, safety, PPE, supply chain and safety servicesto the
refining, petrochemical, chemical and industrial industries. Our products are consumed from industrial customer’s daily MRO
expenditures, customer capital projectsin the form of existing plant expansions, new plant facilities, as well as planned and unplanned
maintenance of processing units.

Our Distribution Channels

We offer adiverse range of products across the energy and industrial marketsin the U.S., Canada and internationally. There are
thousands of manufacturers of the products used in the markets in which we operate and customers demand a high level of service,
responsiveness and availability across a broad set of products and vendors. These market dynamics make the distributor an essential
element in the value chain for our customers. Our product offering is aligned to meet the needs of our customer base.

Energy

Energy branches are brick and mortar supply store operations that provide products to multiple upstream, midstream and downstream
customers from a single location. These branches serve repeat account and walk-in retail customers. Products are inventoried in

branch warehouses based on local market needs and are delivered or available for pick-up as needed. These branches serve a
geographical radius and provide delivery of products and solutions. A number of locations that service these same customers provide a
complementary and expanded set of supply chain services in conjunction with the sale of products.

The distribution channel includes sales and operations professionals trained in the products, applications and customer service
required to support customers as they drill, explore, produce, transport and refine oil and gas and other products. The primary product
offering includes line pipe, valves, fabrication, valve actuation, fittings and flanges, pumps, OEM equipment, electrical products, mill
supplies, tools, safety supplies, PPE, applied products and applications, such as artificial lift systems, coatings and miscellaneous
expendable items. We couple the sale of products with supply chain servicesin the form of inventory planning, inventory management
and warehouse management. Supply chain services can be customized to a customer’ s requirements and guided by a strategic
framework to reduce direct material expenditures and supply chain costs, improve maintenance productivity, reduce inventory-related
working capital, streamline time to revenue and manage the risk of material availability affecting business continuity.

Process Solutions

Process Solutions has a team of distribution experts, technical professionals and licensed engineers who provide expertise related to
pumps, compressors and fluid movement packages, fabricated liquid and gas measurement systems and process and production
equipment. Process Solutions distributes OEM equipment including pumps, generator sets, air and gas compressors, dryers, blowers,
mixers and valves. Within our process and production equipment category, we produce customer |ease automatic custody transfer
(“LACT") units, vapor recovery units, gas meter runs, ASME code vesselsin the form of separators, heater treaters, gas conditioning
systems, towers, reactors, condensate stabilizers, ug catchers and pressurized bullet tanks, pig launchers and receivers and water
transfer and disposal units. After-market services include rental, machining and repair service from ateam of field mechanics located
throughout the central U.S.

Process Solutions serves the upstream, midstream and downstream oil and gas markets as well as the municipal industrial, mining,
power generation and general industries. Process Solutions also provides modular oil and gas tank battery solutions that positively
impact our operator customers by enabling them to design a modular tank battery that enables flexibility and scalability for current and
future production, while expediting revenue generation by reducing the time to complete atank battery and getting oil and gas into the
pipeline earlier. This solution saves our customers time and expense related to well hookup and tank battery commissioning and
reduces field incident exposures due to a reduced labor requirement for battery construction.
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Customers

Our primary customers are companies active in the upstream, midstream and downstream sectors of the energy industry, including
drilling contractors, well servicing companies, independent and national oil and gas companies, midstream operators, refineries,
petrochemical, chemical, utilities and other downstream energy processors. We also serve a diverse range of industrial and
manufacturing companies across a broad spectrum of industries and end markets. We partner with our customers to continually meet
or exceed their expectations and add value as a supply chain partner in the locations where they operate. Our products are typically
critical to our customers' operations, yet represent only asmall fraction of their total project or facility cost. Asaresult, our customers
seek suppliers with established qualifications and an operational history to deliver high quality and reliable products that meet their
requirementsin atimely manner.

As customers increasingly aggregate purchases to improve efficiency and reduce costs, they partner with large distributors who can
meet their needs for productsin multiple locations around the world. Customers can procure products through our direct branch model
or through our ecommerce site, http://shop.dnow.com. We believe we could benefit from consolidation among our customers, asthe
resulting companies seek global distributors as their source for products and related solutions.

No single customer represents more than 10% of our revenue.
Competition

The distribution companies serving the energy and industrial end markets are both numerous and competitive. Thisindustry is highly
fragmented, comprised of large distributors, each with many locations and with online ecommerce sites, who aggregate and distribute
several product lines, and includes numerous smaller regional and local companies, many of which operate from a single location and
either aggregate and distribute several product lines or focus on a single product line. While some large distributors compete in both
markets, most companies focus on either the energy or industrial end market. In the energy market, some of the larger companies
against whom we compete include Ferguson Enterprises, Inc., MRC Global, Inc., Russel Metals, Inc., DXP Enterprises, Inc. and
FloWorks International LLC. In the industrial market, some of the larger companies against whom we compete include Ferguson
Enterprises, Inc., W.W. Grainger Inc., HD Supply, Inc., Wesco International Inc., MSC Industrial Direct Co., Inc., Applied Industrial
Technologies, Inc., DXP Enterprises, Inc. and Fastenal Company.

Seasonal Nature of the Company’s Business

A portion of our business has experienced seasonal trends, to some degree, which have varied by geographic region. In the U.S.,
activity has historically been higher during the summer and fall months. In Canada, certain E& P activities have declined in the spring
due to seasonal thaws and regulatory restrictions limiting the ability of drilling rigs and transportation to operate effectively and safely
during these periods.

Human Capital Resources

At December 31, 2021, we had approximately 2,350 employees, of which approximately 100 were temporary employees. We offer
market-competitive benefits for employees and opportunities for growth and advancement. We place a strong emphasis on employee
growth and development and provide opportunities for valued contribution and innovation.

Training and Development Programs

The skills, knowledge and capabilities of our people are central to our success. We have devel oped training courses and programs,
including a growing online learning platform, providing our employees an opportunity for professional development.

We recognize that the advancement and empowerment of our workforce drives a better quality of work and life for our employees,
ultimately resulting in the delivery of exceptional serviceto our customers. As such, we have designed arange of professional and
leadership development programs focused on helping our employees reach their career goals.

Recognizing Employees

Recognition of individual achievements and contributions is an important part of our culture. Our Customer Priority One program
encourages customers, peers and leaders to recognize our employees, customers or vendors who exemplify the Company’s
commitment to customer service. We also award Milestone Service Awards to employees for their years of service and dedication of
time to our Company, which recognize employees at each five-year service anniversary.
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Workforce Diversity and Inclusion

We are committed to advancing an inclusive environment where diversity is appreciated and encouraged, and all employees have a
sense of belonging throughout our organization. We recognize the opportunity to drive diversity in our workforce through talent
acquisition and retention because we know that one of our greatest strengthsis the diverse and different perspectives of our team
members. We recognize that having a team with a broad range of experience, cultural characteristics and varying perspectives fortifies
our brand. We believe in advocating for diversity within our workforce by employing women and men of varying cultures,
nationalities and backgrounds to work together to achieve acommon goal.

To find the best employees, we must have a diverse pipeline of talent. We have expanded recruiting efforts with diverse organizations
so we can reach abroader pool of candidates. We create a culture where all employees can strive to be their best, to achieve company
goals and to deliver superior service to our customers. As of December 31, 2021, our U.S. workforce was comprised of approximately
25% female and 31% racial minorities.

We recognize that we are an integral part of the communities in which we operate. By directly engaging people in the communities we
serve, we create a transparent dialogue to try to listen and learn from alternative views in how we conduct our business. The
strengthening of minority- and women-owned businesses contributes to the overall economic growth and the expansion of our
markets.

Workforce Health and Safety

Safety is at the center of our actions. Simply put, we act with high priority on health and safety in our workplace and in the
communities where we operate. Our safety culture is driven by our recently expanded health, safety and environment (“HSE”) training
catalog and through our HSE management system beginning with our HSE Policy Statement, which sets the tone for our company’s
commitment to safety. A one-page, top-level document, expressly approved by our senior management team, the HSE Policy
Statement outlines our expectations for all employees, vendors, customers, contractors, subcontractors and third parties. This HSE
Policy Statement, combined with our HSE guiding principles, corporate policies and procedures and our business level HSE policies
and procedures, makes up our management system, which is overseen both with corporate supervision and field level management to
ensure emphasisis consistent on proper and safe behaviors.

Sustainability

We can assist in reducing emissions of greenhouse gases in our operations by creating a more efficient supply chain. An efficient
supply chain can help reduce the carbon footprint of deliveries to our distribution centers and branches and, ultimately to our
customers. Use of our large centralized and regional distribution centers allow us to aggregate product across multiple suppliers and
customers, which, in turn, prevents each customer from separately creating duplicative supply chains that require fuel for deliveries
and resources to manage.

Asadistributor, we perform minimal manufacturing operations. We do not utilize large amounts of water. Our energy inputs are
primarily electricity for lighting, heating and office and warehouse equipment, natural gas for heating and gasoline for company sales
and delivery vehicles. We strive to make our operations more efficient, and in turn try to work to reduce use of these resources and
resulting emissions. We have recycling programs to try and reduce waste from used cardboard, office paper and other recyclables.
However, recycling programs are sometimes limited by the unavailability of users, haulers or purchasers for recyclable materials at
reasonable costs.

We are adistributor of products that contain and control the movement of gases and fluidsin an efficient and sustainable manner. The
products we sell are designed by the manufacturers of those products to prevent and minimize accidental leaks of hydrocarbons.
Additionally, we offer product lines that further aid in the mitigation of environmental impact. Examples of such products include;
domestically produced goods; low emission rated valves; steel piping products produced from recycled scrap; glass reinforced epoxy
piping systems; vapor recovery units that capture volatile organic compoundsin an effort to limit and reduce emissionsto the
atmosphere; produced water transfer and water injection packages that dispose of produced water in an environmentally safe manner;
and pipe produced using wind power, recycled water, and wood pellet inputs.
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Environmental Matters

We are subject to avariety of federal, state, local, foreign and provincial environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and
permitting requirements, including those governing the discharge of pollutants or hazardous substances into the air, soil or water, the
generation, handling, use, management, storage and disposal of, or exposure to, hazardous substances and wastes, the responsibility to
investigate, remediate, monitor and clean up contamination and occupational health and safety. Fines and penalties may be imposed
for non-compliance with applicable environmental, health and safety requirements and the failure to have or to comply with the terms
and conditions of required permits. Historically, the costs to comply with environmental and health and saf ety requirements have not
been material to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. We are not aware of any pending environmental
compliance or remediation matters that, in the opinion of management, are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our business,
financial position or results of operations or cash flows.

Available Information

Our website address is www.dnow.com. The information found on our website is not part of this or any other report we file with, or
furnish to, the SEC and is expressly not incorporated by reference into this document. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements and any amendments to these reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available on our website, free of charge, as soon as
reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. Alternatively, you may access these reports at the
SEC’ s website at Www.Sec.gov.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the following risks in addition to all other information contained or incorporated herein. These
risks relate principally to our business and the industry in which we operate or to the securities markets generally and ownership of
our common stock. Our business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows could be materially and adversely
affected by any of these risks, and, as a result, the trading price of our common stock could decline. This information should be read
in conjunction with Item 7, Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Item 7A,
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk and the consolidated financial statements and related notesincluded in
this Form 10-K.

Risks Relating to Our Business

The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected our business, and the ultimate effect on our operations and financial condition will
depend on future devel opments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected the global economy, disrupted global supply chains and created significant volatility
in the financial markets. In addition, the pandemic has resulted in travel restrictions, business closures and the ingtitution of
guarantining and other restrictions on movement in many communities. Asaresult, it hasimpacted demand for and prices of crude oil,
natural gas and natural gasliquids (“NGLS"). If the pandemic continues to adversely affect demand for and crude oil, natural gas and
NGLsfor aprolonged period, our operations, financial condition and cash flows may be materially and adversely affected. Our
operations also may be adversely affected if significant portions of our workforce are unable to work effectively, including because of
illness, quarantines, government actions, or other restrictions in connection with the pandemic. We have already implemented
workplace restrictions, including guidance for our employees to work remotely if able, in our offices and work sites for health and
safety reasons and are continuing to monitor national, state and local government directives where we have operations or offices. The
extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic adversely affects our business, results of operations, and financial condition will depend on
future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including the scope and duration of the pandemic and
actions taken by governmental authorities and other third parties in response to the pandemic, the resurgence of cases and other similar
restrictions.

Decreased capital and other expendituresin the energy industry, which can result from decreased oil and natural gas prices, among
other things, can adversely impact our customers' demand for our products and our revenue.

A large portion of our revenue depends upon the level of capital and operating expendituresin the oil and natural gas industry,
including capital and other expenditures in connection with exploration, drilling, production, gathering, transportation, refining and
processing operations. Demand for the products we distribute is particularly sensitive to the level of exploration, development and
production activity of, and the corresponding capital and other expenditures by, oil and natural gas companies. In addition, after awell
isdrilled, there can be alag between when the well is drilled and when it is completed, which causes a delay in the demand for some
of our products. Oil and natural gas prices have been extremely volatile since 2014. Continued volatility and weaknessin il or natural
gas prices could depress levels of exploration, development and production activity and, therefore, could lead to adecrease in our
customers' capital and other expenditures.

The willingness of oil and gas operators to make capital and operating expenditures to explore for and produce oil and natural gas and
the willingness of oilfield service companiesto invest in capital and operating equipment will continue to be influenced by numerous
factors over which we have no control, including:

. the ability of the members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (“*OPEC") and certain non-OPEC
countries, such as Russia, to maintain price stability through voluntary production limits, the level of production by other
non-OPEC countries, such as the United States, and worldwide demand for oil and gas;

. the impact of public health crises, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, on worldwide demand for oil and gas,
. the level of production from known reserves;

. the cost of exploring for and producing oil and gas;

. limits on accessto capital and investor demands for capital discipline;

. the level of drilling activity and drilling rig day rates;

. worldwide economic activity;

. national government political requirements;
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. changes in governmental regulations;
. the development of alternate energy sources; and

. environmental regulations.

If thereis a significant reduction in demand for drilling services, in cash flows of drilling contractors, well servicing companies or
production companies, or in drilling or well servicing rig utilization rates, then demand for our products will decline.

Volatile oil and gas prices affect demand for our products.

Demand for our productsis largely determined by current and anticipated oil and natural gas prices, and the related spending and level
of activity by our customers, including spending on production and the level of drilling activities. Volatility or weaknessin oil or
natural gas prices (or the perception that oil or natural gas prices will decrease) affects the spending pattern of our customers, and may
result in the drilling of fewer new wells or lower production spending on existing wells. This, in turn, could result in lower demand for
our products. Any sustained decrease in capital expendituresin the oil and natural gas industry could have a material adverse effect on
us.

Pricesfor oil and natural gas are subject to large fluctuationsin response to relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for
oil and natural gas, market uncertainty and avariety of other factors that are beyond our control. Any such reduction in operating
budgets, reduction in activity and/or pricing pressures, would adversely affect our revenue and operating performance.

Many factors affect the supply of and demand for energy and, therefore, influence oil and natural gas prices, including:
. the level of domestic and worldwide oil and natural gas production and inventories,

. the level of drilling activity and the availability of attractive oil and natural gasfield prospects, which governmental
actions may affect, such as regulatory actions or legidation, or other restrictions on drilling, including those related to
environmental concerns (e.g., atemporary moratorium on deepwater drilling in the Gulf of Mexico following arig
accident or oil spill);

. the discovery rate of new oil and natural gas reserves and the expected cost of devel oping new reserves;
. the actual cost of finding and producing oil and natural gas;

. depletion rates;

. domestic and worldwide refinery over capacity or under capacity and utilization rates;

. the availability of transportation infrastructure and refining capacity;

. increases in the cost of products that the oil and gas industry uses, such as those that we provide, which may result from
increases in the cost of raw materials such as steel;

. shiftsin end-customer preferences toward fuel efficiency and the use of natura gas;

. the economic or political attractiveness of alternative fuels, such as coal, hydrocarbon, battery power, wind, solar energy
and biomass-based fuels;

. increasesin oil and natural gas prices or historically high oil and natural gas prices, which could lower demand for oil and
natural gas products;

. worldwide economic activity including growth in non-Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development
countries, including China and Indig;

. interest rates and the cost of capital;

. national government policies, including government policies that could nationalize or expropriate oil and natural gas,
E& P, refining or transportation assets;

. the ability of OPEC and non-OPEC countries, such as Russia, to set and maintain production levels and prices for oil;
. the level of production by non-OPEC countries;

. the impact of armed hostilities, or the threat or perception of armed hostilities;

. public health crises, such asthe COVID-19 pandemic that began in 2020;

. environmental regulation;
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. import duties and tariffs;

. technological advances;

. global weather conditions and natural disasters;
. currency fluctuations; and

. tax policies.

Qil and natural gas prices have been and are expected to remain volatile. U.S. rig count increased from 360 rigs on January 8, 2021 to
586 rigs on December 31, 2021. U.S. rig count averaged 475 rigsin 2021. U.S. rig count at January 21, 2022 was 604 rigs. The price
for West Texas Intermediate crude was $75.99 per barrel at January 3, 2022, $47.47 per barrel on January 4, 2021 and $61.17 per
barrel on January 2, 2020. This type of volatility has historically caused oil and natural gas companies to change their strategies and
expenditure levels from year to year. We have experienced in the past, and we will likely experience in the future, significant
fluctuations in operating results based on these changes.

General economic conditions may adversely affect our business.

U.S. and global general economic conditions affect many aspects of our business, including demand for the products we distribute and
the pricing and availability of supplies. General economic conditions and predictions regarding future economic conditions also affect
our forecasts. A decrease in demand for the products we distribute or other adverse effects resulting from an economic downturn may
cause usto fail to achieve our anticipated financial results. General economic factors beyond our control that affect our business and
customers include public health crises, interest rates, recession, inflation, deflation, customer credit availability, consumer credit
availability, consumer debt levels, performance of housing markets, energy costs, tariffs, tax rates and policy, unemployment rates,
commencement or escalation of war or hostilities, the threat or possibility of war, terrorism or other global or national unrest, political
or financial instability, and other matters that influence our customers’ spending. Increasing volatility in financial markets may cause
these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency or increase in magnitude. In addition, worldwide economic conditions could
have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We may be unable to compete successfully with other companiesin our industry.

We sell productsin very competitive markets. In some cases, we compete with large companies with substantial resources. In other
cases, we compete with smaller regional companies that may increasingly be willing to provide similar products at lower prices.
Certain of these competitors may have greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us, and may be in a better competitive
position. The following competitive actions can each adversely affect our revenues and earnings:

. price changes;

o vendors with better terms;

. consolidation in the industry;

. investments in technology and fulfillment; and

. improvementsin availability and delivery.

We could experience a material adverse effect to the extent that our competitors are successful in reducing our customers' purchases
of products from us. Competition could also cause usto lower our prices, which could reduce our margins and profitability.
Furthermore, consolidation in our industry could heighten the impacts of the competition on our business and results of operations
discussed above, particularly if consolidation resultsin competitors with stronger financial and strategic resources, and could also
result in increases to the prices we are required to pay for acquisitions we may make in the future. In addition, certain foreign
jurisdictions and government-owned petroleum companies located in some of the countries in which we operate have adopted policies
or regulations which may give local nationalsin these countries competitive advantages. Competition in our industry could lead to
lower revenues and earnings.

Demand for the products we distribute could decrease if the manufacturers of those products were to sell a substantial amount of
goods directly to end usersin the sectors we serve.

Historically, users of pipes, valves and fittings and related products have purchased certain amounts of these products through
distributors and not directly from manufacturers. If customers were to purchase the products that we sl directly from manufacturers,
or if manufacturers sought to increase their efforts to sell directly to end users, we could experience a significant decrease in
profitability. These or other developments that remove us from, or limit our rolein, the distribution chain, may harm our competitive
position in the marketplace and reduce our sales and earnings and adversely affect our business.
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We may need additional capital in the future, and it may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all.

We may require more capital in the future to:
. fund our operations (including, but not limited to, working capital requirements such as inventory);
. finance investments in equipment and infrastructure needed to maintain and expand our distribution capabilities;
. enhance and expand the range of products we offer; and

. respond to potential strategic opportunities, such as investments, acquisitions and international expansion.

We can give no assurance that additional financing will be available on terms favorable to us, or at al. The terms of available
financing may place limits on our financial and operating flexibility. If adequate funds are not available on acceptable terms, we may
be forced to reduce our operations or delay, limit or abandon expansion opportunities. Moreover, even if we are able to continue our
operations, the failure to obtain additional financing could reduce our competitiveness.

We do not have long-term contracts or agreements with many of our customers. The contracts and agreements that we do have
generally do not commit our customers to any minimum purchase volume. The loss of a significant customer may have a material
adverse effect on us.

Given the nature of our business, and consistent with industry practice, we do not have long-term contracts with many of our
customers. In addition, our contracts generally do not commit our customers to any minimum purchase volume. Therefore, a
significant number of our customers may terminate their relationships with us or reduce their purchasing volume at any time.
Furthermore, the long-term customer contracts that we do have are generally terminable without cause on short notice. The products
that we may sell to any particular customer depend in large part on the size of that customer’s capital expenditure budget in a
particular year and on the results of competitive bids for major projects. Consequently, a customer that accounts for a significant
portion of our salesin one fiscal year may represent an immaterial portion of our salesin subsequent fiscal years. Theloss of a
significant customer, or a substantial decreasein a significant customer’s orders, may have an adverse effect on our sales and revenue.

In addition, we are subject to customer audit clausesin many of our multi-year contracts. If we are not able to provide the proper
documentation or support for invoices per the contract terms, we may be subject to negotiated settlements with our major customers.

Changesin our customer and product mix could cause our product margin to fluctuate.

From time to time, we may experience changesin our customer mix or in our product mix. Changesin our customer mix may result
from geographic expansion, daily selling activities within current geographic markets and targeted selling activities to new customer
segments. Changesin our product mix may result from marketing activities to existing customers and needs communicated to us from
existing and prospective customers. If customers begin to require more lower-margin products from us, our business, results of
operations and financial condition may suffer.

Customer credit risks could result in losses.

The concentration of our customers in the energy industry may impact our overall exposure to credit risk as customers may be
similarly affected by prolonged changes in economic and industry conditions. Further, laws in some jurisdictions in which we operate
could make collection difficult or time consuming. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and do not generally
require collateral in support of our trade receivables. While we maintain reserves for expected credit |osses, we cannot assure these
reserves will be sufficient to meet write-offs of uncollectible receivables or that our losses from such receivables will be consistent
with our expectations.

We may be unable to successfully execute or effectively integrate acquisitions.

One of our key operating strategiesis to selectively pursue acquisitions, including large scale acquisitions, to continue to grow and
increase profitability. However, acquisitions, particularly of a significant scale, involve numerous risks and uncertainties, including
intense competition for suitable acquisition targets, the potential unavailability of financial resources necessary to consummate
acquisitionsin the future, increased leverage due to additional debt financing that may be required to complete an acquisition, dilution
of our stockholders' net current book value per share if we issue additional equity securities to finance an acquisition, difficultiesin
identifying suitable acquisition targets or in completing any transactions identified on sufficiently favorable terms, assumption of
undisclosed or unknown liabilities and the need to obtain regulatory or other governmental approvals that may be necessary to
complete acquisitions. In addition, any future acquisitions may entail significant transaction costs and risks associated with entry into
new markets.
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Even when acquisitions are completed, integration of acquired entities can involve significant difficulties, such as:
. failure to achieve cost savings or other financial or operating objectives with respect to an acquisition;
. complications and issues resulting from the integration/conversion of ERP systems;

. strain on the operational and managerial controls and procedures of our business, and the need to modify systems or to
add management resources;

. difficultiesin the integration and retention of customers or personnel and the integration and effective deployment of
operations or technologies;

. amortization of acquired assets, which would reduce future reported earnings;

. possible adverse short-term effects on our cash flows or operating resullts;

. diversion of management’s attention from the ongoing operations of our business;
. integrating personnel with different organizational cultures;

. coordinating sales and marketing functions;

. failure to obtain and retain key personnel of an acquired business; and

. assumption of known or unknown material liabilities or regulatory non-compliance issues.
Failure to manage these acquisition risks could have an adverse effect on us.
We are a holding company and depend upon our subsidiaries for our cash flow.

We are a holding company. Our subsidiaries conduct all of our operations and own substantially all of our assets. Consequently, our
cash flow and our ability to meet our obligations or to make other distributions in the future will depend upon the cash flow of our
subsidiaries and our subsidiaries’ payment of fundsto usin the form of dividends, tax sharing payments or otherwise.

The ability of our subsidiaries to make any paymentsto uswill depend on their earnings, the terms of their current and future
indebtedness, tax considerations and legal and contractual restrictions on the ability to make distributions.

Our subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities. Any right that we have to receive any assets of or distributions from any of our
subsidiaries upon the bankruptcy, dissolution, liquidation or reorganization, or to realize proceeds from the sale of their assets, will be
junior to the claims of that subsidiary’ s creditors, including trade creditors and holders of debt that the subsidiary issued.

If we lose any of our key personnel, we may be unabl e to effectively manage our business or continue our growth.

Our future performance depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of our management team and our ability to
attract, hire, train and retain qualified managerial, sales and marketing personnel. In particular, we rely on our sales and marketing
teamsto create innovative ways to generate demand for the products we distribute. The loss or unavailability to us of any member of
our management team or a key sales or marketing employee could have a material adverse effect on us to the extent we are unable to
timely find adequate replacements. We face competition for these professionals from our competitors, our customers and other
companies operating in our industry. We may be unsuccessful in attracting, hiring, training and retaining qualified personnel.

Interruptionsin the proper functioning of our information systems could disrupt operations and cause increases in costs or decreases
in revenues.

The proper functioning of our information systemsis critical to the successful operation of our business. We depend on our
information management systems to process orders, track credit risk, manage inventory and monitor accounts receivable collections.
Our information systems also allow usto efficiently purchase products from our vendors and ship products to our customers on a
timely basis, maintain cost-effective operations and provide superior service to our customers. However, our information systems
could be vulnerable to natural disasters, power |osses, telecommunication failures, security breaches and other problems. If critical
information systemsfail or are otherwise unavailable, our ability to procure products to sell, process and ship customer orders, identify
business opportunities, maintain proper levels of inventories, collect accounts receivable and pay accounts payable and expenses could
be adversely affected. Our ability to integrate our systems with our customers' systemswould also be significantly affected. If our
information systems are damaged or fail to function properly, we may incur substantial coststo repair or replace them, and may
experience loss of critical data and interruptions or delaysin our ability to manage inventories or process transactions, which could
result in lost sales, inability to process purchase orders and/or a potential loss of customer loyalty, which could adversely affect our
results of operations. We maintain information systems controls designed to protect against, among other things, unauthorized
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program changes and unauthorized access to data on our information systems. If our information systems controls do not function
properly, we face increased risks of unexpected errors and unreliable financial data or theft of proprietary Company information.

The loss of third-party transportation providers upon whom we depend, or conditions negatively affecting the transportation industry,
could increase our costs or cause a disruption in our operations.

We depend upon third-party transportation providers for delivery of products to our customers. Strikes, slowdowns, transportation
disruptions or other conditions in the transportation industry, including, but not limited to, shortages of truck drivers, disruptionsin
rail service, increasesin fuel prices and adverse weather conditions, could increase our costs and disrupt our operations and our ability
to service our customers on atimely basis. We cannot predict to what extent increases or anticipated increasesin fuel prices may
impact our costs or cause a disruption in our operations going forward.

Adverse weather events or natural disasters could negatively affect local economies and disrupt operations.

Certain areas in which we operate are susceptible to adverse weather conditions or natural disasters, such as hurricanes, tornadoes,
floods and earthquakes. These events can disrupt our operations, result in damage to our properties and negatively affect the local
economies in which we operate. Additionally, we may experience communication disruptions with our customers, vendors and
employees. These events can cause physical damage to our locations and require us to close locations. Additionally, our sales orders
and shipments can experience atemporary decline immediately following these events.

We cannot predict whether or to what extent damage caused by these events will affect our operations or the economiesin regions
where we operate. These adverse events could result in disruption of our purchasing or distribution capabilities, interruption of our
business that exceeds our insurance coverage, our inability to collect from customers and increased operating costs. Our business or
results of operations may be adversely affected by these and other negative effects of these events.

The occurrence of cyber incidents, or a deficiency in our cybersecurity, could negatively impact our business by causing a disruption
to our operations, a compromise or corruption of our confidential information or damage to our Company’simage, all of which could
negatively impact our financial results.

A cyber incident is considered to be any adverse event that threatens the confidentiality, integrity or availability of our information
resources. More specifically, acyber incident is an intentional attack or an unintentional event that can include gaining unauthorized
access to systems to disrupt operations, corrupt data or steal confidential information. As our reliance on technology has increased, so
have the risks posed to our systems, both internal and those we have outsourced. Our four primary risks that could directly result from
the occurrence of a cyber incident include operational interruption, damage to our Company’ simage, financial loss and private data
exposure.

We have implemented solutions, processes, and procedures to help mitigate this risk, but these measures, as well as our organization’s
increased awareness of our risk of acyber incident, do not guarantee that our financial results will not be negatively impacted by such
an incident. Our security measures may be undermined due to the actions of outside parties, employee error, internal or external
malfeasance, or otherwise, and, as a result, an unauthorized party may obtain accessto our data systems and misappropriate business
and personal information. Our systems are subject to repeated attempts by third parties to access information or to disrupt our systems.
Such disruptions or misappropriations and the resulting repercussions, including reputational damage and legal claims or proceedings,
may adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition, and the trading price of our common stock.

Privacy concernsrelating to our personal and business information being potentially breached could damage our reputation and
deter current and potential users or customers from using our products and services.

We have security measures and controls to protect personal and business information and continue to make investments to secure
access to our information technology network. These measures may be undermined, however, due to the actions of outside parties,
employee error, internal or external malfeasance, or otherwise, and, as aresult an unauthorized party may obtain access to our data
systems and misappropriate business and personal information. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or
degrade service, or sabotage systems change frequently and may not immediately produce signs of intrusion, we may be unable to
anticipate these techniques, timely discover or counter them, or implement adequate preventative measures. Any such breach or
unauthorized access could result in significant legal and financial exposure, damage to our reputation, and potentialy have an adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.
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We have goodwill recorded on our balance sheet. If our goodwill becomes impaired, we may be required to recognize charges that
would reduce our income.

As of December 31, 2021, we had $67 million of goodwill recorded on our balance sheet. Under generally accepted accounting
principlesin the U.S., goodwill is not amortized, but must be reviewed for possible impairment annually, or more often in certain
circumstances where events indicate that the asset values are not recoverable. These reviews could result in an earnings charge for
impairment, which would reduce our net income even though there would be no impact on our underlying cash flow.

Risks Relating to Our Supply Chain and International Trade Policies
We may experience unexpected supply shortages.

We distribute products from awide variety of manufacturers and suppliers. Nevertheless, in the future we may have difficulty
obtaining the products we need from suppliers and manufacturers as a result of unexpected demand or production difficulties that
might extend lead times. Also, products may not be available to us in quantities sufficient to meet our customer demand. Our inability
to obtain products from suppliers and manufacturersin sufficient quantities, or at all, could adversely affect our product offerings and
our business.

We may experience cost increases from suppliers, which we may be unable to pass on to our customers.

In the future, we may face supply cost increases due to, among other things, unexpected increases in demand for supplies, decreasesin
production of supplies or increasesin the cost of raw materials or transportation, or trade wars. Any inability to pass supply price
increases on to our customers could have a material adverse effect on us. In addition, if supply costs increase, our customers may elect
to purchase smaller amounts of products or may purchase products from other distributors. While we may be able to work with our
customers to reduce the effects of unforeseen price increases because of our relationships with them, we may not be able to reduce the
effects of the cost increases. In addition, to the extent that competition leads to reduced purchases of products from us or areduction
of our prices, and these reductions occur concurrently with increasesin the prices for selected commodities which we usein our
operations, the adverse effects described above would likely be exacerbated and could result in a prolonged downturn in profitability.

We do not have contracts with most of our suppliers. The loss of a significant supplier would require usto rely more heavily on our
other existing suppliers or to develop relationships with new suppliers. Such a loss may have an adverse effect on our product
offerings and our business.

Given the nature of our business, and consistent with industry practice, we do not have contracts with most of our suppliers. We
generally make our purchases through purchase orders. Therefore, most of our suppliers have the ability to terminate their
relationships with us at any time. Although we believe there are numerous manufacturers with the capacity to supply the products we
distribute, the loss of one or more of our major suppliers could have an adverse effect on our product offerings and our business. Such
alosswould require usto rely more heavily on our other existing suppliers or develop relationships with new suppliers, which may
cause usto pay higher prices for products due to, among other things, aloss of volume discount benefits currently obtained from our
major suppliers.

Changesin our credit profile may affect our relationship with our suppliers, which could have a material adverse effect on our
liquidity.

Changesin our credit profile may affect the way our suppliers view our ability to make payments and may induce them to shorten the
payment terms of their invoices. Given the large dollar amounts and volume of our purchases from suppliers, a change in payment
terms may have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and our ability to make payments to our suppliers and, consequently, may
have a material adverse effect on us.

Price reductions by suppliers of products that we sell could cause the value of our inventory to decline. Also, these price reductions
could cause our customersto demand lower sales prices for these products, possibly decreasing our margins and profitability on sales
to the extent that we purchased our inventory of these products at the higher prices prior to supplier price reductions.

The value of our inventory could decline as aresult of manufacturer price reductions with respect to products that we sell. Thereisno
assurance that a substantial declinein product prices would not result in awrite-down of our inventory value. Such a write-down could
have an adverse effect on our financial condition. Also, decreasesin the market prices of products that we sell could cause customers
to demand lower sales prices from us. These price reductions could reduce our margins and profitability on sales with respect to the
lower-priced products. Reductions in our margins and profitability on sales could have a material adverse effect on us.
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A substantial decreasein the price of steel could significantly lower our product margin or cash flow.

We distribute many products manufactured from steel. As aresult, the price and supply of steel can affect our businessand, in
particular, our pipe product category. When steel prices are lower, the prices that we charge customers for products may decline,
which affects our product margin and cash flow. At times pricing and availability of steel can be volatile due to numerous factors
beyond our control, including general domestic and international economic conditions, labor costs, sales levels, competition,
consolidation of steel producers, fluctuations in and the costs of raw materials necessary to produce steel, steel manufacturers' plant
utilization levels and capacities, import duties and tariffs and currency exchange rates. Increases in manufacturing capacity for steel-
related products could put pressure on the prices we receive for such products. When steel prices decline, customer demands for lower
prices and our competitors responses to those demands could result in lower sales prices and, consequently, lower product margin and
cash flow.

If steel pricesrise, we may be unable to pass along the cost increases to our customers.

We maintain inventories of stedl products to accommodate the lead time requirements of our customers. Accordingly, we purchase
stedl productsin an effort to maintain our inventory at levels that we believe to be appropriate to satisfy the anticipated needs of our
customers based upon historic buying practices, contracts with customers and market conditions. Our commitments to purchase steel
products are generally at prevailing market pricesin effect at the time we place our orders. If steel prices increase between the time we
order steel products and the time of delivery of the products to us, our suppliers may impose surcharges that require us to pay for
increases in steel prices during the period. Demand for the products we distribute, the actions of our competitors and other factors will
influence whether we will be able to pass on steel cost increases and surcharges to our customers, and we may be unsuccessful in
doing so.

If tariffs and/or duties on importsinto the U.S. of line pipe or certain of the other products that we sell are lifted, we could have too
many of these products in inventory competing against less expensive imports.

U.S. law currently imposes tariffs and duties on imports from certain foreign countries of pipe and on other imports of certain steel
products that we sell. If these tariffs and duties are lifted or reduced, and our U.S. customers accept these imported products, we could
be materialy and adversely affected to the extent that we would then have higher-cost products in our inventory or there would be
increased supplies of these products which would drive down prices and affect our margins on our domestic or other alternate products
that compete with the new imports that have tariffs or duties removed. If prices of these products were to decrease significantly, we
might not be able to profitably sell these products we have in our inventory and the value would decline. In addition, significant price
decreases could result in asignificantly longer holding period for some of our inventory.

Changesin trade policies, including the imposition of additional tariffs, could negatively impact our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

On March 8, 2018, the President of the United States signed an order to impose atariff of 25% and/or quota on steel imported from
certain countries under the Section 232 rule. These trade actions resulted in an increase in our cost of sales, and if removed could
trigger adecrease in our cost of sales and inventory value. The U.S. has also imposed tariffs on China under Section 301 that have
affected the cost of certain products. These tariffs are subject to change as trade negotiations continue. If these tariffs were removed, it
could drive down the costs of certain products and affect our inventory value which could affect our margin negatively.

In addition, there could be additional trade actions imposed by the United States and these could also result in additional retaliatory
actions by the United States' trade partners. Given that we procure significant materials that we resell directly or indirectly from
outside of the United States, the imposition of tariffs and other potential changesin U.S. trade policy could increase the cost or limit
the availability of such raw materials, which could hurt our competitive position and adversely impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, we sell a significant proportion of our products to customers outside of the United
States. Retaliatory actions by other countries could result in increases in the price of our products, which could limit demand for such
products, hurt our global competitive position and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters

We are subject to strict environmental, health and safety laws and regulations that may lead to significant liabilities and negatively
impact the demand for our products.

We are subject to avariety of federal, state, local, foreign and provincial environmental, health and safety laws, regulations and
permitting requirements, including those governing the discharge of pollutants or hazardous substances into the air, soil or water, the
generation, handling, use, management, storage and disposal of, or exposure to, hazardous substances and wastes, the responsibility to
investigate and clean up contamination and occupational health and safety. Regulations and courts may impose fines and penalties for
non-compliance with applicable environmental, health and safety requirements and the failure to have or to comply with the terms and
conditions of required permits. Our failure to comply with applicable environmental, health and safety requirements could result in
fines, penalties, enforcement actions, third-party claims for property damage and personal injury, requirements to clean up property or
to pay for the costs of cleanup or regulatory or judicial orders requiring corrective measures, including the installation of pollution
control equipment or remedial actions. Certain laws and regulations, such as the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act (also known as“CERCLA” or the “U.S. federal Superfund law”) or its state and foreign equivalents,
may impose the obligation to investigate and remediate contamination at a facility on current and former owners or operators or on
persons who may have sent waste to that facility for disposal. These laws and regulations may impose liability without regard to fault
or to the legality of the activities giving rise to the contamination.

Moreover, we may incur liabilities in connection with environmental conditions currently unknown to us relating to our existing, prior
or future owned or leased sites or operations or those of predecessor companies whose liahilities we may have assumed or acquired.
We believe that indemnities contained in certain of our acquisition agreements may cover certain environmental conditions existing at
the time of the acquisition, subject to certain terms, limitations and conditions. However, if these indemnification provisions terminate
or if the indemnifying parties do not fulfill their indemnification obligations, we may be subject to liability with respect to the
environmental matters that those indemnification provisions address. In addition, environmental, health and safety laws and
regulations applicable to our business and the business of our customers, including laws regulating the energy industry, and the
interpretation or enforcement of these laws and regulations, are constantly evolving. It isimpossible to predict accurately the effect
that changes in these laws and regulations, or their interpretation or enforcement, may have on us.

In December 2015, over 190 countries, including the United States, reached an agreement to reduce global greenhouse gas emissions
(the “Paris Agreement”). The Paris Agreement entered into force in November 2016 after more than 70 nations, including the United
States, ratified or otherwise indicated their intent to be bound by the agreement. In November 2019, the United States formally
initiated the process for withdrawing from the Paris Agreement and the withdrawal was effective November 4, 2020. Effective
February 2021, the United States has rejoined the Paris Agreement. To the extent that the United States implements this agreement or
imposes other climate change regulations on the oil and natural gasindustry, or that investorsinsist on compliance regardless of legal
requirements, it could have an adverse effect on our business.

The energy business has benefited from the Trump administration’s de-regulatory push. The Biden administration is expected to
aggressively seek to regulate the energy industry and seek to eliminate in time the use of fossil fuels. This regulatory push will be
magnified as the Democrats also control both houses of Congress. Should environmental laws and regulations, or their interpretation
or enforcement, become more stringent, our costs, or the costs of our customers, could increase, which may have a material adverse
effect on us.

We may not have adequate insurance for potential liabilities, including liabilities arising from litigation.

In the ordinary course of business, we have, and in the future may, become the subject of various claims, lawsuits and administrative
proceedings seeking damages or other remedies concerning our commercial operations, the products we distribute, employees and
other matters, including potential claims by individuals alleging exposure to hazardous materials as a result of the products we
distribute or our operations. Some of these claims may relate to the activities of businesses that we have acquired, even though these
activities may have occurred prior to our acquisition of the businesses. The products we distribute are sold primarily for use in the
energy industry, which is subject to inherent risks that could result in death, personal injury, property damage, pollution, release of
hazardous substances or loss of production. In addition, defects in the products we distribute could result in death, personal injury,
property damage, pollution, release of hazardous substances or damage to equipment and facilities. Actual or claimed defectsin the
products we distribute may give rise to claims against us for losses and expose usto claims for damages.

We maintain insurance to cover certain of our potential losses, and we are subject to various self-retentions, deductibles and caps
under our insurance. We face the following risks with respect to our insurance coverage:

. we may not be able to continue to obtain insurance on commercially reasonable terms;
. we may incur losses from interruption of our business that exceed our insurance coverage;

. we may be faced with types of liabilities that will not be covered by our insurance;
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. our insurance carriers may not be able to meet their obligations under the policies; or
. the dollar amount of any liabilities may exceed our policy limits.

Even apartially uninsured claim, if successful and of significant size, could have a material adverse effect on us. Finally, even in cases
where we maintain insurance coverage, our insurers may raise various objections and exceptions to coverage that could make
uncertain the timing and amount of any possible insurance recovery.

Due to our position as a distributor, we are subject to personal injury, product liability and environmental claimsinvolving allegedly
defective products.

Our customers use certain products we distribute in potentially hazardous applications that can result in personal injury, product
liability and environmental claims. A catastrophic occurrence at alocation where end users use the products we distribute may result
in us being named as a defendant in lawsuits asserting potentially large claims, even though we did not manufacture the products.
Applicable law may render usliable for damages without regard to negligence or fault. In particular, certain environmental laws
provide for joint and several and strict liability for remediation of spills and releases of hazardous substances. Certain of theserisks are
reduced by the fact that we are a distributor of products that third-party manufacturers produce, and, thus, in certain circumstances, we
may have third-party warranty or other claims against the manufacturer of products alleged to have been defective. However, thereis
no assurance that these claims could fully protect us or that the manufacturer would be able financially to provide protection. Thereis
no assurance that our insurance coverage will be adequate to cover the underlying claims. Our insurance does not provide coverage for
all liabilities (including liability for certain eventsinvolving pollution or other environmental claims).

We face risks associated with conducting business in markets outside of the U.S. and Canada.

We currently conduct business in countries outside of the U.S. and Canada. We could be materially and adversely affected by
economic, legal, political and regulatory developmentsin the countries in which we do business in the future or in which we expand
our business, particularly those countries which have historically experienced a high degree of political or economic instability.
Examples of risks inherent in conducting business in markets outside of the U.S. and Canada include:

. changes in the political and economic conditions in the countries in which we operate, including civil uprisings and
terrorist acts;

. unexpected changes in regulatory requirements,

. changesin tariffs;

. the adoption of foreign or domestic laws limiting exports to or imports from certain foreign countries;
. fluctuations in currency exchange rates and the value of the U.S. dollar;

. restrictions on repatriation of earnings;

. expropriation of property without fair compensation;

. governmental actions that result in the deprivation of contract or proprietary rights; and

. the acceptance of business practices which are not consistent with or are antithetical to prevailing business practices we
are accustomed to in North Americaincluding export compliance and anti-bribery practices and governmental sanctions.

If we begin doing business in aforeign country in which we do not presently operate, we may also face difficultiesin operations and
diversion of management time in connection with establishing our business there.

We are subject to U.S. and other anti-corruption laws, trade controls, economic sanctions, and similar laws and regulations,
including those in the jurisdictions where we operate. Our failure to comply with these laws and regulations could subject usto civil,
criminal and administrative penalties and harm our reputation.

Doing business on aworldwide basis requires us to comply with the laws and regulations of the U.S. government and various foreign
jurisdictions. These laws and regulations place restrictions on our operations, trade practices, partners and investment decisions. In
particular, our operations are subject to U.S. and foreign anti-corruption and trade control laws and regulations, such as the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA"), export controls and economic sanctions programs, including those administered by the U.S. Treasury
Department’ s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“*OFAC"). Asaresult of doing businessin foreign countries and with foreign

partners, we are exposed to a heightened risk of violating anti-corruption and trade control laws and sanctions regulations.
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The FCPA prohibits us from providing anything of value to foreign officials for the purposes of obtaining or retaining business or
securing any improper business advantage. It also requires us to keep books and records that accurately and fairly reflect the
Company’ s transactions. As part of our business, we may deal with state-owned business enterprises, the employees of which are
considered foreign officials for purposes of the FCPA. In addition, the United Kingdom Bribery Act (the “Bribery Act”) has been
enacted and came into effect on July 1, 2011. The provisions of the Bribery Act extend beyond bribery of foreign public officials and
also apply to transactions with individuals that a government does not employ. The provisions of the Bribery Act are also more
onerous than the FCPA in a number of other respects, including jurisdiction, non-exemption of facilitation payments and penalties.
Some of the international locationsin which we operate lack a developed legal system and have higher than normal levels of
corruption. Our continued expansion outside the U.S., including in devel oping countries, and our devel opment of new partnerships
and joint venture relationships worldwide, could increase the risk of FCPA, OFAC or Bribery Act violationsin the future.

Economic sanctions programs restrict our business dealings with certain sanctioned countries, persons and entities. In addition,
because we act as a distributor, we face the risk that our customers might further distribute our products to a sanctioned person or
entity, or an ultimate end-user in a sanctioned country, which might subject us to an investigation concerning compliance with the
OFAC or other sanctions regulations.

Violations of anti-corruption and trade control laws and sanctions regulations are punishable by civil penalties, including fines, denial
of export privileges, injunctions, asset seizures, debarment from government contracts and revocations or restrictions of licenses, as
well as criminal fines and imprisonment. We have established policies and procedures designed to assist our compliance with
applicable U.S. and international anti-corruption and trade control laws and regulations, including the FCPA, the Bribery Act and
trade controls and sanctions programs administered by the OFAC, and have trained our employees to comply with these laws and
regulations. However, there can be no assurance that all of our employees, consultants, agents or other associated personswill not take
actionsin violation of our policies and these laws and regulations, and that our policies and procedures will effectively prevent us
from violating these regulationsin every transaction in which we may engage or provide a defense to any aleged violation. In
particular, we may be held liable for the actions that our local, strategic or joint venture partners take inside or outside of the United
States, even though our partners may not be subject to these laws. Such aviolation, even if our policies prohibit it, could have a
material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, various state and
municipal governments, universities and other investors maintain prohibitions or restrictions on investments in companies that do
business with sanctioned countries, persons and entities, which could adversely affect the market for our common stock and other
securities.

Compliance with and changes in laws and regulations in the countries in which we operate could have a significant financial impact
and effect how and where we conduct our operations.

We have operationsin the U.S. and in other countries that can be impacted by expected and unexpected changes in the business and
legal environments in the countries in which we operate. Compliance with and changes in laws, regulations, and other legal and
business issues could impact our ability to manage our costs and to meet our earnings goals. Compliance related matters could also
limit our ability to do businessin certain countries. Changes that could have a significant cost to us include new legidlation, new
regulations, or a differing interpretation of existing laws and regulations, changesin tax law or tax rates, the unfavorable resolution of
tax assessments or audits by various taxing authorities, the expansion of currency exchange controls, export controls or additional
restrictions on doing business in countries subject to sanctions in which we operate or intend to operate.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock
The market price of our shares may fluctuate widely.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate widely, depending upon many factors, some of which may be beyond our
control, including:

. our competitors significant acquisitions or dispositions;

. the failure of our operating results to meet the estimates of securities analysts or the expectations of our stockholders;
. changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet our earnings guidance;

. the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies;

. overall market fluctuations and general economic conditions; and

. the other factors described in these “ Risk Factors’ and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Stock marketsin general have also experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of a particular
company. These broad market fluctuations could negatively affect the trading price of our common stock.
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Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted in the future.

Aswith any publicly traded company, your percentage ownership in us may be diluted in the future because of equity issuances for
acquisitions, capital market transactions or otherwise, including, without limitation, equity awards that we expect will be granted to
our directors, officers and employees.

We cannot assure you that we will pay dividends on our common stock.

We do not currently pay dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain our future earnings to support the growth and
development of our business. The payment of future cash dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will
depend upon, among other things, our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and development expenditures,
future business prospects and any restrictions imposed by future debt instruments.

Certain provisionsin our corporate documents and Delaware law may prevent or delay an acquisition of our company, even if that
change may be considered beneficial by some of our stockholders.

The existence of some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law could discourage, delay or prevent
achangein control of usthat a stockholder may consider favorable. These include provisions:

. providing our Board of Directors with the right to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval;

. prohibiting stockholders from taking action by written consent;

. restricting the ability of our stockholdersto call a special meeting;

. providing that the number of directorswill be filled by the Board of Directors and vacancies on the Board of Directors,
including those resulting from an enlargement of the Board of Directors, will be filled by the Board of Directors,

. requiring cause and an affirmative vote of at least 80 percent of the voting power of the then-outstanding voting stock to
remove directors;

. requiring the affirmative vote of at least 80 percent of the voting power of the then-outstanding voting stock to amend
certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws; and

. establishing advance notice requirements for nominations of candidates for election to our Board of Directors or for
stockhol der proposals.

In addition, we are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL") which may have an anti-takeover
effect with respect to transactions not approved in advance by our Board of Directors, including discouraging takeover attempts that
could have resulted in a premium over the market price for shares of our common stock.

We believe these provisions protect our stockholders from coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics by requiring potential
acquirersto negotiate with our Board of Directors and by providing our Board of Directorswith more time to assess any acquisition
proposal. These provisions are not intended to make our company immune from takeovers. However, these provisions apply even if
the offer may be considered beneficial by some stockholders and could delay or prevent an acquisition that our Board of Directors
determinesis not in the best interests of our company and our stockholders.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2021, our three reporting segments, the United States, Canada and International, had approximately 115 locations,
40 locations and 25 locations, respectively. International countries include: Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, China, Colombia, Egypt,
England, India, Indonesia, Kazakhstan, Kuwait, Mexico, Netherlands, Norway, Oman, Russia, Saudi Arabia, Scotland, Singapore and
UAE. Our properties are comprised of offices, distribution centers and branches, approximately 85% of which are leased. One owned
facility is pledged as collateral under our senior secured revolving credit facility discussed in Note 10 “Debt” of the Notesto
Consolidated Financial Statements (Part 1V, Item 15 of this Form 10-K); all other owned facilities are not subject to any mortgages.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We have various claims, lawsuits and administrative proceedings that are pending or threatened, al arising in the ordinary course of
business, with respect to commercial, product liability and employee matters. Although no assurance can be given with respect to the
outcome of these or any other pending legal and administrative proceedings and the effect such outcomes may have, we believe any
ultimate liability resulting from the outcome of such claims, lawsuits or administrative proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 12 “Commitments and Contingencies’ of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Part 1V, Item 15 of this Form 10-K) for additional information.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART I1

ITEM5 MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'SCOMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERSAND ISSUER
PURCHASESOF EQUITY SECURITIES

Quarterly Common Stock Pricesand Cash Dividends Per Share
NOW Inc. common stock is traded on the New Y ork Stock Exchange (“NY SE”) under the ticker symbol “DNOW".
Our board of directors has not declared any dividends during 2019, 2020 or 2021 and currently has no intention to declare dividends.

As of January 31, 2022, there were 1,830 holders of record of our common stock. Many stockholders choose to own shares through
brokerage accounts and other intermediaries rather than as holders of record (excluding individual participantsin securities positions
listing) so the actual number of stockholdersis unknown but likely significantly higher.

The information relating to our equity compensation plans required by Item 5. “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities” isincorporated by reference to such information as set forth in Item
12. “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters’ contained herein.
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Performance Graph
The graph below compares the cumulative five year total return provided shareholders on NOW Inc.'s common stock relative to the

cumulative total returns of the S& P Midcap 400 index and the PHLX Oil Service Sector index. Aninvestment of $100 (with

reinvestment of all dividends) is assumed to have been made in our common stock and in each index on December 31, 2016 and its
relative performance is tracked through December 31, 2021.
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*$100 invested on 12/31/16 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright© 2022 Standard & Poor's, adivision of S& P Global. All rights reserved.

12/16 12/17 12/18 12/19 12/20 12/21
NOW Inc. $ 100 $ 54 $ 57 $ 55 8% 3B $§ 42
S& P Midcap 400 $ 100 $ 116 $ 103 $ 130 $ 148 $ 185

PHLX Oil ServiceSector $ 100 $ 83 § 45 $ 45 $ 26 $ 32

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
Thisinformation shall not be deemed to be *“ soliciting material’” or to be *‘filed’” with the Commission or subject to Regulation 14A

(17 CFR 240.14a-1-240.14a-104), other than as provided in Item 201(e) of Regulation S-K, or to the liabilities of section 18 of the
Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78r).

ITEM 6. RESERVED
Not applicable.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTSOF
OPERATIONS

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financia information include the accounts of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

General Overview

We are aglobal distributor to the oil and gas and industrial markets with alegacy of over 150 years. We operate primarily under the
DistributionNOW and DNOW brands. Through our network of approximately 180 locations and approximately 2,350 employees
worldwide, we stock and sell a comprehensive offering of energy products as well as a selection of products for industrial

applications. Our energy product offering is consumed throughout all sectors of the oil and gas industry — from upstream drilling and
completion, E& P, midstream infrastructure development to downstream petrochemical and petroleum refining — as well asin other
industries, such as chemical processing, mining, utilities and renewables. The industrial distribution end markets include refineries and
engineering and construction firms. We also provide supply chain and materials management solutions to the same markets where we
sell products.

Our global product offering includes consumable MRO supplies, pipe, valves, fittings, flanges, gaskets, fasteners, electrical,
instrumentation, artificial lift, pumping solutions, valve actuation and modular process, measurement and control equipment. We also
offer procurement, warehouse and inventory management solutions as part of our supply chain and materials management offering.
We have developed expertise in providing application systems, work processes, parts integration, optimization solutions and after-
sales support.

Our solutions include outsourcing portions or entire functions of our customers procurement, warehouse and inventory management,
logigtics, point of issue technology, project management, business process and performance metrics reporting. These solutions allow
usto leverage the infrastructure of our SAP™ ERP system and other technologies to streamline our customers' purchasing process,
from requisition to procurement to payment, by digitally managing workflow, improving approval routing and providing robust
reporting functionality.

We support land and offshore operations for all the major oil and gas producing regions around the world through our network of
locations. Our key markets, beyond North America, include South America, the North Sea, the Middle East, Asia Pacific, the FSU and
Africa. Products sold through our locations support greenfield expansion upstream capital projects, midstream infrastructure and
transmission and MRO consumables used in day-to-day production. We provide downstream energy and industrial products for
petroleum refining, chemical processing, LNG terminals, power generation utilities and customer on-site locations.

We stock or sell approximately 300,000 SKUs through our branch network. Our supplier network consists of thousands of vendorsin
approximately 40 countries. From our operationsin over 20 countries, we sell to customers operating in approximately 80 countries.
The supplies and equipment stocked by each of our branches are customized to meet varied and changing local customer demands.
The breadth and scale of our offering enhances our value proposition to our customers, suppliers and shareholders.

We employ advanced information technologies, including acommon ERP platform across most of our business, to provide complete
procurement, warehouse and inventory management and logistics coordination to our customers around the globe. Having a common
ERP platform allows immediate visibility into our inventory assets, operations and financials worldwide, enhancing decision making
and efficiency.

Our revenue and operating results are related to the level of worldwide oil and gas drilling and production activities and the
profitability and cash flow of oil and gas companies and drilling contractors, which in turn are affected by current and anticipated
prices of oil and gas. Oil and gas prices have been and are likely to continue to be volatile. See Item 1A. “Risk Factors.” We conduct
our operations through three business segments. U.S., Canada and International. See Item 1. “Business—Summary of Reportable
Segments’ for adiscussion of each of these business segments.

Unlessindicated otherwise, results of operations data are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (“GAAP”). In an effort to provide investors with additional information regarding our results as determined by GAAP,
we may disclose non-GAAP financial measures. The primary non-GAAP financial measure we focus on is earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, excluding other costs (“EBITDA excluding other costs’). Thisfinancial measure excludes the
impact of certain amounts and is not calculated in accordance with GAAP. See “Non-GAAP Financial Measures and Reconciliations’
in Results of Operations for an explanation of our use of non-GAAP financial measures and reconciliations to the corresponding
measures calculated in accordance with GAAP.
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Operating Environment Overview

Our results are dependent on, among other things, the level of worldwide oil and gas drilling and completions, well remediation
activity, crude and natural gas prices, capital spending by oilfield service companies and drilling contractors, and the worldwide oil
and gas inventory levels. Key industry indicators for the past three years include the following:

%

%

2021 v 2021 v
2021* 2020* 2020 2019* 2019

Active Drilling Rigs:

u.s. 475 436 8.9% 944  (49.7%)

Canada 131 90 45.6% 135 (3.0%)

International 755 826 (8.6%) 1,098  (3L.2%)
Worldwide 1,361 1,352 0.7% 2,177 (37.5%)
West Texas Intermediate Crude Prices (per barrel) $ 67.99 $ 39.23 73.3% $ 56.98 19.3%
Natural Gas Prices ($/M M Btu) $ 391 $ 2.04 91.7% $ 2.57 52.1%
Hot-Rolled Coail Prices (steel) ($/short ton) $ 156123 $ 574.67 171.7% $ 620.53 151.6%

* Averages for the years indicated. See sources on following page.
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The following table details the U.S., Canadian, and international rig activity and West Texas Intermediate (“WTI") ail pricesfor the
past nine quarters ended December 31, 2021:

Industry Trends
Rig Counts and Oil Prices
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Sources. Rig count: Baker Hughes, Inc. (www.bakerhughes.com); West Texas Intermediate Crude and Natural Gas Prices:
Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration (www.eia.doe.gov); Hot-Rolled Coil Prices: Steel Benchmarker™ Hot Roll
Coil USA (www.steelbenchmarker.com).

The worldwide average rig count increased 0.7% (from 1,352 rigs to 1,361 rigs) and the U.S. increased 8.9% (from 436 rigsto 475
rigs) in 2021 compared to 2020. The average price of WTI crude increased 73.3% (from $39.23 per barrel to $67.99 per barrel), and
natural gas pricesincreased 91.7% (from $2.04 per MMBtu to $3.91 per MMBtu) in 2021 compared to 2020. The average price of
Hot-Rolled Coil increased 171.7% (from $574.67 per short ton to $1,561.23 per short ton) in 2021 compared to 2020.

U.S. rig count at January 21, 2022 was 604 rigs, up 129 rigs from the 2021 average. The price for WTI crude was $85.16 per barrel at
January 21, 2022, up 25.3% from the 2021 average. The price for natural gaswas $4.11 per MMBtu at January 21, 2022, up 5.1%
from the 2021 average. The price for Hot-Rolled Coil was $1,500.00 per short ton at January 24, 2022, down 3.9% from the 2021
average.
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Executive Summary

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company generated net income of $5 million, or $0.05 per fully diluted share on $1,632
million in revenue. Net income increased for the year ended December 31, 2021, by $432 million when compared to the
corresponding period of 2020. Revenue increased for the year ended December 31, 2021, by $13 million, or 0.8%, when compared to
the corresponding period of 2020. For the year ended December 31, 2021, operating profit was $9 million compared to operating loss
of $420 million for the corresponding period of 2020.

For the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2021, the Company generated net income of $12 million, or $0.11 per fully diluted share
on $432 million in revenue. Net income increased for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2021, by $56 million when compared to
the corresponding period of 2020. Revenue increased for the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2021, by $113 million, or 35.4%,
when compared to the corresponding period of 2020. For the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2021, operating profit was $7
million, compared to operating loss of $37 million for the corresponding period of 2020.

Outlook

Our outlook for the Company remains tied to crude oil and natural gas commodity prices, global oil and gas drilling and completions
activity, oil and gas spending, and global demand for ail, its refined petroleum products, crude oil, natural gas liquids and natural gas
production and decline rates. Crude oil prices and natural gas aswell as crude oil and natural gas storage levels are primary catalysts
for determining customer activity.

Continuing to the date of thisfiling, uncertainty still exists concerning the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and itsimpact on the
economy and global oil and gas demand. Amid these dynamics, we will continue to optimize our operations, advance our strategic
goals and manage the Company based on market conditions. To navigate this challenging environment, we have undergone a
significant cost transformation by taking decisive actions to cut costs, accelerate structural changes and deploy various technologiesto
optimize processes, increase productivity and continue to support our customers and grow revenue. We will continue to optimize our
operations and adapt to market activity as appropriate to position the Company for the market ahead. As market conditions evolve, our
response may result in various charges in future periods.

We see therise in energy transition investments as an opportunity for us to supply many of the current products and services we
provide, as well asan opportunity to partner and source from new suppliersto expand our offering, to meet our customers' needs for
their energy transition investments. A number of our larger customers are leading the investments in energy transition projects where
we expect to continue to supply them while expanding our offerings to meet their changing requirements. We are also targeting new
customers that are not traditional oil and gas customers, those that will play a part in the future of energy transition.

Results of Operations
Consolidated Results
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

A summary of the Company’s revenue and operating profit (loss) by segment in 2021 and 2020 follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31, Variance
2021 2020 $

Revenue:

United States $ 1,163 $ 1,153 % 10

Canada 249 209 40

International 220 257 (37)
Total revenue $ 1632 $ 1619 % 13
Operating profit (10ss):

United States $ 8 $ (281) % 273

Canada 17 (60) 77

International — (79) 79
Total operating profit (l0ss) $ 9 % (420) $ 429
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United Sates

Revenue was $1,163 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, an increase of $10 million or 0.9% compared to the year ended
December 31, 2020. The slight improvement in the period was primarily driven by the fluctuationsin U.S. drilling and completions
activity.

Operating loss was $8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, an improvement of $273 million compared to operating loss of
$281 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. Operating loss improved in 2021 primarily due to a $183 million reduction in
impairment, coupled with lower inventory charges and employee-related expenses.

Canada

Revenue was $249 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, an increase of $40 million or 19.1% compared to the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by the improvement in Canadian rig count and favorable foreign exchange rate
impact.

Our Canadian revenue was approximately 15% of total revenuein 2021, similar to 2020. We are subject to fluctuationsin foreign
currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar. Our Canadian revenue is favorably impacted as the U.S. dollar weakens relative to
the Canadian dollar, and unfavorably impacted as the U.S. dollar strengthens relative to the Canadian dollar. Our Canadian segment
revenue was favorably impacted by approximately $15 million due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates over the prior year.

Operating profit was $17 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, an increase of $77 million compared to operating loss of $60
million for the year ended December 31, 2020. Operating profit increased primarily due to a $59 million reduction in impairment and
increase in revenue discussed above.

International

Revenue was $220 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, a decline of $37 million or 14.4% compared to the year ended
December 31, 2020. The decline was driven by softer project activity, partially offset by favorable foreign exchange rate impacts.

Our international revenue was approximately 14% of total revenue in 2021, similar to 2020. We are subject to fluctuationsin foreign
currency exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar. Our international revenue is favorably impacted as the U.S. dollar weakensrelative
to other foreign currencies, and unfavorably impacted as the U.S dollar strengthens relative to other foreign currencies. Our
international segment revenue was favorably impacted by approximately $9 million due to changesin foreign currency exchange rates
over the prior year.

Operating profit was nil for the year ended December 31, 2021, an improvement of $79 million compared to operating loss of $79
million for the year ended December 31, 2020. Operating profit increased primarily due to a$72 million reduction in impairment and
lower operating expenses.

Cost of products

Cost of products was $1,275 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to $1,327 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020, a decrease of $52 million. The decrease was primarily due to lower inventory chargesin the period. Cost of
products includes the cost of inventory sold and related items, such as vendor consideration, inventory allowances, amortization of
intangibles and inbound and outbound freight.

Warehousing, selling and administrative expenses

Warehousing, selling and administrative expenses were $341 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to $391 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020, a decrease of $50 million. The decrease was primarily due to improved operating efficiencies,
mainly workforce reductions. Warehousing, selling and administrative expenses include branch location, distribution center and
regional expenses (including costs such as compensation, benefits and rent) as well as corporate general selling and administrative
eXpenses.

Impairment and other charges

Impairment and other charges were $7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to $321 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized approximately $2 million of impairment related
to intangible assets and $8 million of impairment related primarily to operating right-of-use assets. These charges were partially offset
by anet gain of $3 million related to the sales of held-for-sale facilities.
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Other income (expense)

Other income was $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to other expense of $10 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. For the year ended December 31, 2021, other income mainly attributable to a benefit of $10 million related to the
decrease in the fair value of contingent consideration liabilities, partialy offset by unfavorable foreign exchange rate impacts. For the
year ended December 31, 2020, other expense primarily included approximately $6 million related to our pension plans.

Provision for income taxes

The effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 was 54.8% and 0.6%, respectively. In general,
the effective tax rate differs from the U.S. statutory rate due to recurring items, such as differing tax rates on income earned in foreign
jurisdictions, nondeductible expenses, state income taxes and the change in valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets.
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the effective tax rate was primarily driven by the low level of consolidated pre-tax income and
the recognition of tax expense from earnings in Canada, which was not able to be offset by benefits recognized on lossesin other
jurisdictions. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the effective tax rate was impacted by nondeductible goodwill impairment.

Consolidated Results

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019

For discussion related to the results of operations and changesin financial condition for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2019 refer to Part |1, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operationsin our 2020 Form 10-K, which was filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 17, 2021.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measur es and Reconciliations

In an effort to provide investors with additional information regarding our results of operations as determined by GAAP, we disclose
non-GAAP financial measures. The primary non-GAAP financial measure we disclose is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization, excluding other costs (“EBITDA excluding other costs’). This financial measure excludes the impact of certain
amounts and is not calculated in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of this non-GAAP financia measure, to its most
comparable GAAP financial measure, isincluded below.

We use EBITDA excluding other costsinternally to evaluate and manage the Company’ s operations because we believe it provides
useful supplemental information regarding the Company’ s ongoing economic performance. We have chosen to provide this
information to investors to enable them to perform more meaningful comparisons of operating results. In an effort to better align with
management’ s evaluation of the Company’ s performance and to facilitate comparison of our results to those of peer companies,
beginning for the year ended December 31, 2021, EBITDA excluding other costs excludes non-cash stock-based compensation
expense. Prior periods presented have been adjusted to conform with the current period presentation.

The following table sets forth the reconciliations of EBITDA excluding other costs to the most comparable GAAP financial measures
(in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
GAAP net income (loss) @ $ 5 $ (427) $ (97)
Interest, net — — 4
Income tax provision (benefit) 7 (©)] 4
Depreciation and amortization 23 28 41
Other costs:
Stock-based compensation @ 8 10 14
Other ©® 2 345 135
EBITDA excluding other costs $ 45 $ (47) $ 101
EBITDA % excluding other costs ) 2.8% (2.9%) 3.4%

@ We believe that net income (loss) isthe financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP that is
most directly comparable to EBITDA excluding other costs. EBITDA excluding other costs measures the Company’s
operating performance without regard to certain expenses. EBITDA excluding other costsis not a presentation made in
accordance with GAAP and the Company’ s computation of EBITDA excluding other costs may vary from othersin the
industry. EBITDA excluding other costs has important limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered in
isolation or as a substitute for analysis of the Company’ s results as reported under GAAP.

@ Stock-based compensation excludes net credits of $4 million and $1 million for 2020 and 2019, respectively, as such
separation amounts were reported in Other.

®  Other includes certain income and expenses not included in stock-based compensation. Other for 2021 primarily
included $7 million of impairment and other charges and $5 million in separation and transaction-related expenses,
which were included in operating profit (loss), partialy offset by a benefit of $10 million related to the decrease in the
fair value of contingent consideration liabilities, which was included in other income (expense). Other for 2020 included
$321 million of impairment and other charges and $18 million in net separation and transaction-related expenses, which
were included in operating profit (loss). Other for 2020 also included $6 million in pension expense related to the de-
risking of our defined benefit plans which was included in other income (expense). Other for 2019 included $128 million
of impairment and other charges and $7 million in net separation and transaction-related expenses, approximately half of
which are related to the CEO departure, which were included in operating profit (10ss).

@ EBITDA % excluding other costsis defined as EBITDA excluding other costs divided by Revenue.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We assess liquidity in terms of our ability to generate cash to fund operating, investing and financing activities. We expect resources
to be available to reinvest in existing businesses, strategic acquisitions and capital expenditures to meet short and long-term objectives.
We believe cash on hand, cash generated from expected results of operations and amounts available under our revolving credit facility
will be sufficient to fund operations, anticipated working capital needs and other cash requirements, including capital expenditures.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents of $313 million and $387 million, respectively. As of

December 31, 2021, $112 million of our cash and cash equivalents was maintained in our various foreign subsidiaries. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, we repatriated $13 million from our Canadian operations. The Company makes a determination each
period concerning itsintent and ability to indefinitely reinvest the cash held by its foreign subsidiaries. The Company has not recorded
deferred income taxes on undistributed foreign earnings that it considersto be indefinitely reinvested. The Company makes a
determination each period whether to indefinitely reinvest these earnings. If, as aresult of these reassessments, the Company
distributes these earnings in the future, additional tax liabilities offset by any available foreign tax credits may result.

We maintain a $500 million five-year senior secured revolving credit facility that will mature on December 14, 2026. Availability
under the revolving credit facility is determined by a borrowing base comprised of eligible receivables, eligible inventory and certain
pledged depositsin the U.S. and Canada. As of December 31, 2021, we had no borrowings against our revolving credit facility and
had $359 million in availability (as defined in the Credit Agreement) resulting in the excess availability (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) of 99%, subject to certain restrictions. Availability excluding certain cash deposits was approximately $248 million.
Borrowings that result in the excess availability dropping below the greater of 10% of the borrowing base or $40 million are
conditioned upon compliance with or waiver of aminimum fixed charge ratio (as defined in the Credit Agreement). The credit facility
contains usual and customary affirmative and negative covenants for credit facilities of thistype including financial covenants. As of
December 31, 2021, we were in compliance with all covenants. We continuously monitor compliance with debt covenants. A default,
if not waived or amended, may prevent us from taking certain actions, such as incurring additional debt.

As of December 31, 2021, we had $13 million of contingent consideration liabilities based on our current forecast, which was
recorded in other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, and the undiscounted range of outcomes was $0 to $45 million.
Changes in business conditions or other events could result in material changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration. See
Note 19 “Transactions’ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Part 1V, Item 15 of this Form 10-K) for additional
information.

See Note 11 “Leases’ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Part 1V, I1tem 15 of this Form 10-K) for additional
information on our obligations and timing of expected future lease payments.

We are often party to certain transactions that require off-balance sheet arrangements such as standby letters of credit and performance
bonds and guarantees that are not reflected in our consolidated bal ance sheets. These arrangements are made in our normal course of
business and they are not reasonably likely to have a current or future material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations, liquidity or cash flows.

The following table summarizes our net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities and net cash provided by (used in) financing activities for the periods presented (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 30 $ 189 $ 224
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (96) 22 (22
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6) (8) (138)

Fiscal Year 2021 Compared to Fiscal Year 2020

Net cash provided by operating activities was $30 million in 2021 compared to $189 million in 2020. The decrease in cash provided
by operating activitiesin 2021 compared to 2020 was primarily driven by a net increase in working capital, partially offset by
improved operating resultsin 2021 compared to 2020, as aresult of growing market activities. The increase in working capital used
cash of $33 million in 2021 compared to the decrease in working capital provided $170 million cash in 2020.

Net cash used in investing activities was $96 million in 2021 compared to net cash provided by investing activities of $22 millionin
2020. In 2021, net cash used in investing activities was primarily related to business acquisitions for $96 million (net of cash
acquired). In 2020, net cash provided by investing activities was primarily related to net proceeds of $26 million related to business
divestitures.
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Net cash used in financing activities was $6 million in 2021 compared to $8 million in 2020. In both 2021 and 2020, net cash used in
financing activities was primarily related to payments associated with finance leases.

Effect of the Changein Exchange Rates

The effect of the change in exchange rates on cash flows was a decrease of $2 million and an increase of $1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Capital Spending

We intend to pursue additional acquisition candidates, but the timing, size or success of any acquisition effort and the related potential
capital commitments cannot be predicted. We continue to expect to fund future cash acquisitions primarily with cash flow from
operations and the usage of the available portion of the revolving credit facility. We expect capital expendituresfor fiscal year 2022 to
be approximately $15 million, primarily related to purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing the financia statements, the Company makes assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported. The
Company periodically evaluates its estimates and judgments that are most critical in nature, which are related to allowance for
doubtful accounts, inventory reserves, goodwill, intangible assets, contingent consideration, purchase price allocation of acquisitions,
vendor consideration and income taxes. Its estimates are based on historical experience and on its future expectations that the
Company believes are reasonable. The combination of these factors forms the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results are likely to differ from our current estimates and
those differences may be material.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company grants credit to its customers, which operate primarily in the energy, industrial and manufacturing markets.
Concentrations of credit risk are limited because the Company has alarge number of geographically diverse customers, thus spreading
trade credit risk. The Company controls credit risk through credit evaluations, credit limits and monitoring procedures. The Company
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers financial condition and generally does not require collateral, but may require
letters of credit or prepayments for certain sales. Allowances for doubtful accounts are established based on an evaluation of accounts
receivable aging, and, where applicable, specific reserves on a customer-by-customer basis. With the adoption of Accounting
Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 326 "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses", the estimated allowance for doubtful accounts
(“AFDA") reflects the Company’ s immediate recognition of current expected credit losses by incorporating the historical loss
experience, aswell as current and future market conditions that are reasonably available. Judgmentsin the estimate of AFDA include
global economic and business conditions, oil and gas industry and market conditions, customer’s financia conditions and accounts
receivable past due. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $25 million and $28 million, or 7.6%
and 12.4% of gross accounts receivable, respectively.

Inventory Reserves

Inventories consist primarily of oilfield and industrial finished goods. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value
and using average cost methods. Allowances for excess and obsolete inventories are determined based on the Company’s historical
usage of inventory on hand aswell as its future expectations. The Company’s estimated carrying value of inventory therefore depends
upon demand driven by oil and gas spending activity, which dependsin turn upon ail, gas and steel prices, the general outlook for
economic growth worldwide, available financing for the Company’s customers, political stability in major oil and gas producing areas
and the potential obsolescence of various inventory items the Company stocks, among other factors. At December 31, 2021 and 2020,
inventory reserves totaled $32 million and $39 million, or 11.3% and 13.0% of gross inventory, respectively. Changesin our estimates
can be material under different market conditions.

Goodwill and Long-lived Assets

The Company conducts goodwill impairment testing at the reporting unit level annually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, and
more frequently on an interim basis when an event occurs or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit
may have declined below its carrying value.

Thefair values of reporting units are determined based on valuation techniques using the best available information, primarily
discounted cash flow projections and multiple-based market approach for comparable companies, where applicable. The two main
assumptions that could impact the impairment analysis include the cash flow based on management’ s short-term and long-term
forecast of operating performance for each reporting unit and the discount rate. The starting point for the reporting unit’ s projected
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cash flow from operations is the detailed annual plan or updated forecast, which takes into consideration a multitude of factors
including worldwide rig activity, inflationary forces, pricing strategies, customer analysis, operational issues, competitor analysis,
capital spending requirements, working capital requirements and customer needs among other items which impact the individual
reporting unit projections. Cash flows beyond the specific operating plans are estimated using a terminal value calculation, which
incorporates historical and forecasted financial cyclical trends for each reporting unit and also considers long-term earnings growth
rates. The financial and credit market volatility impacts the fair value measurement by adjusting the discount rate.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has $67 million goodwill in its U.S. Process Solutions reporting unit and no goodwill in other
reporting units. During the fourth quarter of 2021, we performed our annual goodwill impairment test resulting in no impairment. The
excess of the reporting unit's estimated fair value over carrying value (expressed as a percentage of carrying value) was approximately
25%. Adverse changes in the future could reduce the underlying cash flows used to estimate fair values and could trigger future
impairment charges.

Our long-lived assets include property, plant and equipment, operating right-of-use assets and intangible assets. The Company
evaluates impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not
be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amounts to the future undiscounted cash
flows the assets are expected to generate. If such review indicates that the carrying amount of long-lived assetsis not recoverable, the
carrying amount of such assetsis reduced to fair value. The fair values of long-lived assets are primarily determined using discounted
cash flow projections, and market approach, where applicable, based on market observable data and quotes for certain assets.

For the year ended December 31, 2021 we recognized approximately $10 million of impairments for long-lived assets primarily
relating to exiting certain property and right-of-use operating leases.

Purchase Price Allocation of Acquisitions

The Company alocates the fair value of the purchase price consideration of an acquired businessto itsidentifiable assets and
liabilities based on estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities, if
any, isrecorded as goodwill. The Company uses all available information to estimate fair values including quoted market prices, the
carrying value of acquired assets, and widely accepted valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows. The Company engages
third-party valuation advisorsto assist in fair value determination of inventories, identifiable intangible assets and any other significant
assets or liabilities when appropriate. The judgments made in determining the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset lives, could materially impact the Company’ s results of operations.

Contingent Consideration

Thefair value of acquisition-related contingent consideration is determined using the Monte Carlo simulation based on estimated
future cash flow projections, the probability of achievement and the estimated discount rates, al of which are classified as level 3
inputs under the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the contingent consideration is highly subjective if different estimates and
assumptions are used. Changes in business conditions or other events could result in material changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration.

As of December 31, 2021, we had $13 million of contingent consideration liabilities based on our current forecast, which was
recorded in other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and the undiscounted estimated range of outcomes was $0 to $45
million. A hypothetical 5% change in the forecasted EBITDA (as defined in the acquisition agreement) would change the estimated
fair value by approximately 30%.

Vendor Consideration

The Company receives funds from vendors in the normal course of business, principally as aresult of purchase volumes. Generally,
these vendor funds do not represent the reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred by the Company to sell
the vendor’ s product. Therefore, the Company treats these funds as a reduction of inventory when purchased and once these goods are
sold to third parties the associated amount is credited to cost of sales. The Company develops accrual rates for vendor consideration
based on the provisions of the arrangements in place, historical trends, purchases and future expectations. Due to the complexity and
diversity of theindividual vendor agreements, the Company performs analyses and reviews historical trends throughout the year and
confirms actual amounts with select vendors to ensure the amounts earned are appropriately recorded. Amounts accrued throughout
the year could be impacted if actual purchase volumes differ from projected annual purchase volumes, especially in the case of
programs that provide for increased funding when graduated purchase volumes are met.
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Income Taxes

The Company isaU.S. registered company and is subject to income taxesin the U.S. The Company operates through various
subsidiaries in a number of countries throughout the world. Income taxes are based upon the tax laws and rates of the countriesin
which the Company operates and earns income.

The Company’s annual tax provision is based on taxable income, statutory rates, and the interpretation of the tax lawsin the various
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. It requires significant judgment and the use of estimates and assumptions regarding
significant future events such as the amount, timing and character of income, deductions and tax credits. Changesin tax laws,
regulations and treaties, foreign currency exchange restrictions or the Company’s level of operations or profitability in each
jurisdiction could impact the tax liability in any given year. The Company also operates in many jurisdictions where the tax laws
relating to the pricing of transactions between related parties are open to interpretation, which could potentially result in aggressive tax
authorities asserting additional tax liabilities with no offsetting tax recovery in other countries.

The Company determined the provision for income taxes under the asset and liability approach, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial
statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined on the basis of the differences between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax ratesin effect for the year in which the differences are expected to
reverse. The effect of achangein tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilitiesis recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amountsin
the financial statements, which will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets
to the extent that the Company believes these assets are more-likely-than-not to be realized. If the Company determines that it would
be able to realize its deferred tax assetsin the future in excess of their net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment
to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes. In evaluating the Company’ s ability
to recover deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, the Company considers all available positive and negative
evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies and results
of operations. In projecting future taxable income, the Company begins with historical results adjusted for the results of discontinued
operations and incorporates assumptions about the amount of future state, federal and foreign pretax operating income adjusted for
items that do not have tax consegquences. The assumptions about future taxable income require significant judgment and are consistent
with the plans and estimates the Company is using to manage the underlying businesses.

The Company remainsin athree-year cumulative loss position at the end of 2021. As aresult, management believesthat it is not
more-likely-than-not that the Company would be able to realize the benefits of its deferred tax assetsin the U.S., Canada and other
foreign jurisdictions and accordingly recognized a valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2021. The change during the
year in the valuation allowance was nil in the U.S. and $2 million in other foreign jurisdictions.

The Company records unrecognized tax benefits as liabilities in accordance with ASC 740 and adjusts these liabilities when judgment
changes as a result of the evaluation of new information not previously available in jurisdictions of operation. The Company records
uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 on the basis of a two-step process whereby (1) the Company determines whether
it is more-likely-than-not that the tax positions will be sustained on the basis of the technical merits of the position and (2) for those
tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company recognizes the largest amount of tax benefit that
is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority. The annual tax provision includes
the impact of income tax provisions and benefits for changes to liabilities that the Company considers appropriate, as well as related
interest.

The Company is subject to audits by federal, state and foreign jurisdictions which may result in proposed assessments. Because of the
complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a payment that is materially different from the current
estimate of the unrecognized tax benefit liabilities. The Company reviews these liabilities quarterly and to the extent audits or other
events result in an adjustment to the liability accrued for a prior year, the effect will be recognized in the period of the event.

As of December 31, 2021, the amount of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries was approximately $1 million. The Company
has not recorded deferred income taxes on undistributed foreign earnings that it considersto be indefinitely reinvested. The Company
makes a determination each period whether to indefinitely reinvest these earnings. If, as aresult of these reassessments, the Company
distributes these earnings in the future, additional tax liabilities may result, offset by any available foreign tax credits.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-04,
Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848), which provides optional expedients and exceptions to contracts, hedging relationships, and other
transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued because of reference rate reform. Entities that
elect the relief are required to disclose the nature of the optional expedients and exceptions that are adopted and the reasons for the
adoptions. The guidance is effective upon issuance and the expedients and exceptions may be applied prospectively through December
31, 2022. The Company is currently assessing the impact of ASU 2020-04 on its consolidated financial statements but does not expect
the adoption of this standard to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

A-35



ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks that are inherent in our financial instruments and arise from changesin interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. We may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce market risk but
do not enter into derivative financial instrument transactions for speculative purposes. We do not currently have any material
outstanding derivative instruments. See Note 13 “Derivative Financia Instruments’ of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Part 1V, Item 15 of this Form 10-K) for additional information.

A discussion of our primary market risk exposure in financial instrumentsis presented below.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We have operations in foreign countries and transact business globally in multiple currencies. Our net assets as well as our revenues
and costs and expenses denominated in foreign currencies, expose us to the risk of fluctuationsin foreign currency exchange rates
against the U.S. dollar. Because we operate globally and approximately 30% of our 2021 net sales were outside the United States,
foreign currency exchange rates can impact our financial position, results of operations and competitive position. We are a net receiver
of foreign currencies and therefore benefit from aweakening of the U.S. dollar and are adversely affected by a strengthening of the
U.S. dollar relative to the foreign currency. As of December 31, 2021, our most significant foreign currency exposure was to the
Canadian dollar, followed by the British pound, with less significant foreign currency exposure to the Australian dollar.

The financia statements of foreign subsidiaries are trandlated into their U.S. dollar equivalents at end-of-period exchange rates for
assets and liabilities, while revenue, costs and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates. Translation gains and losses
are components of other comprehensive income (loss) as reported in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (10ss).
During 2021, we experienced a net foreign currency translation loss totaling $2 million, which was included in other comprehensive
income (loss).

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations generally do not materially affect our earnings since the functional currency istypically
the local currency; however, our operations also have net assets not denominated in their functional currency, which exposes usto
changesin foreign currency exchange rates that impact our net income as foreign currency transaction gains and losses. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses, arising from fluctuations in currency exchange rates on transactions denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency, are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as a component of other income
(expense). For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, we reported a net foreign currency transaction loss of $1 million,
gain of $2 million and loss of $1 million, respectively. Gains and losses are primarily due to exchange rate fluctuations related to
monetary asset balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency and fair value adjustments to economically
hedged positions as aresult of changesin foreign currency exchange rates.

Some of our revenues for our foreign operations are denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore, changes in foreign currency exchange
rates impact earnings to the extent that costs associated with those U.S. dollar revenues are denominated in the local currency.
Similarly, some of our revenues for our foreign operations are denominated in foreign currencies, but have associated U.S. dollar
costs, which also give rise to foreign currency exchange rate exposure. In order to mitigate those risks, we may utilize foreign
currency forward contracts to better match the currency of the revenues and the associated costs. Although we may utilize foreign
currency forward contracts to economically hedge certain foreign currency denominated balances or transactions, we do not currently
hedge the net investments in our foreign operations. The counterparties to our forward contracts are major financial institutions. The
credit ratings and concentration of risk of these financial institutions are monitored by us on a continuing basis. In the event that the
counterparties fail to meet the terms of aforeign currency contract, our exposure is limited to the foreign currency rate differential.

The average foreign exchange rate for 2021 compared to the average for 2020 increased by approximately 6% compared to the U.S.
dollar based on the aggregated weighted average revenue of our foreign currency denominated foreign operations. The Canadian
dollar, British pound and Australian dollar increased in relation to the U.S. dollar by approximately 7%, 7% and 9%, respectively.

We utilized a sengitivity analysis to measure the potential impact on earnings based on a hypothetical 10% change in foreign currency
rates. A 10% change from the levels experienced during 2021 of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies that affected the
Company would have resulted in $2 million change in net income for 2021.

Commodity Steel Pricing

Our businessis sensitive to steel prices, which can impact our product pricing, with steel tubular prices generally having the highest
degree of sengitivity. While we cannot predict steel prices, we manage this risk by managing our inventory levels, including
maintaining sufficient quantity on hand to meet demand, while reducing the risk of overstocking.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Attached hereto and a part of this report are financial statements and supplementary data listed in Item 15. “ Exhibits, Financial
Statement Schedules.”

ITEM 9. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTSON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act of 1934), is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisionsregarding
required disclosure. As of December 31, 2021, with the participation of management, our President and Chief Executive Officer and
our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer carried out an evaluation, pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act of
1934, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act of 1934).
Based upon that evaluation, our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were operating effectively as of December 31, 2021.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act,
management is required to provide the following report on our internal control over financial reporting:

. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.

. Management has evaluated the system of internal control using the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission 2013 framework (“COSO 2013 framework”). Management has selected the COSO 2013
framework for its evaluation asit is a control framework recognized by the SEC and the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board that is free from bias, permits reasonably consistent qualitative and quantitative measurement of our
internal controls, is sufficiently complete so that relevant controls are not omitted and is relevant to an evaluation of
internal controls over financial reporting.

. Based on management’ s evaluation under this framework, management has concluded that our internal controls over
financial reporting were effective as of December 31, 2021. There are no material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting that have been identified by management.

There have been no changesin our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Act, in the quarterly
period ended December 31, 2021, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have provided
certain certifications to the Securities and Exchange Commission. These certifications are included herein as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2.

Thereport from Ernst & Young LLP on its audit of the effectiveness of the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2021 isincluded in this annual report and isincorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

None.
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PART 11

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERSAND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Mesting of Stockholders.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERSAND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Mesting of Stockholders.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans.

The following table sets forth information as of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, with respect to compensation plans under
which our common stock may be issued:

Number of securitiesto be Weighted-average Number of securities

issued upon exer cise of exercise price of remaining available for

outstanding options, warrants outstanding options, futureissuance under equity
Plan Category and rights® warrants and rights compensation plans @
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 4,327,668 $ 15.02 6,299,929
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders — 3 — —
Total 4,327,668 $ 15.02 6,299,929

@ Includes 669,195 shares of issuable performance-based awards if specific targets are met, and 62,461 shares of Restricted Stock Units
and Phantom Shares (collectively, “RSUS") which have no exercise price. Therefore, these shares are excluded for purposes of
determining the weighted-average exercise prices of outstanding options, warrants and rights.

@ Includes 6,299,929 shares issuable pursuant to the 2014 Plan in the form of stock options, restricted awards, RSUs, performance stock
awards, or any combination of the foregoing.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPSAND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Mesting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEESAND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(1) Financial Statements and Exhibits

The following financia statements are presented in response to Part 11, Item 8:

@e
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ...ttt ettt A-42
Auditor Name: Ernst & Young LLP
Auditor Location: Houston, Texas
Auditor ID: 42
CONSOLIDATED BALANGCE SHEETS .....cueiiiti ettt itte e itee s stte e see e steeestee s s teeesseesabasesssessseeessseesseeeassesassseasseessseesseeessseesnsesssseessseesnees A-45
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS ... .co ottt sttt e ste e stte e saee e stteesaaeesteeesateesaseesaeeessseessaeesseeessseessseesnsnessnes A-46
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) .....vtiitiiieitieiteeiteeiteseeseesreesreesreesresssessaessessseessens A-47
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ..ottt tee et stte e sate st e e saee et e e sate e snteesaaeesnteesnaeesnneesnseesnseesnneenneas A-48
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY ..iuiiiieiteieeteseesteesteesteeseeeseesessseesseesseesseensesnsesssessessseesses A-49
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .. ..ottt e ettt e e e sate e e s e e e e e e eareeeeensaesesnnneeasnneeaaan A-50

(2) Financial Statement Schedule

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not required or theinformation is included in the financia statements or
notes thereto.
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(3) Exhibits

31

3.2

4.1

101
10.2
10.3
104
10.5
10.6
10.7

10.8
10.9
10.10

211
231
241
311

31.2

321
32.2
101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE
104

NOW Inc. Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation ©

NOW Inc. Amended and Restated Bylaws ©

Description of the Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

Form of Employment Agreement for Executive Officers @

NOW Inc. 2014 Incentive Compensation Plan @

Form of Nongualified Stock Option Agreement ¥

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (3 year cliff vest) ©

Form of Performance Award Agreement @
Form of Amendment to Employment Agreement for Executive Officers )

Credit Agreement dated as of April 30, 2018, among the Borrowers, the lenders that are parties thereto and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association as administrative agent, an issuing lender and swing lender ©

Employment Agreement between NOW Inc. and Chief Executive Officer David Cherechinsky
Employment Agreement between NOW Inc. and Chief Financial Officer Mark Johnson

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, and First Amendment to US Guaranty and Security Agreement, dated as of
December 14, 2021, among the Borrowers, the lenders party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent, an issuing lender and swing lender.®

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of |ndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Power of Attorney (included on signature page hereto)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act,
as amended

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act,
as amended

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Inline XBRL Instance Document — The instance document does not appear in the interactive data file because its XBRL
tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

@ Filed as an Exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 30, 2014

@ Filed as an Exhibit to our Amendment No. 1 to Form 10, as amended, Registration Statement filed on April 8, 2014
®  Filed as an Exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 7, 2015

@ Filed as an Exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2016

®  Filed as an Exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 1, 2018

® Filed as an Exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 21, 2020

@ Filed as an Exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2020

® Filed as an Exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on February 4, 2022
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NOW Inc.
Date: February 17, 2022
By:/g/ David A. Cherechinsky

David A. Cherechinsky
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Each person whose signature appears below in so signing, constitutes and appoints David A. Cherechinsky and Mark B. Johnson, and
each of them acting alone, his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution, for him or her and in
his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to execute and cause to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission any and all amendments to this report, and in each case to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documentsin
connection therewith, and hereby ratifies and confirms all that said attorney-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Signature Title Date

/s David A. Cherechinsky President, Chief Executive Officer and Director February 17, 2022
David A. Cherechinsky

/s Mark B. Johnson Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 17, 2022
Mark B. Johnson

/9 Richard J. Alario Chairman of the Board February 17, 2022
Richard J. Alario

/g Terry Bonno Director February 17, 2022
Terry Bonno

//s/ Galen Cobb Director February 17, 2022
Galen Cobb

/s/ Paul Coppinger Director February 17, 2022
Paul Coppinger

/sl James Crandell Director February 17, 2022
James Crandell

/s Rodney Eads Director February 17, 2022
Rodney Eads

/s Sonya Reed Director February 17, 2022
Sonya Reed
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of NOW Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NOW Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three
yearsin the period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial
statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three yearsin the period
ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework), and our report dated February 17, 2022 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basisfor Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the
Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to
be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our auditsincluded performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit M atter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material
to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the
critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financia statements, taken as awhole, and we are not,
by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or
disclosuresto which it relates.

Accounting for business combinations

Description of the As described in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company completed acquisitions for an

Matter aggregate purchase price consideration of approximately $119 million during the year ended December 31, 2021.
The purchase price includes the estimated fair value of contingent consideration totaling $23 million if certain
financial and profitability thresholds are achieved following the close of the transactions. The Company allocated
the purchase price, on apreliminary basis, to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective
fair values, including property, plant, and equipment of $36 million, identified intangible assets of $11 million
and resulting goodwill of approximately $67 million.

Auditing the Company's accounting for the estimated contingent consideration and fair value of acquired assets
involved subjective auditor judgment due to the significant estimation required in management's determination
of thefair value of contingent consideration and assets acquired. The significant estimation was primarily dueto
the sensitivity of the significant assumptions in determining fair value, including projected operating resullts,
probability of achievement, and discount rates. These assumptions related to the future performance of the
acquired businesses, are forward-looking and could be affected by future economic and market conditions.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over
the Company's accounting for business combinations. Our audit procedures included, among other procedures,
testing controls over the estimated fair value of contingent consideration and assets acquired, including the
valuation models and underlying assumptions used to develop such estimates.

To test the estimated fair value of contingent consideration and acquired assets, we performed audit procedures
that included, among other procedures, eval uating the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and testing
the significant assumptions used in the models, as described above, including the completeness and accuracy of
the underlying data. We compared the significant assumptions to current industry, market and economic trends,
to the historical results of the acquired business and to other guideline companies within the same industry. We
performed sensitivity analyses to evaluate the change in the fair value of the estimated contingent consideration
and intangiblesthat would result from changesin the discount rates, and projected operating results. Weinvolved
our internal valuation specialists to assist with our evaluation of the methodology used by the Company as well
as certain assumptions within the valuation.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2013.

Houston, Texas

February 17, 2022
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of NOW Inc.
Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited NOW Inc.’sinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework) (the COSO criterid). In our opinion, NOW Inc. (the Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the 2021 consolidated financial statements of the Company and our report dated February 17, 2022 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Basisfor Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financia reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Company’ sinternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in al material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such
other procedures aswe considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides areasonable basisfor our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabl e assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financia statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financia statementsin
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabl e assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changesin
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas

February 17, 2022
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NOW INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except share data)

ASSETS

Current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net

Inventories, net

Prepaid and other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill
Intangibles, net
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIESAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current ligbilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Other current ligbilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term operating lease liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock - par value $0.01; 20 million shares authorized;
no sharesissued and outstanding
Common stock - par value $0.01; 330 million shares authorized;
110,558,831 and 109,951,610 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,
2021 2020
313 $ 387
304 198
250 262
16 14
883 861
111 98
— 1
67 —
9 _
34 48
1,104 $ 1,008
235 % 172
112 95
22 5
369 272
17 25
6 12
392 309
1 1
2,061 2,051
(1,203) (1,208)
(147) (145)

712 699
1,104 $ 1,008




NOW INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Revenue $ 1632 $ 1619 $ 2,951
Operating expenses:

Cost of products 1,275 1,327 2,365

Warehousing, selling and administrative 341 391 541

Impairment and other charges 7 321 128
Operating profit (l0ss) 9 (420) (83)
Other income (expense) 3 (10) (10)

Income (loss) before income taxes 12 (430) (93)
Income tax provision (benefit) 7 (©)] 4
Net income (l0ss) $ 5 $ (427) $ (97)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 005 $ (391) $ (0.89)

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 0.05 $ (391) $ (0.89)
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 110 109 109
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, diluted 110 109 109

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOW INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Net income (l0ss) $ 5 % 427) % (97)
Other comprehensive income (10ss):
Foreign currency trand ation adjustments 2 (17) 15
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 3 % (4449) $ (82

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOW INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (l0ss) $ 5 % (427) $ (97)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (Ioss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 23 28 41
Provision for doubtful accounts 2 9 ()
Provision for inventory 9 54 13
Impairment and other charges 7 321 128
Other, net 21 34 43
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and
divestitures:
Receivables (97) 157 98
Inventories 3 148 109
Prepaid and other current assets 3 1 1
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other, net 64 (136) (110)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 30 189 224
Cash flows from investing activities:
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (96) — (8
Net proceeds from sale of business — 26 —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (5) (8) (12
Other, net 5 4 (2
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (96) 22 (22
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings under the revolving credit facility — — 268
Repayments under the revolving credit facility — — (400)
Payments relating to finance leases and other, net (6) (8) (6)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6) (8 (138)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (2 1 3
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (74) 204 67
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 387 183 116
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 313 $ 387 $ 183
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Income taxes paid, net $ — ¢ 2 $ 7
Interest paid $ — ¢ — $ 5
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Accrued purchases of property, plant and equipment $ — 3 — 8 3

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTSOF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

December 31, 2018
Net loss
Stock-based compensation
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of restricted stock
Shares withheld for taxes
Other comprehensive income
December 31, 2019

Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net loss

Stock-based compensation

Vesting of restricted stock

Shares withheld for taxes

Other comprehensive loss
December 31, 2020

Net income

Stock-based compensation

Exercise of stock options

Vesting of restricted stock

Shares withheld for taxes

Other comprehensive loss
December 31, 2021

NOW INC.

(In millions)
Common Stock Additional Retained Accum. Other Total
Shares Common Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive  Stockholders
Qutstanding Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (L 0ss) Equity
108 $ 1 3 2034 $ (678 % (143) $ 1,214
— — — (97) — (97)
— — 13 — — 13
— — 2 — — 2
1 _ _ — _ _
— — (©) — — )
— — — — 15 15
109 $ 1 % 2046 $ (775 $ (128) $ 1,144
— — 6 — (6)
_ — — (427) — (427)
— — 6 — — 6
1 — — — — —
— — 1 — — (1)
— — — — (A7) (A7)
110 $ 1 % 2051 $ (1,208 $ (145) $ 699
— — — 5 — 5
— — 8 — — 8
— — 3 — — 3
1 _ _ — _ _
— — (1) — — (1)
— — — — e 2
111 $ 1 3 2061 $ (1,203) $ (147) $ 712

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOW INC.
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

NOW Inc. (“NOW” or the “Company”) is a holding company headquartered in Houston, Texas that was incorporated in Delaware on
November 22, 2013. NOW operates primarily under the DistributionNOW and DNOW brands. NOW is a global distributor of energy
products as well as products for industrial applications through its locations in the United States (*U.S.”), Canada and internationally
which are geographically positioned to serve the energy and industrial markets in approximately 80 countries. Additionally, through
the Company’ s growing Digital NOW® platform, customers can leverage world-class technology across ecommerce, data
management and supply chain optimization applications to solve awide array of complex operational and product sourcing challenges
to assist in maximizing their return on assets. The Company’s energy product offering is consumed throughout all sectors of the
energy industry — from upstream drilling and completion, exploration and production, midstream infrastructure development to
downstream petroleum refining and petrochemicals — as well asin other industries, such as chemical processing, mining, utilities and
renewables. The industrial distribution end markets include engineering and construction firms that perform capital and maintenance
projects for their end user clients. NOW also provides supply chain and materials management solutions to the same markets where
the Company sells products. NOW'’ s supplier network consists of thousands of vendors in approximately 40 countries.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financia information include the accounts of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to the current period financial statement presentation.
These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported results of operations.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-04,
Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848), which provides optional expedients and exceptions to contracts, hedging relationships, and other
transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued because of reference rate reform. Entities that
elect the relief are required to disclose the nature of the optional expedients and exceptions that are adopted and the reasons for the
adoptions. The guidance is effective upon issuance and the expedients and exceptions may be applied prospectively through December
31, 2022. The Company is currently assessing the impact of ASU 2020-04 on its consolidated financial statements but does not expect
the adoption of this standard to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or |ess at the date of purchase.

Fair Value of Financial I nstruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables approximated fair value because of the relatively short
maturity of these instruments. See Note 13 “Derivative Financial Instruments’ for the fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of oilfield and industrial finished goods. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value
and using average cost methods. Allowances for excess and obsolete inventories are determined based on the Company’s historical
usage of inventory on hand aswell asits future expectations. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company reported inventory of
$250 million and $262 million, respectively (net of inventory reserves of $32 million and $39 million, respectively).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for major improvements that extend the lives of property, plant and
equipment are capitalized while minor replacements, maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Disposals are
removed at cost less accumulated depreciation with any resulting gain or loss reflected in the results of operations for the respective
period. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of individual items.

Long-Lived Assets, Including Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

Long-lived assets other than goodwill include property, plant and egquipment, operating right-of-use ("ROU") assets and intangible
assets. The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets other than goodwill for possible impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverahility of these assetsis measured by a
comparison of the carrying amounts to the future undiscounted cash flows the assets are expected to generate. If such review indicates
that the carrying amount of long-lived assets other than goodwill is not recoverable, the carrying amount of such assetsis reduced to
fair value.

In addition to the recoverability assessment, the Company routinely reviews the remaining estimated useful lives of long-lived assets
other than goodwill. If the Company changes the estimated useful life assumption for any asset, the remaining unamortized balanceis
amortized or depreciated over the revised estimated useful life.

The Company conducts goodwill impairment testing annually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, and more frequently on an
interim basis, when an event occurs or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined
below its carrying value. Events or circumstances which could indicate a probable impairment include, but are not limited to, a
significant reduction in worldwide oil and gas prices or drilling; a significant reduction in profitability or cash flow of oil and gas
companies or drilling contractors; a significant reduction in worldwide well completion and remediation activity; a significant
reduction in capital investment by other oilfield service companies; or asignificant increase in worldwide inventories of oil or gas.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level, which is defined as an operating segment or one level
below that constitutes a business for which financial information is available and is regularly reviewed by management. The Company
currently has four reporting units for this purpose — U.S. Energy, U.S. Process Solutions, Canada and International. The Company
tests goodwill for impairment by comparing the fair value of areporting unit to its carrying value. If the carrying amount exceeds the
fair value of areporting unit, an impairment lossis recognized in an amount equal to that excess, but not to exceed the total amount of
goodwill allocated to that reporting unit.

The Company determines the fair value of both goodwill and other long-lived assets primarily using the discounted cash flow method
and in the case of goodwill, amultiples-based market approach for comparable companies when applicable. The starting point for
each reporting unit’s projected cash flow from operations is the detailed annual plan or updated forecast. The detailed planning and
forecasting process takes into consideration a multitude of factorsincluding worldwide rig activity, inflationary forces, pricing
strategies, customer analysis, operational issues, competitor analysis, capital spending requirements, working capital requirements and
customer needs among other items which impact the individual reporting unit projections. Cash flows beyond the specific operating
plans were estimated using aterminal value calculation, which incorporated historical and forecasted financial cyclical trends for each
reporting unit and also considered long-term earnings growth rates. The financial and credit market volatility impacts the fair value
measurement by adjusting the discount rate. The Company utilizes third-party valuation advisors to assist with these valuations. These
analyses include significant judgments as mentioned above, including management’ s short-term and long-term forecast of operating
performance, discount rates based on the weighted average cost of capital, revenue growth rates, profitability margins, capital
expenditures, the timing of future cash flows, and in the case of long-lived assets, the remaining useful life and service potential of the
asset, all of which were classified as level 3 inputs under the fair value hierarchy. The discount rates utilized to value the reporting
units was 13.0% for the year ended December 31, 2021 and were in the range of 11.5% to 12.8% for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency for most of the Company’ s foreign operationsisthe local currency. Certain foreign operations use the U.S.
dollar as the functional currency. For those that have local currency as functional the cumulative effects of trandating the balance
sheet accounts from the functional currency into the U.S. dollar at current exchange rates are included in accumul ated other
comprehensive income (loss). Revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates in effect during the period.

Accordingly, financia statements of these foreign subsidiaries are remeasured to U.S. dollars for consolidation purposes using current
rates of exchange for monetary assets and liabilities and historical rates of exchange for nonmonetary assets and related elements of
expense. Revenue and expense elements are remeasured at rates that approximate the rates in effect on the transaction dates. For all
operations, gains or losses from remeasuring foreign currency transactions into the reporting currency are included in other income
(expense). Net foreign currency transactions were aloss of $1 million, again of $2 million and aloss of $1 million for the years ended
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December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and were included in other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s primary source of revenue is the sale of energy products and an extensive selection of products for industrial
applications based upon purchase orders or contracts with customers. The majority of revenue is recognized at a point in time once the
Company has determined that the customer has obtained control over the product. Control is typically deemed to have been transferred
to the customer when the product is shipped, delivered or picked up by the customer. The Company does not grant extended payment
terms. Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to proper government
authorities. Shipping and handling costs for product shipments occur prior to the customer obtaining control of the goods and are
recorded in cost of products.

The amount of revenue recognized reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for
products sold. Revenue is recorded at the transaction price net of estimates of variable consideration, which may include product
returns, trade discounts and allowances. The Company accrues for variable consideration using the expected value method. Estimates
of variable consideration are included in revenue to the extent that it is probabl e that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur.

Cost of Products

Cost of products includes the cost of inventory sold and related items, such as vendor consideration, inventory allowances,
amortization of intangibles and inbound and outbound freight.

War ehousing, Selling and Administrative Expenses

Warehousing, selling and administrative expenses include branch, distribution center and regional expenses (including costs such as
compensation, benefits and rent), depreciation and corporate general expenses.

Vendor Consideration

The Company receives funds from vendors in the normal course of business, principally as aresult of purchase volumes. Generally,
these vendor funds do not represent the reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred by the Company to sell
the vendor’ s product. Therefore, the Company treats these funds as a reduction of inventory when purchased and once these goods are
sold to third parties the associated amount is credited to cost of products. The Company develops accrual rates for vendor
consideration based on the provisions of the arrangements in place, historical trends, purchases and future expectations. Due to the
complexity and diversity of the individual vendor agreements, the Company performs analyses and reviews historical trends
throughout the year and confirms actual amounts with select vendors to ensure the amounts earned are appropriately recorded.
Amounts accrued throughout the year could be impacted if actual purchase volumes differ from projected annual purchase volumes,
especialy in the case of programs that provide for increased funding when graduated purchase volumes are met.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used to account for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences
between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. Vauation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assetsto
amounts which are more-likely-than-not to be realized.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company grants credit to its customers, which operate primarily in the energy, industrial and manufacturing markets.
Concentrations of credit risk are limited because the Company has a large number of geographically diverse customers, thus spreading
trade credit risk. The Company controls credit risk through credit evaluations, credit limits and monitoring procedures. The Company
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers financial condition and, generally, does not require collateral but may require
letters of credit or prepayments for certain sales. Allowances for doubtful accounts ("AFDA") are established based on an evaluation
of accounts receivable aging, and where applicable, specific reserves on an individual customer basis. With the adoption of
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 326 "Financial Instruments - Credit Losses’, the estimated AFDA reflects the
Company’ s immediate recognition of current expected credit |osses by incorporating the historical loss experience, aswell as current
and future market conditions that are reasonably available. Judgments in the estimate of AFDA include global economic and business
conditions, oil and gas industry and market conditions, customers financial conditions and account receivables past due. Balances that
remain outstanding after the Company has used reasonable collection efforts are written off. No single customer represents more than
10% of the Company’ s revenue.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation expense for the Company’ s stock-based compensation plans is measured using the fair value method required by ASC
Topic 718 “ Compensation—Stock Compensation”. Under this guidance the fair value of the award is measured on the grant date and
amortized to expense using the straight-line method over the shorter of the vesting period or the remaining reguisite service period.
Forfeitures are recognized as they occur.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financia statementsin conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported and contingent amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company periodically evaluatesits
estimates and judgments that are most critical in nature, which are related to allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserves,
impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets, purchase price allocation of acquisitions, contingent consideration, vendor
consideration, stock-based compensation, pension plan obligations and income taxes. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates
such estimates by comparing to historical experience and trends, which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value
of assetsand liabilities.

Contingencies

The Company accrues for costs relating to litigation claims and other contingent matters, when such liabilities become probable and
reasonably estimable. Such estimates may be based on advice from third parties or on management’ s judgment, as appropriate.
Revisions to contingent liabilities are reflected in income in the period in which different facts or information become known or
circumstances change that affect the Company’ s previous judgments with respect to the likelihood or amount of loss. Amounts paid
upon the ultimate resolution of contingent liabilities may be materially different from previous estimates and could require
adjustments to the estimated reserves to be recognized in the period such new information becomes known.

In circumstances where the most likely outcome of a contingency can be reasonably estimated, the Company accrues aliability for
that amount. Where the most likely outcome cannot be estimated, a range of potential losses is established, and, if no one amount in
that range is more likely than others, the low end of the range is accrued.

3. Revenue

Remaining Performance Obligations

Remaining performance obligations represent the transaction price of firm orders for which work has not been performed on contracts
with an original expected duration of more than one year. The Company’ s contracts are predominantly short-term in nature with a
contract term of one year or less. For those contracts, the Company has utilized the practical expedient in ASC Topic 606 exempting
the Company from disclosure of the transaction price alocated to remaining performance obligations when the performance obligation
is part of acontract that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

Receivables

Receivables are recorded when the Company has an unconditional right to consideration.

Contract Assetsand Liabilities

Contract assets primarily consist of retainage amounts held as aform of security by customers until the Company satisfiesits
remaining performance obligations. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, contracts assets were $1 million for both periods, and were
included in receivables, net in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company generally accounts for the incremental costs of obtaining
acontract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have been recognized is
one year or less; however, these expenses are not material.

Contract liabilities primarily consist of deferred revenues recorded when customer payments are received or due in advance of
satisfying performance obligations, including amounts which are refundable, and other accrued customer liabilities. Revenue
recognition is deferred to afuture period until the Company completes its obligations contractually agreed with customers. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, contract liabilities were $27 million and $19 million, respectively, and were included in accrued
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The increase in contract liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2021, was primarily
related to net customer deposits of approximately $20 million, partially offset by recognizing revenue of approximately $12 million
that was deferred as of December 31, 2020.

See Note 15 “Business Segments’ for the disaggregation of revenue by reporting segments. The Company believes this disaggregation
best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.
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4. Receivables, net
Receivables are recorded and carried at the original invoiced amount less an alowance for doubtful accounts.

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts was as follows (in millions):

December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Beginning balance $ 28 $ 16 $ 27
Cumulative effect of accounting change — 6 —
Additions (deductions) charged to expenses 2 9 2
Charge-offs and other D 3 (9
Ending balance $ 25 3 28 $ 16
5. Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment consist of (in millions):
Estimated December 31,
Useful Lives 2021 2020
Information technology assets 1-7 Years $ 48 $ 49
Operating eguipment (9 2-15 Years 129 101
Buildings and land ? 5-35 Years 91 102
Construction in progress 3 1
Total property, plant and equipment 271 253
Less: accumulated depreciation (160) (155)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 111 $ 98

@ Includes finance ROU assets.
@  Land has an indefinite life

Depreciation expense was $21 million, $24 million and $22 million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company continued to rationalize its real estate footprint and sold certain facilities
resulting in anet gain of approximately $3 million offset by an impairment of approximately $2 million related to the held-for-sale
facilitiesin the U.S. reporting segment. These amounts were included in impairment and other charges in the consolidated statements
of operations. As of December 31, 2021, the remaining held-for-sale properties were less than $1 million and were included in prepaid
and other current assetsin the consolidated balance sheets.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, as the result of the recoverability testing of its long-lived assets, the Company recognized $4
million of impairment relating to property, plant and equipment, net in the International reporting segment. These charges were
included in impairment and other chargesin the consolidated statements of operations.

6. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued ligbilities consist of (in millions):

December 31,
2021 2020
Compensation and other related expenses $ 3B $ 27
Contract liabilities 27 19
Taxes (non-income) 12 10
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 15 17
Other 23 22
Totd $ 112 $ 95
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7. Goodwill

Goodwill isidentified by segment as follows (in millions):

United States Canada International Total
Balance at December 31, 2019 @ $ 125 $ 67 $ 53 $ 245
I mpairment (125) (60) (45) (230)
Foreign currency trandlation adjustments — () (8 (15)
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ — 3 — 3 — % —
Additions 67 — — 67
I mpairment — — — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — —
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 67 $ — 3 —  $ 67

(M Net of prior years accumulated impairment of $393 million, $27 million and $54 million in the U.S., Canada and International segments,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $67 million goodwill inits U.S. Process Solutions reporting unit and no goodwill in other
reporting units. The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test during the fourth quarter of 2021 resulting in no
impairment. The calculated fair value of the U.S. Process Solutions reporting unit significantly exceeded its carrying value.

During thefirst quarter of 2020, the Company’s market capitalization declined significantly driven by macroeconomic and
geopolitical conditions including the collapse of ail prices caused by both surplus production and supply aswell as the decrease in
demand caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Therefore, the Company performed an interim goodwill impairment test. Asaresult, for
the quarter ended March 31, 2020 and the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized $230 million goodwill impairment
for both periods which was included in impairment and other chargesin the consolidated statements of operations. The Company had
no goodwill as of December 31, 2020.

The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test during the fourth quarter of 2019 and determined the fair value of the
Canada and International reporting units was below their carrying value. As aresult, the Company recognized $81 million of goodwill
impairment which was included in impairment and other charges in the consolidated statements of operations. The impairment was
primarily the result of actual declinesin customer and rig activity and downward revisions to forecasted rig and customer spend
activity occurring in the fourth quarter of 2019.

No tax benefit was reported on the Company’ s goodwill impairment for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, as the goodwill
impairment was either nondeductible for tax purposes or was subject to a valuation allowance.

8. Intangibles, net

Identified intangible assets with determinable lives consist primarily of customer relationships, trade names, trademarks and patents,
and non-compete agreements acquired in acquisitions, and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets that are fully amortized are removed from the disclosures.

During the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company recognized $2 million of impairment in the U.S. reporting segment for certain
customer relationship intangible assets due to decline in customer activities. Such impairment was included in impairment and other
charges in the consolidated statements of operations.

During thefirst quarter of 2020, the results of the Company's test for impairment of goodwill and the other negative market indicators
described in Note 7 “Goodwill” were atriggering event that indicated that its long-lived assets, including property, plant and
equipment, operating ROU assets and intangible assets, were possibly impaired. As aresult, for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 and
the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized $62 million and $22 million of impairment for intangible assetsin the
U.S. and International reporting segments, respectively. Such impairment was included in impairment and other chargesin the
consolidated statements of operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2019, the Company made strategic decisions to discontinue the use of certain acquired trade namesin
order to eliminate branding dilution in the market and align the Company’ s marketing around its DNOW brands. As of December 31,
2019, the Company completed the disposals of these trade names by abandonment and recognized $34 million and $4 million of
impairment for intangible assetsin the U.S. and International reporting segments, respectively. Such impairment wasincluded in
impairment and other charges in the consolidated statements of operations, representing the remaining carrying values of these
specifically acquired intangible assets.
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As of December 31, 2021, identified intangible assets by major classification consist of the following (in millions):

Accumulated Net Book
Gross Amortization Value
December 31, 2021:
Customer relationships 9 Q) 8
Other 1 — 1
Total identified intangibles $ 10 $ @ $ 9

As of December 31, 2020, identified intangible assets were less than $1 million. Amortization expense was $2 million, $4 million and
$19 million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. The following table represents the total estimated
amortization of intangible assets for the five succeeding years (in millions):

For the Year Ending December 31, Estimated Amortization Expense
2022 $
2023
2024
2025
2026

PR R R

9. Income Taxes
The domestic and foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
United States $ 9 $ (289) $ (12)
Foreign 21 (141) (81)
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 12 3 (430) $ (93)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for 2021, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

U.S. Federa:
Current $ — % — $ _
Deferred (1) — _

(1) — —

U.S. State:
Current — —
Deferred — — —

=

Foreign:
Current
Deferred

~Nlolk N
b
WD
N N’

b~

AlwN 01

N—r

Income tax provision (benefit) $
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The reconciliation between the Company’ s effective tax rate on income (loss) from continuing operations and the statutory tax rateis
asfollows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Income tax provision (benefit) at federal statutory rate $ 3 % (90) $ (29)
Foreign tax rate differential 2 1 2
State income tax provision (benefit), net of federal benefit (@D} (4) —
Nondeductible expenses — 2 3
Investment in subsidiaries — — 9
Nondeductible goodwill impairment — 25 16
Change in valuation allowance 2 61 9
Other 1 2 2

Income tax provision (benefit) $ 7 9 3 $ 4
Effective tax rate 54.8% 0.6% (4.9)%

In general, the effective tax rate differs from the U.S. statutory rate due to recurring items, such as differing tax rates on income earned
in foreign jurisdictions, nondeductible expenses, state income taxes and the change in valuation allowance recorded against deferred
tax assets. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the effective tax rate was primarily driven by the low level of consolidated pre-tax
income and the recognition of tax expense from earnings in Canada, which was not able to be offset by benefits recognized on losses
in other jurisdictions. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the effective tax rate was impacted by nondeductible goodwill
impairment. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the effective tax rate was also impacted by nondeductible goodwill impairment
and recognition of deferred taxes related to outside basis differences in subsidiaries classified as held for sale.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows (in millions):

December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Allowances and operating liabilities $ 6 $ 3 ¢ 5
Net operating loss carryforwards 92 79 56
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 7 7 7
Allowance for doubtful accounts 4 5 2
Inventory reserve 10 13 9
Stock-based compensation 5 6 8
Intangible assets 57 66 28
Assets held-for-sale — — 4
Investment in subsidiaries — — 9
Capital loss carryforward 10 11 —
Book over tax depreciation 5 5 4
Other 5 5 4
Total deferred tax assets $ 201 $ 200 $ 136
Deferred tax liabilities:
Total deferred tax liabilities $ — % — 3 —
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 201 200 136
Valuation allowance (201) (199) (138)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ — $ 1 % (2

The Company records a valuation allowance when it is more-likely-than-not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable income of the
appropriate character in the future and in the appropriate taxing jurisdictions. If the Company was to determine that it would be able to
realize the deferred tax assetsin the future in excess of their net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to the
valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

The Company remainsin athree year cumulative loss position at the end of 2021. As aresult, management believesthat it is not
more-likely-than-not that the Company would be able to realize the benefits of its deferred tax assetsin the U.S., Canada and other
foreign jurisdictions and accordingly recognized a valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2021. The change during the
year in the valuation allowance was nil in the U.S. and $2 million in other foreign jurisdictions.
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There are no uncertain tax positions as of any of the periods presented. To the extent penalties and interest would be assessed on any
underpayment of income tax, such accrued amounts are classified as a component of income tax provision (benefit) in the financial
statements consistent with the Company’ s policy. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company did not record any income tax
expense for interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S., various states and foreign jurisdictions. The Company has significant operations in the
U.S. and Canada and to alesser extent in various other international jurisdictions. Tax years that remain subject to examination vary
by legal entity but are generally open in the U.S. for the tax years ending after 2017 and outside the U.S. for the tax years ending after
2015.

In the U.S., the Company has $366 million of federal net operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2021, of which $218
million will expire between 2036 through 2037 and $148 million have no expiration. The potential associated tax benefit of $77
million has been reduced by a $77 million valuation allowance. The Company has $200 million of state net operating loss
carryforwards as of December 31, 2021, which will expire between 2022 through 2041, with the majority expiring after 2034. The
potential tax benefit of $11 million has been reduced by a $11 million valuation allowance. Outside the U.S., the Company has $19
million of net operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2021, of which $13 million have no expiration and $6 million will
expire between 2022 and 2031. The potential tax benefit of $4 million has been reduced by a $4 million valuation allowance. In
addition to areduction in future income tax expense, future income tax payments will also be reduced in the event the Company
ultimately realizes the benefit of these net operating losses. As of December 31, 2021, the Company has $7 million of excessforeign
tax creditsin the U.S. The foreign tax credits will expire between 2024 and 2027. The potential tax benefit of $7 million has been
reduced by a$7 million valuation alowance. In addition to future income tax expense, future income tax payments will also be
reduced in the event the Company ultimately realizes the benefit of these foreign tax credits.

As of December 31, 2021, the amount of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries was approximately $1 million. The Company
has not recorded deferred income taxes on undistributed foreign earnings that it considers to be indefinitely reinvested. The Company
makes a determination each period whether to indefinitely reinvest these earnings. If, as aresult of these reassessments, the Company
distributes these earnings in the future, additional tax liabilities may result, offset by any available foreign tax credits. The Company
has not recorded deferred income taxes on other outside basis differences inherent in the Company’ s foreign subsidiaries that it
considers to be indefinitely reinvested, as such determination is not practicable.

Because of the number of tax jurisdictions in which the Company operates, its effective tax rate can fluctuate as operations and the
local country tax rates fluctuate. The Company is also subject to audits by federal, state and foreign jurisdictions which may result in
proposed assessments. The Company’ s future tax provision will reflect any favorable or unfavorable adjustments to its estimated tax
liabilities when resolved. The Company is unable to predict the outcome of these matters. However, the Company believes that none
of these matters will have a material adverse effect on the results of operations or financia position of the Company.

10. Debt

On December 14, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to its existing senior secured revolving credit facility with a
syndicate of lenders with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, serving as the administrative agent (as amended, the “Credit
Facility”).

Effective with the amendment, the Credit Facility provides for a $500 million global revolving credit facility, of which up to $50
million is available for the Company’ s Canadian subsidiaries, and the maturity is extended to December 14, 2026. The Company has
the right, subject to certain conditions, to increase the aggregate principal amount of commitments under the credit facility by $250
million. The Credit Facility also provides aletter of credit sub-facility of $25 million. The obligations under the Credit Facility are
secured by substantially all the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Credit Facility contains customary covenants,
representations and warranties and events of default. The Company will be required to maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of at
least 1.00:1.00 as of the end of each fiscal quarter if excess availability under the Credit Facility falls below the greater of 10% of the
borrowing base or $40 million.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility will bear an interest rate at the Company’s option, at (i) the base rate plus an applicable margin
based on the Company’ s fixed charge coverage ratio (and if applicable, the Company’ s leverage ratio); or (ii) the greater of LIBOR for
the applicableinterest period and zero, plus an applicable margin based on the Company’s fixed charge coverage ratio (and if
applicable, the Company’s leverage ratio). As part of the amendment, when the fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in the Credit
Facility) islessthan or equal to 1.50 to 1.00, the applicable rate for borrowings of base rate loans and Eurocurrency rate loans
decreases by 0.250%. The Credit Facility includes a commitment fee on the unused portion of commitments that ranges from 25 to
37.5 basis points. Commitment fees incurred during the period were included in other income (expense) in the consolidated statements
of operations.
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Availability under the Credit Facility is determined by aborrowing base comprised of eligible receivables, eligible inventory and
certain pledged depositsin the U.S and Canada. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had no borrowings against the Credit Facility
and had approximately $359 million in availability (as defined in the Credit Facility) resulting in the excess availability (as defined in
the Credit Facility) of 99% subject to certain limitations. The Company is not obligated to pay back borrowings against the current
Credit Facility until the expiration date.

The Company issued $5 million in letters of credit under the Credit Facility primarily for casualty insurance expiring in June 2022.

11. Leases

The Company leases certain facilities, vehicles and equipment. The Company determines if an arrangement contains a lease at
contract inception and recognizes ROU assets and |ease liabilities for leases with terms greater than twelve months. Leases with an
initial term of twelve months or less are accounted for as short-term leases and are not recognized in the balance sheet. Operating
fixed |ease expenses and finance |ease depreciation expense are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease
payments which cannot be determined at the lease commencement date, such as reimbursement of lessor expenses, were not included
in the ROU assets or lease liabilities.

Many leases include both |ease and non-lease components which are primarily related to management services provided by lessors for
the underlying assets. The Company elected the practical expedient to account for lease and non-lease components as asingle lease
component for all leases as well as the practical expedient that allows the Company to carry forward the historical lease
classifications. For all new and modified leases entered into after the adoption of ASC 842, the Company reassesses the lease
classification and lease term on the effective date of modification. Lease term includes renewal periodsif the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise any renewal options per the lease contract. The Company’ s leases do not contain any material residual value
guarantees or restrictive covenants. The Company subleases certain real estate to third parties and recognized sublease income of
approximately $2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Asmost leases do not have readily determinable implicit rates, the Company estimates the incremental borrowing rates based on
prevailing financial market conditions, comparable companies and credit analysis and management judgments to determine the present
values of its lease payments. The Company also applies the portfolio approach to account for leases with similar terms. As of
December 31, 2021, the weighted-average remaining lease terms were approximately 3 years for operating leases and 7 years for
finance leases, and the weighted-average discount rates were 5.9% for operating leases and 5.1% for finance leases.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized approximately $6 million of impairment for ROU assetsin the U.S.
and Canada reporting segments primarily relating to exits of certain leased facilities. For the year ended December 31, 2020, asthe
result of the recoverability testing of its long-lived assets, the Company recognized $2 million impairment for operating ROU assetsin
the U.S. and International reporting segments which was included in impairment and other charges in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Supplemental balance sheet information is as follows (in millions):

December 31,
Classification 2021 2020
Assets
Operating Other assets $ 27 $ 41
Finance Property, plant and equipment, net 5 10
Total ROU assets $ 32 3 51
Liabilities
Current
Operating Accrued liabilities $ 15 $ 17
Finance Other current liabilities 4 5
Long-term
Operating L ong-term operating lease liabilities 17 25
Finance Other long-term liabilities 3 6
Total lease liabilities $ 39 3 53
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Components of lease expenseisasfollows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

Classification 2021 2020 2019
Operating lease cost ¥ Warehousing, selling and administrative $ 22 $ 26 $ 31
Finance lease ROU asset depreciation @  Warehousing, selling and administrative 5 7 5
Short-term lease cost Warehousing, selling and administrative 5 6 7
Variable lease cost Warehousing, selling and administrative 2 2 3

@ Included in other, net adjustment to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

@ Included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statement of cash flows. Interest on finance lease liabilitiesis less than $1
million.

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 23 $ 27 $ 31
Financing cash flows from finance leases @ 6 7 5
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabilities
Operating $ 12 % 10 $ 17
Finance — 2 20
@ Interest payments from finance lease liabilities is less than $1 million.
Maturity of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021 were as follows (in millions):
Operating Lease Finance L ease
2022 $ 18 $ 4
2023 1 2
2024 4 —
2025 1 —
2026 1 —
Thereafter 1 2
Total future lease payments 36 8
Less: interest (4) (1)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 32 3 7

The Company assumed leases with certain former owners of acquired entities for premises utilized by the acquired entitiesin the
performance of their operations. Most of these leases are renewable at the Company’ s option and contain clauses for payment of real
estate taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating expenses of the properties. The aggregated rental expense was
approximately $2 million for each year ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. Total future commitments related to
these acquired operating leases is approximately $2 million through 2023.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company isinvolved in various claims, regulatory agency audits and pending or threatened legal actions involving avariety of
matters. The Company has also assessed the potential for additional losses above the amounts accrued as well as potential losses for
matters that are not probable but are reasonably possible. The total potential loss on these matters cannot be determined; however, in
the Company’ s opinion, any ultimate liability, to the extent not otherwise recorded or accrued for, will not materially affect the
Company’s financial position, cash flow or results of operations. These estimated liabilities are based on the Company’ s assessment of
the nature of these matters, their progress toward resolution, the advice of legal counsel and outside experts as well as management’s
intention and experience.

The Company’ s businessis affected both directly and indirectly by governmental laws and regulations relating to the oilfield service
industry in general, aswell as by environmental and safety regulations that specifically apply to the Company’s business. Although
the Company has not incurred material costsin connection with its compliance with such laws, there can be no assurance that other
developments, such as new environmental laws, regulations and enforcement policies hereunder may not result in additional, presently
unquantifiable, costs or liabilities to the Company. The Company does not accrue for contingent losses that, in itsjudgment, are
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considered to be reasonably possible, but not probable. Estimating reasonably possible losses also requires the analysis of multiple
possible outcomes that often depend on judgments about potential actions by third parties.

The Company maintains credit arrangements with several banks providing for standby letters of credit, including bid and performance
bonds, and other bonding requirements. As of December 31, 2021, the Company was contingently liable for approximately $11
million of outstanding standby letters of credit and surety bonds. The Company does not believe, based on historical experience and
information currently available, that it is probable that any amounts will be required to be paid.

13. Derivative Financial I nstruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The Company has entered into certain financial
derivative instruments to manage the foreign currency exchange rate risk.

The derivative financial instruments the Company has entered into are forward exchange contracts which have terms of less than one
year to economically hedge foreign currency exchange rate risk on recognized nonfunctional currency monetary accounts. The
purpose of the Company’ s foreign currency hedging activities is to economically hedge the Company’ srisk from changesin the fair
value of nonfunctional currency denominated monetary accounts.

The Company records all derivative financial instruments at their fair value in its consolidated balance sheets. None of the derivative
financial instruments that the Company holds are designated as either afair value hedge or cash flow hedge and the gain or loss on the
derivative instrument is recorded in earnings. The Company has determined that the fair value of its derivative financial instruments
are computed using level 2 inputs (inputs other than quoted pricesin active markets for identical assets and liabilitiesthat are
observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability) in the fair value hierarchy as the fair value
is based on publicly available foreign exchange rates at each financial reporting date. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the fair
value of the Company’ s foreign currency forward contracts totaled an asset of less than $1 million and a liability of lessthan $1
million in both periods. The Company’s foreign currency forward contract assets were included in prepaid and other current assetsin
the consolidated balance sheets and the Company’ s foreign currency forward contract liabilities were included in other current
ligbilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded a loss of $1 million, gain of $1 million and loss of $1
million, respectively, related to changesin fair value. All gains and losses were included in other income (expense) in the consolidated
statements of operations. The notional principal associated with those contracts was $9 million, $8 million and $15 million as of
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Asof December 31, 2021, the Company’s financial instruments do not contain any credit-risk-related or other contingent features that
could cause accelerated payments when the Company’ s financial instruments are in net liability positions. The Company does not use
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (L 0ss)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows (in millions):

Foreign Currency
Trandation Adjustments

Balance at December 31, 2020 $ (145)
Other comprehensive loss (2
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ (147)

The Company’ s reporting currency isthe U.S. dollar. A mgjority of the Company’sinternational entitiesin which there is a substantial
investment have the local currency as their functional currency. As aresult, foreign currency trandation adjustments resulting from the
process of translating the entities’ financial statementsinto the reporting currency are reported in other comprehensive income (10ss)

in accordance with ASC Topic 830 “Foreign Currency Matters’.

15. Business Segments

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had four operating segments— U.S. Energy, U.S. Process Solutions, Canada and
International. Prior to 2020, the Company had five reporting units— U.S. Energy, U.S. Supply Chain, U.S. Process Solutions, Canada
and International. The Company combined two operating segments in 2020 within the U.S. reportable segment, U.S. Energy and U.S.
Supply Chain, to align with updates to the operational and management structure. Each of these two reporting units had zero goodwill
prior to and after the combination. These operating segments were determined based primarily on the geographical markets and
secondarily on the distribution channel of the products and services offered. Operating segments are defined as components of an
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enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in
deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the
chief operating decision maker. The Company’s chief operating decision maker directs the allocation of resources to operating
segments based on various metrics of each respective operating segment. The allocation of resources across the operating segmentsis
dependent upon, among other factors, the operating segment’ s historical or future expected operating margins; the operating segment’s
historical or future expected return on capital; outlook within a specific market; opportunities to grow profitability; new products or
new customer accounts; confidence in management; and competitive landscape and intensity.

The Company has determined that there are three reportable segments: (1) United States, (2) Canada and (3) International. The U.S.
Energy and U.S. Process Solutions operating segments were not separately reported as they exhibit similar long term economic
characteristics, the nature of the products offered are similar, purchase many identical products from outside vendors, have similar
customers, sell products directly to end-users and operate in similar regulatory environments. They have been aggregated into the
United States reportable segment.

United States

The Company has approximately 115 locations in the U.S., which are geographically positioned to serve the upstream, midstream and
downstream energy and industrial markets.

Canada

The Company has a network of approximately 40 locations in the Canadian oilfield, predominantly in the ail rich provinces of
Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and other targeted locations across the country. The Company’ s Canadian segment primarily serves
the energy exploration, production, drilling and midstream business.

International

The Company operates in approximately 20 countries and serves the needs of itsinternational customers from approximately 25
locations outside of the U.S. and Canada, all of which are strategically located in major oil and gas development areas. The
Company’s International segment primarily serves the energy exploration, production and drilling business.

The following table presents financial information for each of the Company’ s reportable segments as of and for the year ended
December 31 (in millions):

United States Canada International Total
2021
Revenue $ 1,163 $ 249 % 220 % 1,632
Operating profit (10ss) (8 17 — 9
Impairment and other charges 6 1 — 7
Depreciation and amortization 20 2 1 23
Property, plant and equipment, net 86 11 14 111
Total assets 787 168 149 1,104
2020
Revenue $ 1153 $ 209 ¢ 257  $ 1,619
Operating loss (281) (60) (79) (420)
Impairment and other charges 189 60 72 321
Depreciation and amortization 23 2 3 28
Property, plant and equipment, net 70 12 16 98
Total assets @ 714 141 153 1,008
2019
Revenue $ 2240 $ 319 $ 392 % 2,951
Operating loss (6) (29 (58) (83)
Impairment and other charges 43 27 58 128
Depreciation and amortization 30 2 9 41
Property, plant and equipment, net 84 14 22 120
Total assets @ 1,034 259 298 1,591

(@ Beginning in 2020, due to asset impairments and declining market conditions, reporting segment assets excluded inter-segment
adjustments that were eliminated in the total assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Prior periods have been reclassified to conform
with the current period presentation.
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The following table presents a comparison of the approximate sales mix in the principal product categories (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Product Category

Drilling and production $ 423 % 428 % 711

Pipe 277 228 473

Valves 317 326 608

Fittings and flanges 285 287 524

Mill tool, MRO, safety and other 330 350 635
Tota $ 1632 $ 1619 $ 2,951

16. Earnings (L oss) Per Share (“EPS’)

Basic EPSis based on net income (loss) attributable to the Company’s earnings and is calculated based upon the daily weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the periods presented. Also, this calculation includes fully vested stock and unit
awards that have not yet been issued as common stock. Diluted EPS includes the above, plus unvested stock, unit or option awards
granted and vested unexercised stock options, but only to the extent these instruments dilute earnings (loss) per share.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, atotal of approximately 4 million, 6 million and 8 million, respectively, of
potentially dilutive shares were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share due to their antidilutive effect or due to
the Company recognizing a net loss for the period.

Basic and diluted EPS are as follows (in millions, except share data):

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019

Numerator:

Net income (loss) attributable to the Company's stockholders $ 5 % (427 $ (97)
Denominator:

Weighted average basic common shares outstanding 110,403,853 109,406,079 108,779,891

Effect of dilutive securities 91,088 — —

Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 110,494,941 109,406,079 108,779,891
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to the Company's stockholders:

Basic $ 005 $ (391) $ (0.89)

Diluted $ 005 $ (391) $ (0.89)

Under ASC Topic 260, “Earnings Per Share,” the two-class method requires a portion of net income attributable to the Company to be
allocated to participating securities, which are unvested awards of share-based payments with non-forfeitable rights to receive
dividends or dividend equivalents, if declared. Net lossis not allocated to nonvested awardsin periods the Company determines that
those shares are not obligated to participate in losses. For the periods that the Company recognized net income, net income attributable
to the Company allocated to these participating securities was excluded from net income attributable to the Company’ s stockholdersin
the numerator of the earnings per share computation.

17. Stock-based Compensation and Outstanding Awar ds

Under the terms of the NOW Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), 16 million shares of the Company’ s common stock were
authorized for grant to employees, non-employee directors and other persons. The Plan provides for the grant of stock options,
restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, phantom shares and performance stock awards.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 totaled $8 million, $6 million
and $13 million, respectively. The tax effected benefit for share-based compensation arrangements was $2 million, $1 million, and $3
million for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Unvested stocks and awards associated with certain
management employees who retired in 2020 were allowed to continue to vest after retirement for a period |less than one year during
the term in which such employees served as consultants to the Company. The Company accounted for this change asa Type |l
modification under ASC Topic 718 since the expectation of the award vesting changed from improbable to probable, resulting in a
reduction of stock-based compensation expense based on the modification-date fair value for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Each of the stock-based compensation arrangements are discussed below.

Stock Options

Stock option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant.
Stock option awards generally have either a 7-year or a 10-year contractual term and vest over a 3-year period from the grant date on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, in-substance,
multiple awards. The grant-date fair value of stock options is determined using the Black-Scholes framework. Additionally, the
Company’s stock options provide for full vesting of unvested outstanding options, in the event of a change of control of the Company
and a change in the holder’ s responsibilities following a change in control of the Company.

For the stock options granted in 2021, 2020 and 2019, the fair value of each option award was estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes framework that uses the assumptions noted in the table below. The expected volatility was based on the implied
volatility on the Company’s stock, historical volatility of the Company’s stock and the historical volatility of other, similar companies.
Therisk-free rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for the period consistent with the expected
term. The expected dividends were based on the Company’ s history and expectation of dividend payouts. The expected term was
based on the average of the vesting period and contractual term:

December 31,
2021 2020 2019
Valuation Assumptions:

Expected volatility 61.3% 43.7% 43.7%

Risk-free interest rate 0.5% 1.4% 2.5%

Expected dividends (per share) $ — % —  $ —

Expected term (in years) 4.5 45 45

The following table summarizes award activity for stock options:
Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual Agoregate
Shares Exercise Term Intrinsic Value

Stock Options (in thousands) Price (in years) (in millions)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2020 4386 $ 17.93
Granted 750 10.26
Forfeited and expired (1,208) 23.81
Exercised (314) 9.88
Other adjustment (18) 26.16
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 35% $ 15.02 34 $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2021 23719 % 17.39 23 % —

The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $5.03,
$3.59 and $6.02, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
was less than $1 million. As of December 31, 2021, unrecognized compensation cost related to stock option awards was
approximately $4 million, which is expected to be recognized over aweighted average period of 1.7 years. Cash received from
exercises of stock options was $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Restricted Stock Awards, Restricted Stock Units and Phantom Shares (“RSAsand RSUS’)

Restricted stock generally cliff vests after 1 or 3 years. The grant-date fair value of RSA and RSU grants is determined using the
closing quoted market price on the grant date. Additionally, the Company’s RSA and RSU agreements provide for full vesting of
RSAs and RSUsin the event of a change of control of the Company and a change in the holder’ s responsibilities following a change in
control of the Company.
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The following table summarizes award activity for RSAs and RSUs:

Weighted-
Average
Shares Grant-Date
RSAs/ RSUs (in thousands) Fair Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2020 634 $ 10.25
Granted 430 10.31
Vested @ (281) 8.76
Forfeited (42) 1143
Nonvested as of December 31, 2021 741 % 10.79

(O 54 thousand shares were withheld and retired from the vesting of shares to employees to satisfy minimum tax withholding.

The weighted average grant-date fair value was $10.31, $8.78 and $13.42 for RSAs and RSUs granted for the years ended December
31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, unrecognized compensation cost related to RSAs and RSUs was $4
million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.4 year. The total vest-date fair value of shares vested
for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $3 million, $4 million, and $12 million, respectively.

Performance Stock Awards (“ PSAS")

PSAs generally have a 3-year vesting period from the grant date and vest at the end of the vesting period with potential payouts
varying from zero for performance below the threshold performance metric to 200% of the target award PSAs for performance above
the maximum performance metric. The grant-date fair value of market-condition PSA grantsis determined using a Monte Carlo
simulation probabilistic model. The grant-date fair value of performance-condition PSA grants is determined using the closing quoted
market price on the grant date. Additionally, the Company’ s performance award agreements provide for full vesting of PSAs at the
target level in the event of achange of control of the Company and a change in the holder’ s responsibilities following a change in
control of the Company.

The Company granted PSAs to senior management employees whereby the PSAs can be earned based on performance against
established metrics over athree-year performance period. The PSAs are divided into three independent parts that are subject to
separate performance metrics: (i) one-half of the PSAs have a Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) metric, (ii) one-quarter of the PSAs
have an EBITDA metric, and (iii) one-quarter of the PSAs have a Return on Capital Employed (“ROCE”) metric.

Performance against the TSR metric is determined by comparing the performance of the Company’s TSR with the TSR performance
of designated peer companies for the three-year performance period. Performance against the EBITDA metric is determined by
comparing the performance of the Company’s actual EBITDA average for each of the three-years of the performance period against
the EBITDA metrics set by the Company’ s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Performance against the ROCE
metric is determined by comparing the performance of the Company’s actual ROCE average for each of the three-years of the
performance period against the ROCE metrics set by the Company’ s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

The following table summarizes award activity for performance stock awards:

Weighted-
Average
Shares Grant-Date
PSAs (in thousands) Fair Value
Nonvested as of December 31, 2020 315 $ 12.53
Granted 490 13.08
Vested @ (94) 10.52
Forfeited (42) 10.32
Nonvested as of December 31, 2021 669 $ 13.35

(@ 28 thousand shares were withheld and retired from the vesting of shares to employees to satisfy minimum tax withholding.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of PSAs granted for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $13.08,
$12.12 and $17.69 respectively. As of December 31, 2021, unrecognized compensation cost related to PSAswas $4 million, which is
expected to be recognized over aweighted average period of 1.7 years. The total vest-date fair value of PSAs vested for the year
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $1 million, less than $1 million, and $2 million, respectively.
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18. Employee Benefit Plans
At December 31, 2021, the Company had approximately 2,350 employees, of which approximately 100 were temporary employees.

Benefit plans

The Company has benefit plans covering substantially all of its employees. Defined contribution benefit plans cover most of the U.S.
and Canadian employees, and benefits are based on years of service and a percentage of current earnings. For the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, employer contributions for defined contribution plans were $1 million, $5 million and $13
million, respectively, and all funding is current.

The Company has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan (the “NQDC Plan”) for certain members of senior management. NQDC
Plan assets are invested in mutual funds held in a*“rabbi trust,” which is restricted for payment to participants of the NQDC Plan. Such
equity securities held in arabbi trust are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date (Level 1 within the fair value
hierarchy) and were included in other assets, with the corresponding liability included in other long-term liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

As of December 31, 2021, the Company sponsors two defined benefit plansin the United Kingdom under which accrual of pension
benefits have ceased. Plan member benefits that have previously been accrued are indexed in line with inflation during the period up
to retirement in order to protect their purchasing power. During 2020, the Company completed a lump-sum window in one plan,
which allowed participants to elect a one-time voluntary lump sum payment in lieu of future pension payments. As aresult of the
lump-sum transaction, the Company recognized a settlement charge of approximately $3 million in other income (expense) in its
consolidated statement of operations. For the remaining participants who did not elect the lump-sum distribution, the Company
entered into a buy-in annuity contract in 2020, which is expected to transfer the remaining liability to the insurance provider when the
remaining buy-out contract provisions are completed. In connection with these transactions, the Company made a voluntary cash
contribution of $3 million in 2020.

Net periodic benefit cost for the Company’ s defined benefit plans aggregated less than $1 million, $6 million and less than $1 million
for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and were included in other income (expense) in the consolidated
statement of operations. Actuarial loss during 2020 was primarily attributable to the de-risking of the Company’s defined benefit plans
including the lump-sum settlement and the purchase of the buy-in annuity contract. The Company immediately recognizes actuarial
gains and losses in other income (expense). These gains and losses are generally measured annually and will normally be recorded in
the fourth quarter, unless an earlier remeasurement is required. Should actual experience differ from actuarial assumptions, the
projected pension benefit obligation and net pension cost would be affected in future years.

The change in benefit obligation, plan assets and the funded status of the defined benefit pension plans in the United Kingdom using a
measurement date of December 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows (in millions):

Pension Benefits

At year end 2021 2020
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 9 % 11
Actuarial loss (gain) 1 6
Plan settlements (2 (8
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 8 $ 9
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 11 $ 16
Company contributions — 3
Plan settlements (2 (8
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 9 % 11
Funded status 1 2
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $ 8 $ 9

The net asset is presented within other assetsin the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company estimates income or expense related to its pension and postretirement plans based on actuarial assumptions, including
assumptions regarding discount rates and expected returns on plan assets, adjusted for current period actuarial gains and losses.
Assumed long-term rates of return on plan assets and discount rates vary for the different plans according to the local economic
conditions.
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The assumption rates used for benefit obligations are as follows:

December 31,
2021 2020
1.20% -
Discount rate: 1.80% 0.70% - 1.20%
The assumption rates used for net periodic benefit costs are as follows:
December 31,
2021 2020 2019

0.70% - 2.00% -
Discount rate; 1.20% 2.10% 2.65% - 2.90%

0.70% - 2.54% -
Expected return on assets: 1.78% 3.03% 3.02% - 3.62%

In determining the overall expected long-term rate of return for plan assets, the Company takes into consideration the historical
experience as well as future expectations of the asset mix involved. As different investments yield different returns, each asset
category is reviewed individually and then weighted for significance in relation to the total portfolio. In the plan that purchased the
annuity contract, the long-term rate of return is equal to the discount rate used to value the obligation.

Both plans have plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligations. The Company expects to pay future benefit amounts on its
defined benefit plans of less than $1 million for each of the next five years and in the aggregate $1 million for the five years thereafter.
The Company does not expect to contribute to its defined benefit pension plansin 2022.

The Company and its investment advisers collaboratively reviewed market opportunities using historic and statistical data, aswell as
the actuarial valuation reports for the plans, to ensure that the levels of acceptable return and risk are well-defined and monitored.
Currently, the Company’ s management believes that there are no significant concentrations of risk associated with plan assets.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the plan’s assets carried at fair value (in millions):

Fair Value M easurements

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3®

December 31, 2021

Annuity contract $ 5% — $ — $ 5

Other 4 1 3 —

Total fair value measurements $ 9% 19 3% 5
December 31, 2020:

Annuity contract 6 — — 6

Other 5 1 4 —

Total fair value measurements $ 11 $ 18 4 % 6

@ Transfers of $6 million into Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy consist of the buy-in annuity contract entered into during
2020. Fair value is estimated by adjusting the premium paid by movementsin gilt yields during the reporting period.

19. Transactions

Acquisitions

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company completed two acquisitions for an aggregate purchase price consideration of
approximately $119 million. The aggregate purchase price was comprised of $96 million of cash, subject to working capital
adjustments, and an estimated $23 million of contingent consideration if certain financial and profitability thresholds are achieved
following the closing of the transactions. One acquisition has a maximum contingent payment of approximately $6 million based on a
3.25-year earn-out period. The other acquisition has no maximum payment based on a 1-year earn-out period for which the
undiscounted estimated range of outcomes was $0 to $45 million. These acquisitions primarily expanded the Company’s offering in
the U.S. to provide the rental, sale and service of surface-mounted horizontal pumping systems and horizonta jet pumping systems, as
well as, to provide engineering and construction services. The Company has included the financial results of the acquisitionsin its
consolidated financial statements from the date of each acquisition.

Thefair value of acquisition-related contingent consideration liabilities was determined using the Monte Carlo simulation based on the
Company's estimated future cash flow projections, the probability of achievement and the estimated discount rates, all of which were
classified aslevel 3 inputsunder the fair value hierarchy. For the year ended December 31, 2021, as aresult of the timing of the earn-
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out periods, results to date and the remaining forecasts for the periods, the Company reduced the contingent consideration liabilities by
approximately $10 million which was recognized as income in other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations.
The fair value of contingent consideration as of December 31, 2021 was $13 million using a discount rate of 14% and was included in
other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in business conditions or other events could significantly change
the level 3 inputs, and therefore could result in material changesto the fair value of the contingent consideration.

The Company performed its preliminary valuations as of the applicable acquisition dates of the acquired net assets and recognized
estimated goodwill of $67 million and intangible assets of $11 million in the U.S. segment, which are subject to change. If additional
information is obtained about these assets and liabilities within the measurement period (not to exceed one year from the date of
acquisition), the Company will refine its estimate of fair value to allocate the purchase price more accurately; any such revisions are
not expected to be significant.

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation detail (in millions):

Asinitially reported

Consideration transferred:

Cash $ 96
Estimated fair value of contingent consideration 23
Net purchase price $ 119
Fair value of net assets acquired:

Current assets other than cash $ 7
Property, plant and equipment 36
Customer relationships and other intangibles () 11
Other assets and liabilities, net (2
Total fair value of net assets acquired $ 52
Goodwill @ $ 67

@ Intangible assets acquired are amortized over a 9-year weighted average period.

@ The amount of goodwill represents the excess of its purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill includes the
expected benefit that the Company believes will result from combining its operations with those of the businesses acquired. The amount
of goodwill expected to be deductible for income tax purposesis approximately $54 million, subject to changesin the fair value of
contingent consideration liability subsegquent to the acquisition date.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company completed two acquisitions for a net purchase price consideration of
approximately $8 million cash. These acquisitions expand NOW’ s market in the U.S. The Company completed its valuations as of the
acquisition date of the acquired net assets and recognized goodwill of $6 million and intangible assets of $2 million in the United
States segment. The full amount of goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. Acquisition-related
costs were less than $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2019.

The Company has not presented supplemental pro formainformation because the acquired operations did not materially impact the
Company’ s consolidated operating results.

Divestitures

As of December 31, 2019, as aresult of strategic review of its assets, the Company decided to commit to a plan to divest a business
that is primarily in the United States segment selling cutting tools to the aerospace and automotive markets. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the carrying value of the net assets held-for-sale was compared to the estimated fair value resulting in a $9
million impairment which was included in impairment and other charges in the consolidated statements of operations and the
remaining $34 million of assets and $6 million of liabilities were classified as held-for-sale in the consolidated balance sheets. In the
first quarter of 2020, the Company completed the sale of its held-for-sale business as of year-end 2019.

During the fourth quarter of 2020, the Company completed the sale of a business that sells lighting solutions locally in the United
Kingdom. Neither divestiture of business qualified to be a discontinued operation asit did not represent a strategic shift that would
have a major effect on the Company’s operations and financial results. Both sales resulted in an aggregate loss of $1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 and were included in impairment and other charges in the consolidated statements of operations,
subject to customary purchase price adjustments as defined in the transaction agreements.
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